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About Us

One Liberty Properties, Inc. is a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust incorpo-
rated under the laws of Maryland in December 1982. The primary business of the company is to acquire,
own and manage a geographically diversified portfolio of retail, industrial, office and other properties
under long term leases. Substantially all of our leases are “net leases” and ground leases, under which
the tenant is responsible for real estate taxes, insurance and ordinary maintenance and repairs.

We acquired our portfolio of properties by balancing fundamental real estate analysis with tenant credit
evaluation. Our analysis focuses on the value of a property, determined primarily by its location, use,
and by local demographics. We also evaluate a tenant’s financial ability to meet operational needs and
lease obligations. We believe that our emphasis on property value enables us to achieve better returns
on our acquired properties and also enhances our ability to re-rent or dispose of a property on favor-
able terms upon the expiration or early termination of a lease. Consequently, we believe that the
weighting of these factors in our analysis enables us to achieve attractive current returns with potential
growth through contractual rent increases and property appreciation.
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Dear Stockholders,

We are pleased to report to you that during 2011 your company continued its growth, as we pursued our basic business
strategy of purchasing accretive properties while selectively disposing of assets.

We highlight our activities in 2011 as follows:

we acquired six properties for an aggregate of $28 million, a joint venture in which we hold a 50% equity interest
acquired one property for $3.2 million, and we sold one property for $11.5 million, net of closing costs, realizing a
gain of $932,000.

total revenues increased by 10.2% to $45.2 million compared to $41 million in 2010.

net income increased by 47.3% to $13.7 million, compared to $9.3 million in 2010. Net income in 2011 gives effect
to a $1.2 million gain on the settlement of a debt.

net income per share increased by 18.5% to $.96 compared to $.81 in 2010.

adjusted funds from operations increased by 25.9% to $21.4 million compared to $17 million in 2010. For a description
of the calculation of adjusted funds from operations and a reconciliation of net income determined in accordance with
GAAP to adjusted FFO we refer you to pages 30-32 of our Form 10-K, which is included with this Annual Report.

adjusted funds from operations on a per share basis increased by 2% to $1.51 from $1.48.

we raised approximately $40.6 million of new equity in February 2011.

at the close of 2011 we owned 89 properties (one of which is a 50% tenancy in common interest) and participated
in five unconsolidated joint ventures that own 5 properties. The properties owned by us and our unconsolidated joint
ventures are located in 29 states.

* portfolio occupancy remained high at 97.6% at year end and at 100% at properties owned by our unconsolidated
joint ventures.

* we continue to pay a cash dividend of $.33 per share per quarter ($1.32 per annum).
In the first quarter of 2012, we have continued to pursue our basic business strategy. Specifically, we added to our
portfolio of properties three Applebee Restaurants in Atlanta, Georgia for approximately $8.6 million and an Urban Outfitters

retail store in Lawrence, Kansas for approximately $1.23 million.

As we move ahead in 2012 and beyond, we expect to build on the progress made in 2011 by expanding our portfolio
with quality acquisitions while maintaining high occupancy levels and a strong balance sheet.

We would like to thank our entire organization, including our dedicated directors, for their support and efforts in making
2011 a very successful year. Our experienced executive team will continue to use its extensive network of relationships

to identify attractive acquisitions as we seek to fortify our growing portfolio and increase value for our stockholders.

Sincerely yours,

‘/724@7 %M CLbaar |E.

Fredric H. Gould Patrick J. Callan, Jr.
Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
April 16, 2012
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Recent Acquisitions

FedEx Express—Durham, North Carolina

LA Fitness—Hamilton (Cincinnati), Ohio

Now Qpen

hhgregg—Niles (Chicago), lllinois
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Financial Highlights

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Total revenues $ 45,240 $ 40,984
Depreciation and amortization 9,599 8,657
Real estate expenses including acquisition costs 2,817 3,153
Other expenses 7,325 6,649
Total operating expenses 19,741 18,459
Operating income $ 25,499 $ 22,525
Income from continuing operations $ 12,511 $ 8,186
Income from discontinued operations 1,209 1,120
Net income $ 13,720 $ 9,306
Plus net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 4 —
Net income attributable to One Liberty Properties, Inc. $ 13,724 $ 9,306
Net income per common share—diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ .87 $ 71
Income from discontinued operations .09 .10
Net income $ .96 $ .81
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—diluted 13,851 11,510

December 31,

2011 2010
Real estate investments, net $412,611 $391,763
Properties held for sale (including related assets of $808) — 10,678
Cash and cash equivalents 12,668 7,732
Total assets 460,736 444,623
Mortgages payable 205,849 215,308
Line of credit—outstanding 20,000 36,200
Total liabilities 241,789 265,440
Total One Liberty Properties, Inc. stockholders’ equity 218,285 179,183

Number of Properties Total Assets Total Revenues
(Including Unconsolidated Joint Ventures) (Dollars in Millions) (Dollars in Millions)
94
88 $444.6 $45.2
$408.7 $41.0
76 $39.4
2009 2010 2011 2009 2010 2009 2010 2011
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We refer to the mortgages on our properties as being “non-recourse (subject to standard carve-outs).”
The term “standard carve-outs” refers to recourse items to an otherwise non-recourse mortgage and are
customary to mortgage financing. While carve-outs vary from lender to lender and transaction to
transaction, the carve-outs may include, among other things, environmental liabilities, the sale, financing or
encumbrance of the property in violation of loan documents, damage to property as a result of intentional
misconduct or gross negligence, failure to pay valid taxes and other claims which could create liens on
property and the conversion of security deposits, insurance proceeds or condemnation awards.

In the narrative portion of this report, information with respect to our consolidated joint venture is
generally described as if such venture was our wholly owned subsidiary and information with respect to
unconsolidated joint ventures is generally separately described.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

We are a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust, also known as a REIT.
We were incorporated in Maryland on December 20, 1982. We acquire, own and manage a
geographically diversified portfolio of retail (including furniture and office supply stores), industrial,
office, flex, health and fitness and other properties, a substantial portion of which are under long-term
leases. Substantially all of our leases are “net leases” and ground leases under which the tenant is
typically responsible for real estate taxes, insurance and ordinary maintenance and repairs. As of
December 31, 2011, we owned 89 properties, one of which is vacant, and one of which is a 50%
tenancy in common interest, and participated in five unconsolidated joint ventures that own five
properties. Our properties and the properties owned by our joint ventures are located in 29 states and
have an aggregate of approximately 5.5 million square feet of space (including approximately 106,000
square feet of space at the property in which we own a tenancy in common interest and approximately
1.2 million square feet of space at properties owned by the joint ventures in which we participate).

As of December 31, 2011:
* our 2012 contractual rental income (as defined) was approximately $45.2 million;

* the occupancy rate of properties owned by us was approximately 97.6% based on square footage
(including the property in which we own a tenancy in common interest);

* the occupancy rate of properties owned by our joint ventures was 100% based on square
footage; and

* the weighted average remaining term of the leases generating our 2012 contractual rental
income and for the leases at properties owned by our joint ventures, is 8.3 years and 8.4 years,
respectively.

Our 2012 contractual rental income includes, after giving effect to any abatements, concessions or
adjustments (i) rental income that is payable to us in 2012 under leases existing at December 31, 2011,
and (ii) rental income that is payable to us in 2012 on our tenancy in common interest. Contractual
rental income excludes approximately $760,000 of straight-line rent, amortization of approximately
$48,000 of intangibles and our share of the rental income payable to our joint ventures, which, in 2012
will be approximately $1.5 million.

2011 Highlights and Recent Developments

* Total revenues increased by $4.3 million or 10.4% from 2010 and net income increased by
$4.4 million or 47.5% from 2010.



* We acquired six properties for an aggregate of $28 million. Three of the properties are located
in Illinois and the other properties are located in North Carolina, Ohio and New Jersey. The
acquired properties account for approximately $2.6 million or 5.8% of our 2012 contractual
rental income.

* We sold one property tenanted by Office Depot for an aggregate of $11.5 million and realized a
gain of $932,000. The property sold accounted for $1.2 million of income (including the $932,000
gain) from discontinued operations in 2011. Rents from properties tenanted by Office Depot
account for less than 8% of our 2012 contractual rental income.

* We issued 2,700,000 shares of our common stock and received net proceeds of approximately
$40.6 million. The proceeds were used to repay two mortgages in aggregate amount of $7.7
million having a weighted average interest rate of 7.9%, to reduce the amount outstanding under
the line of credit by $26.2 million and to purchase a property in March 2011 for $2.3 million.
The balance of the proceeds was used for general corporate purposes.

* In February 2012, we entered into a joint venture with an affiliate of Trammell Crow Company
(“Trammell Crow”) pursuant to which the venture contemplates re-developing our 6.2 acre site
in Plano, Texas into up to two Class A office buildings. This site, which we have owned since
2003, was previously tenanted by a retail furniture operator that filed for bankruptcy protection
in February 2011 and is currently tenanted by another retail furniture operator under a short
term lease. We contributed this property to the joint venture in exchange for a 90% equity
interest therein and Trammell Crow contributed $1.5 million in exchange for its 10% equity
interest therein. The re-development of this property is subject to, among other things, obtaining
the necessary equity and debt financing, sufficient tenant commitments and obtaining various
governmental and non-governmental approvals.

* In March 2012, we acquired three Applebee’s restaurant locations in the Atlanta, Georgia area
for approximately $8.6 million. The properties are subject to individual long term net leases and
the annual base rent with respect thereto is approximately $664,000.

Acquisition Strategies

We seek to acquire properties throughout the United States that have locations, demographics and
other investment attributes that we believe to be attractive. We believe that long-term leases provide a
predictable income stream over the term of the lease, making fluctuations in market rental rates and in
real estate values less significant to achieving our overall investment objectives. Our goal is to acquire
properties that are subject to long-term net or ground leases that include periodic contractual rental
increases or rent increases based on increases in the consumer price index. Periodic contractual rental
increases provide reliable increases in future rent payments and rent increases based on the consumer
price index provide protection against inflation. Historically, long-term leases have made it easier for us
to obtain longer-term, fixed-rate mortgage financing with principal amortization, thereby moderating
the interest rate risk associated with financing or refinancing our property portfolio by reducing the
outstanding principal balance over time. We may, however, acquire a property that is subject to a
short-term lease when we believe the property represents a good opportunity for recurring income and
residual value. Although we regard the acquisition of properties subject to net and ground leases as an
important aspect of our investment strategy, we have expanded our focus to include, among other
things, investments in (i) properties that will be re-positioned or re-developed and (ii) community
shopping centers anchored by national or regional tenants. We pay substantially all the operating
expenses at these community shopping centers, a significant portion of which are reimbursed by the
tenants pursuant to their leases.

In October 2011, we acquired for $5.8 million a retail property located in Cherry Hill, NJ. The
property is situated on approximately 12.4 acres and consists of 115,500 square feet of which



approximately 70,500 square feet is leased to a national retail tenant. We anticipate re-positioning and
leasing the balance of the space over time. The re-positioning of this property is being financed
through an up to $7 million loan which closed in March 2012. We are also pursuing with Trammell
Crow the re-development of a property we own in Plano, TX, into up to two class A office buildings.

Generally, we hold the properties we acquire for an extended period of time. Our investment
criteria are intended to identify properties from which increased asset value and overall return can be
realized from an extended period of ownership. Although our investment criteria favor an extended
period of ownership, we will dispose of a property if we regard the disposition of the property as an
opportunity to realize the overall value of the property sooner or to avoid future risks by achieving a
determinable return from the property.

We identify properties through the network of contacts of our senior management and our
affiliates, which includes real estate brokers, private equity firms, banks and law firms. In addition, we
attend industry conferences and engage in direct solicitations.

Our charter documents do not limit the number of properties in which we may invest, the amount
or percentage of our assets that may be invested in any specific property or property type, or the
concentration of investments in any region in the United States. We do not intend to acquire properties
located outside of the United States. We will continue to form entities to acquire interests in real
properties, either alone or with other investors, and we may acquire interests in joint ventures or other
entities that own real property.

It is our policy, and the policy of our affiliated entities, that any investment opportunity presented
to us or to any of our affiliated entities that involves primarily the acquisition of a net leased property,
a ground lease or a community shopping center, will first be offered to us and may not be pursued by
any of our affiliated entities unless we decline the opportunity.

Investment Evaluation

In evaluating potential investments, we consider, among other criteria, the following:

* the ability of a tenant, if a net leased property, or major tenants, if a shopping center, to meet
operational needs and lease obligations recognizing the current economic climate;

e the current and projected cash flow of the property;

* the estimated return on equity to us;

* an evaluation of the property and improvements, given its location and use;

* local demographics (population and rental trends);

* the terms of tenant leases, including the relationship between current rents and market rents;
* the projected residual value of the property;

* the potential to finance or refinance the property;

* potential for income and capital appreciation;

* occupancy of and demand for similar properties in the market area; and

e alternate uses or tenants for the property.



Our Business Objective

Our business objective is to maintain and increase, over time, the cash available for distribution to
our stockholders by:

¢ identifying opportunistic and strategic property acquisitions consistent with our portfolio and our
acquisition strategies;

* obtaining mortgage indebtedness on favorable terms and maintaining access to capital to finance
property acquisitions;

* monitoring and maintaining our portfolio, including tenant negotiations and lease amendments
with tenants having financial difficulty; and

* managing assets effectively, including lease extensions and opportunistic and strategic property
sales.

Typical Property Attributes

The properties in our portfolio and owned by our joint ventures typically have the following
attributes:

* Net or ground leases. Substantially all of the leases are net and ground leases under which the
tenant is typically responsible for real estate taxes, insurance and ordinary maintenance and
repairs. We believe that investments in net and ground leased properties offer more predictable
returns than investments in properties that are not net or ground leased;

* Long-term leases. Substantially all of our leases are long-term leases. Excluding leases relating to
properties owned by our joint ventures, leases representing approximately 29.3% of our 2012
contractual rental income expire between 2017 and 2021, and leases representing approximately
41.7% of our 2012 contractual rental income expire after 2021; and

* Scheduled rent increases. Leases representing approximately 90.7% of our 2012 contractual rental
income provide or provided for either periodic contractual rent increases or rent increases based
on the consumer price index. A lease with respect to a property owned by one joint venture
provides for a rent increase based on the consumer price index.



Our Tenants

The following table sets forth information about the diversification of our tenants by industry
sector as of December 31, 2011:

Percentage of
Number of Number of 2012 Contractual 2012 Contractual

Type of Property Tenants Properties Rental Income Rental Income
Retail—various(1). . ....... 44 43 $16,653,756 36.9%
Retail—furniture(2) ....... 5 15 6,458,774 14.3
Industrial(3) . .. .......... 8 9 5,788,821 12.8
Retail—office supply(4). . . . . 11 11 4,294,308 9.5
Office(S) ............... 3 3 4,702,310 10.4
Flex . ...... ... . ... 3 2 2,637,196 5.8
Health & fitness . . ........ 4 4 2,515,546 5.6
Movie theater(6).......... 1 1 1,401,846 31
Residential . ... .......... 1 1 700,000 1.6
80 89 $45,152,557 100%

(1) Twenty-two of the retail properties are net leased to single tenants. Five properties are
net leased to a total of 19 separate tenants pursuant to separate leases, eight properties
are net leased to one tenant pursuant to a master lease, six properties are net leased to
one tenant pursuant to a master lease and two properties are net leased to one tenant
pursuant to two coterminous net leases.

(2) Eleven properties are net leased to Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. pursuant to a
master lease covering all locations. Four of the properties are net leased to single tenants.

(3) Includes one vacant property.

(4) Includes nine properties which are net leased to Office Depot pursuant to nine separate
leases. Seven of these leases contain cross-default provisions.

(5) Includes a property in which we own a 50% tenancy in common interest.

(6) We are the ground lessee of this property under a long-term lease and net lease the
movie theater to an operator.

Most of our retail tenants operate on a national basis and include, among others, Barnes & Noble,
Best Buy, Burlington Coat Factory, CarMax, CVS, Kohl’s, Marshalls, Mens’ Wearhouse, Office Depot,
Office Max, Party City, PetSmart, The Sports Authority, Walgreens, Wendy’s and Whole Foods and
some of our tenants operate on a regional basis, including hhgregg, Giant Food Stores and Haverty
Furniture Companies.

Our Leases

Substantially all of our leases are net or ground leases (including the leases entered into by our
joint ventures) under which the tenant, in addition to its rental obligation, typically is responsible for
expenses attributable to the operation of the property, such as real estate taxes and assessments, water
and sewer rents and other charges. The tenant is also generally responsible for maintaining the
property and for restoration following a casualty or partial condemnation. The tenant is typically
obligated to indemnify us for claims arising from the property and is responsible for maintaining
insurance coverage for the property it leases and naming us an additional insured. Under some net
leases, we are responsible for structural repairs, including foundation and slab, roof repair or
replacement and restoration following a casualty event, and at several properties we are responsible for
certain expenses related to the operation and maintenance of the property.



Our typical lease provides for contractual rent increases periodically throughout the term of the
lease or for rent increases pursuant to a formula based on the consumer price index. Some of our
leases provide for minimum rents supplemented by additional payments based on sales derived from
the property subject to the lease. Such additional payments were not a material part of our 2011 rental
revenues and are not expected to be a material part of our 2012 rental revenues.

Our policy has been to acquire properties that are subject to existing long-term leases or to enter
into long-term leases with our tenants. Our leases generally provide the tenant with one or more
renewal options.

The following table sets forth scheduled lease expirations of leases for our properties (excluding
joint venture properties) as of December 31, 2011:

% of 2012 Contractual

Approximate Square 2012 Contractual Rental Income

Number of Footage Subject to Rental Income Under Represented by

Year of Lease Expiration(1) Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Expiring Leases
2012 .o 5 37,300 $ 482,343 1.1
2013 .o 6 233,179 1,963,996 4.3
2014 .o 12 698,261 6,175,391 13.7
2015 .o 4 127,240 1,460,548 32
2016 ... 9 350,941 3,014,929 6.7
2017 .o 4(2) 181,421 2,759,596 6.1
2018 ... 10 247,176 4,727,201 10.5
2019 ... 3 66,322 883,702 1.9
2020 ... 6 167,606 4,014,935 8.9
2021 and Thereafter . . . . .. 23 2,051,499 19,669,916 43.6

82 4,160,945 $45,152,557 100%

(1) Lease expirations assume tenants do not exercise existing renewal options.

(2) Includes a property in which we have a tenancy in common interest.

Financing, Re-Renting and Disposition of Our Properties

Our charter documents do not limit the level of debt we may incur. Our revolving credit facility
matures on March 31, 2013 and, among other things, limits total debt that we may incur to 70% of the
value of our properties (as determined pursuant to the credit agreement). We borrow funds on a
secured and unsecured basis and intend to continue to do so in the future.

We also mortgage specific properties on a non-recourse basis (subject to standard carve-outs) to
enhance the return on our investment in a specific property. The proceeds of mortgage loans may be
used for property acquisitions, investments in joint ventures or other entities that own real property, to
reduce bank debt and for working capital purposes. The proceeds of our credit facility may be used to
payoff existing mortgages, fund the acquisition of additional properties, and to a more limited extent,
invest in joint ventures and for working capital. Net proceeds received from the sale, financing or
refinancing of properties are generally required to be used to repay amounts outstanding under our
credit facility.

With respect to properties we acquire on a free and clear basis, we usually seek to obtain
long-term fixed-rate mortgage financing, when available at acceptable terms, shortly after the
acquisition of such property to avoid the risk of movement of interest rates and fluctuating supply and
demand in the mortgage markets. We also will acquire a property that is subject to (and will assume) a
fixed-rate mortgage. Substantially all of our mortgages provide for amortization of part of the principal
balance during the term, thereby reducing the refinancing risk at maturity. Some of our properties may
be financed on a cross-defaulted or cross-collateralized basis, and we may collateralize a single
financing with more than one property.



After termination or expiration of any lease relating to any of our properties, we will seek to
re-rent or sell such property in a manner that will maximize the return to us, considering, among other
factors, the income potential and market value of such property. We acquire properties for long-term
investment for income purposes and do not typically engage in the turnover of investments. We will
consider the sale of a property if a sale appears advantageous in view of our investment objectives. We
may take back a purchase money mortgage as partial payment in lieu of cash in connection with any
sale and may consider local custom and prevailing market conditions in negotiating the terms of
repayment. If there is a substantial tax gain, we may seek to enter into a tax deferred transaction and
reinvest the proceeds in another property. It is our policy to use any cash realized from the sale of
properties, net of any distributions to stockholders, to pay down amounts due under our credit facility,
if any, and for the acquisition of additional properties.

Our Joint Ventures

As of December 31, 2011, we were participants in five joint ventures that own an aggregate of five
properties, and have an aggregate of approximately 1.2 million rentable square feet of space. Four of
the properties are retail properties and one is an industrial property. We own a 50% equity interest in
all of these joint ventures. We are designated as the sole “managing member” or “manager” under the
operating agreements of two of these joint ventures; however, we do not exercise substantial operating
control over these entities. At December 31, 2011, our investment in joint ventures was approximately
$5.1 million.

Based on existing leases, we anticipate that our share of rental income payable to our joint
ventures in 2012 will be approximately $1.5 million. The leases for two properties (each of which is
owned by one of our joint ventures), are expected to contribute 78.5% of the aggregate projected
rental income payable to all of our joint ventures in 2012 and expire in 2021 and 2022.

Competition

We face competition for the acquisition of properties from a variety of investors, including
domestic and foreign corporations and real estate companies, financial institutions, insurance
companies, pension funds, investment funds, other REITs and individuals, some of which have
significant advantages over us, including a larger, more diverse group of properties and greater financial
and other resources than we have.

Our Structure

Five employees, Patrick J. Callan, Jr., our president and chief executive officer, Lawrence G.
Ricketts, Jr., our executive vice president and chief operating officer, Justin Clair, our assistant
vice-president and two others, devote substantially all of their business time to our company. Our other
executive, administrative, legal, accounting and clerical personnel share their services on a part-time
basis with us and other affiliated entities that share our executive offices.

We entered into a compensation and services agreement with Majestic Property Management
Corp., effective as of January 1, 2007. Majestic Property is wholly-owned by our chairman of the board
and it provides compensation to certain of our executive officers. Pursuant to this agreement, we pay
an annual fee to Majestic Property and Majestic Property assumed our obligations under a shared
services agreement, and provides us with the services of all affiliated executive, administrative, legal,
accounting and clerical personnel that we use on a part time basis, as well as certain property
management services, property acquisition, sales and leasing and mortgage brokerage services. The
annual fees we pay to Majestic Property are negotiated each year by us and Majestic Property and are
approved by our audit committee and independent directors.



In 2011, pursuant to the compensation and services agreement, we paid (a) Majestic Property a fee
of approximately $2.73 million and $175,000 for our share of all direct office expenses, including,
among other expenses, rent, telephone, postage, computer services and internet usage and (b) the
chairman of our board of directors a fee of $250,000. See Note 9 to our consolidated financial
statements for information regarding equity awards to individuals performing services on our behalf.

We believe that the compensation and services agreement allows us to benefit from access to, and
from the services of, a group of senior executives with significant knowledge and experience in the real
estate industry and our company and its activities. If not for this agreement, we believe that a company
of our size would not have access to the skills and expertise of these executives at the cost that we have
incurred and will incur in the future. For a description of the background of our management, please
see the information under the heading “Executive Officers” in Part I of this Annual Report.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.onelibertyproperties.com. On the Investor Information page of our
web site, we post the following filings as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”): our annual report on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, and any
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All such filings on our Investor Information Web page, which also
includes Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, are available to be viewed free of charge.

On the Corporate Governance page of our web site, we post the following charters and guidelines:
Audit Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Charter, Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee Charter, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as
amended and restated. All such documents on our Corporate Governance Web page are available to be
viewed free of charge.

Information contained on our web site is not part of, and is not incorporated by reference into,
this Annual Report on Form 10-K or our other filings with the SEC. A copy of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and those items disclosed on our Investor Information Web page and our Corporate
Governance Web page are available without charge upon written request to: One Liberty
Properties, Inc., 60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, New York 11021, Attention: Secretary.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, together with other statements and information publicly
disseminated by us, contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provision for
forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and
include this statement for purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking
statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies and
expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “could,” “believe,” “expect,”
“intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” or similar expressions or variations thereof. You should
not rely on forward-looking statements since they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors which are, in some cases, beyond our control and which could materially affect actual
results, performance or achievements. Factors which may cause actual results to differ materially from
current expectations include, but are not limited to:
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* the financial condition of our tenants and the performance of their lease obligations;



 general economic and business conditions, including those currently affecting our nation’s
economy and real estate markets;

* the availability of and costs associated with sources of liquidity;

* accessibility of debt and equity capital markets;

* general and local real estate conditions, including any changes in the value of our real estate;
* compliance with credit facility covenants;

* more competition for leasing of vacant space due to current economic conditions;

 changes in governmental laws and regulations relating to real estate and related investments;
* the level and volatility of interest rates;

e competition in our industry; and

¢ the other risks described under “Risks Related to Our Company” and “Risks Related to the
REIT Industry.”

Any or all of our forward-looking statements in this report and in any other public statements we
make may turn out to be incorrect. Actual results may differ from our forward looking statements
because of inaccurate assumptions we might make or because of the occurrence of known or unknown
risks and uncertainties. Many factors mentioned in the discussion below will be important in
determining future results. Consequently, no forward-looking statement can be guaranteed and you are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Actual future results may
vary materially.

Except as may be required under the United States federal securities laws, we undertake no
obligation to publicly update our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. You are advised, however, to consult any further disclosures we make in our
reports that are filed with or furnished to the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Set forth below is a discussion of certain risks affecting our business. The categorization of risks set
forth below is meant to help you better understand the risks facing our business and is not intended to limit
your consideration of the possible effects of these risks to the listed categories. Any adverse effects arising
from the realization of any of the risks discussed, including our financial condition and results of operation,
may, and likely will, adversely affect many aspects of our business.

In addition to the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K, readers
should carefully consider the following risk factors:

Risks Related to Our Business

If our tenants default, if we are unable to re-rent properties upon the expiration of our leases, or if a
significant number of tenants are granted rent relief, our revenues will be reduced and we would incur
additional costs.

Substantially all of our revenues are derived from rental income paid by tenants at our properties.
The recent economic crisis and the uncertain economic climate has effected a number of our tenants.
A deterioration of economic conditions could result in tenants defaulting on their obligations, fewer
tenants renewing their leases upon the expiration of their terms or tenants seeking rent relief or other
accommodations or renegotiation of their leases. As a result of any of these events, our revenues could
decline (which may include a reversal of straight-line rental income and accelerated amortization of



intangibles). At the same time, we would remain responsible for the payment of our mortgage
obligations and would become responsible for the operating expenses related to our properties,
including, among other things, real estate taxes, maintenance and insurance. In addition, we would
incur expenses in enforcing our rights as landlord. Even if we find replacement tenants or renegotiate
leases with current tenants, the terms of the new or renegotiated leases, including the cost of required
renovations or concessions to tenants, or the expense of the reconfiguration of a single tenancy
property for use by multiple tenants, may be less favorable than current lease terms and could reduce
the amount of cash available to meet expenses and pay distributions.

Approximately 61.7% of our 2011 rental revenue was derived from tenants operating in the retail industry and
the inability of those tenants to pay rent would significantly reduce our revenues.

Approximately 61.7% of our rental revenues (excluding rental revenues from our joint ventures)
for 2011 was derived from retail tenants and approximately 60.7% of our 2012 contractual rental
income is expected to be derived from retail tenants, including 14.3% and 9.5%, from tenants engaged
in retail furniture and office supply operations, respectively. The recent economic crisis and recession
caused a significant decline in consumer spending on retail goods.

If economic conditions do not continue to improve, it could cause our retail tenants to fail to meet
their lease obligations, including rental payment delinquencies, which would have an adverse effect on
our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition, including making it more difficult for us to
satisfy our operating and debt service requirements, make capital expenditures and make distributions
to our stockholders.

Approximately 32.9% of our 2011 revenues and 31.8% of our 2012 contractual rental income is derived from
five tenants. The default, financial distress or failure of any of these tenants could significantly reduce our
revenues.

Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc., Office Depot, Inc., Ferguson Enterprises, Inc., DSM
Nutritional Products, Inc., and L-3 Communications Corp., accounted for approximately 10.7%, 7.8%,
5.1%, 5.4% and 3.9%, respectively, of our rental revenues (excluding rental revenues from our joint
ventures) for 2011, and account for 9.8%, 7.8%, 5.2%, 4.7% and 4.3%, respectively, of our 2012
contractual rental income. The default, financial distress or bankruptcy of any of these tenants could
cause interruptions in the receipt of, or the loss of, a significant amount of rental revenues and would
require us to pay operating expenses currently paid by the tenant. This could also result in the vacancy
of the property or properties occupied by the defaulting tenant, which would significantly reduce our
rental revenues and net income until the re-rental of the property or properties, and could decrease the
ultimate sale value of the property.

Declines in the value of our properties could result in impairment charges.

The recent economic downturn caused a decline in real estate values generally throughout the
country. If we are presented with indications of an impairment in the value of a particular property or
group of properties, we will be required to evaluate any such property or properties. If we determine
that any of our properties at which indicators of impairment exist have a value which is below the net
book value of such property, we may be required to recognize an impairment charge for the difference
between the fair value and the book value during the quarter in which we make such determination. In
addition, we may incur losses from time to time if we dispose of properties for sales prices that are less
than our book value.
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Competition that traditional retail tenants face from on-line retail sales could adversely affect our business.

Our retail tenants face increasing competition from online retailers. Online retailers may be able
to provide customers with better pricing and the ease and comfort of shopping from their home or
office. Internet sales have been obtaining an increasing percentage of retail sales over the past few
years and this trend is expected to continue. The continued growth of online sales could decrease the
need for traditional retail outlets and reduce retailers’ space and property requirements. This could
adversely impact our ability to rent space at our retail properties and increase competition for retail
tenants thereby reducing the rent we would receive at these properties and adversely affecting our
results of operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to refinance our mortgage loans at maturity, we may be forced to sell properties at
disadvantageous terms, which would result in the loss of revenues and in a decline in the value of our
portfolio.

We had, as of December 31, 2011, $205.8 million in mortgage debt outstanding, all of which is
non-recourse (subject to standard carve-outs), our ratio of mortgage debt to total assets was 44.7% and
our joint ventures had $18.9 million in total mortgage indebtedness (all of which is non-recourse,
subject to standard carve-outs). The risks associated with our mortgage debt and the mortgage debt of
our joint ventures include the risk that cash flow from properties securing the mortgage indebtedness
and our available cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments will be insufficient to meet
required payments of principal and interest.

Generally, only a small portion of the principal of our mortgage indebtedness will be repaid prior
to maturity and we do not plan to retain sufficient cash to repay such indebtedness at maturity.
Accordingly, to meet these obligations if they cannot be refinanced at maturity, we will have to use
funds available under our credit facility, if any, and our available cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments to pay our mortgage debt or seek to raise funds through the financing of
unencumbered properties, sale of properties or the issuance of additional equity. In 2012, $33.5 million
of mortgage debt matures, of which approximately $23 million relates to eleven properties leased by
Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. From 2013 through 2016, excluding mortgage debt of our joint
ventures, approximately $99.7 million of our mortgage debt matures—specifically, $9.7 million, $36.1
million, $24.7 million and $29.2 million in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. With respect to our
joint ventures, approximately $13.6 million of mortgage debt matures in 2015. If we (or our joint
ventures) are not successful in refinancing or extending existing mortgage indebtedness or financing
unencumbered properties, selling properties on favorable terms or raising additional equity, our cash
flow (or the cash flow of a joint venture) will not be sufficient to repay all maturing mortgage debt
when payments become due, and we (or a joint venture) may be forced to dispose of properties on
disadvantageous terms or convey properties secured by mortgages to the mortgagees, which would
lower our revenues and the value of our portfolio.

Additionally, we may find that the value of a property could be less than the mortgage secured by
such property. In such instance, we may seek to renegotiate the terms of the mortgage, or to the extent
that our loan is non-recourse and the terms of the mortgage cannot be satisfactorily renegotiated,
forfeit the property by conveying it to the mortgagee and writing off our investment.
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If our borrowings increase, the risk of default on our repayment obligations and our debt service requirements
will also increase.

The terms of our revolving credit facility limit our ability to incur indebtedness, including limiting
the total indebtedness that we may incur to an amount equal to 70% of the value (as defined in the
credit agreement) of our properties. Increased leverage could result in increased risk of default on our
payment obligations related to borrowings and in an increase in debt service requirements, which could
reduce our net income and the amount of cash available to meet expenses and to make distributions to
our stockholders.

If a significant number of our tenants default or fail to renew expiring leases, or we take impairment charges
against our properties, a breach of our revolving credit facility could occur.

Our revolving credit facility includes financial covenants that require us to maintain certain
financial ratios and requirements. If our tenants default under their leases with us or fail to renew
expiring leases, generally accepted accounting principles may require us to recognize impairment
charges against our properties, and our financial position could be adversely affected causing us to be
in breach of the financial covenants contained in our credit facility.

Failure to meet interest and other payment obligations under our revolving credit facility or a
breach by us of the covenants to maintain the financial ratios would place us in default under our
credit facility, and, if the banks called a default and required us to repay the full amount outstanding
under the credit facility, we might be required to rapidly dispose of our properties, which could have an
adverse impact on the amounts we receive on such disposition. If we are unable to dispose of our
properties in a timely fashion to the satisfaction of the banks, the banks could foreclose on that portion
of our collateral pledged to the banks, which could result in the disposition of our properties at below
market values. The disposition of our properties at below our carrying value would adversely affect our
net income, reduce our stockholders’ equity and adversely affect our ability to pay distributions to our
stockholders.

Impairment charges against owned real estate may not be adequate to cover actual losses.

Impairment charges are based on an evaluation of known risks and economic factors. The
determination of an appropriate level of impairment charges is an inherently difficult process and is
based on numerous assumptions. The amount of impairment charges of real estate is susceptible to
changes in economic, operating and other conditions that are largely beyond our control. Any
impairment charges that we may take may not be adequate to cover actual losses and we may need to
take additional impairment charges in the future. Actual losses and additional impairment charges in
the future could materially affect our results of operations.

If credit markets tighten, it may be more difficult for us to secure financing, which may limit our ability to
finance or refinance our real estate properties, reduce the number of properties we can acquire, and adversely
affect your investment.

From 2008 to 2009, due to the national economic recession and credit crisis and the resulting
caution by lenders in evaluating and underwriting new transactions, there was a significant tightening of
the credit markets. While we believe that in 2010 and 2011 access to credit markets eased, this trend
may not continue or it may be reversed. Reduced access to credit markets may make it difficult for us
to secure mortgage debt, limiting the mortgage debt available on properties we wish to acquire and
possibly limiting the properties we can acquire. Even in the event that we are able to secure mortgage
debt on, or otherwise finance our real estate properties, due to increased costs associated with securing
financing and other factors beyond our control, we may be unable to refinance the entire outstanding
loan balance or be subject to unfavorable terms (such as higher loan fees, interest rates and periodic

12



payments) if we do refinance the loan balance. Either of these results could reduce income from those
properties and reduce cash available for distribution, which may adversely affect the investment goals of
our stockholders.

Our net leases and our ground leases require us to pay property related expenses that are not the obligations
of our tenants.

Under the terms of substantially all of our net leases, in addition to satisfying their rent
obligations, our tenants are responsible for the payment of real estate taxes, insurance and ordinary
maintenance and repairs. However, under the provisions of certain net and ground leases, we are
required to pay some expenses, such as the costs of environmental liabilities, roof and structural
repairs, insurance, certain non-structural repairs and maintenance. If our properties incur significant
expenses that must be paid by us under the terms of our leases, our business, financial condition and
results of operations will be adversely affected and the amount of cash available to meet expenses and
to make distributions to holders of our common stock may be reduced.

Uninsured and underinsured losses may affect the revenues generated by, the value of, and the return from a
property affected by a casualty or other claim.

Substantially all of our tenants obtain, for our benefit, comprehensive insurance covering our
properties in amounts that are intended to be sufficient to provide for the replacement of the
improvements at each property. However, the amount of insurance coverage maintained for any
property may not be sufficient to pay the full replacement cost of the improvements at the property
following a casualty event. In addition, the rent loss coverage under the policy may not extend for the
full period of time that a tenant may be entitled to a rent abatement as a result of, or that may be
required to complete restoration following, a casualty event. In addition, there are certain types of
losses, such as those arising from earthquakes, floods, hurricanes and terrorist attacks, that may be
uninsurable or that may not be economically insurable. Changes in zoning, building codes and
ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors also may make it impossible or
impracticable for us to use insurance proceeds to replace damaged or destroyed improvements at a
property. If restoration is not or cannot be completed to the extent, or within the period of time,
specified in certain of our leases, the tenant may have the right to terminate the lease. If any of these
or similar events occur, it may reduce our revenues, the value of, or our return from, an affected

property.

Our revenues and the value of our portfolio are affected by a number of factors that affect investments in real
estate generally.

We are subject to the general risks of investing in real estate. These include adverse changes in
economic conditions and local conditions such as changing demographics, retailing trends and traffic
patterns, declines in the rental rates, changes in the supply and price of quality properties and the
market supply and demand of competing properties, the impact of environmental laws, security
concerns, prepayment penalties applicable under mortgage financings, changes in tax, zoning, building
code, fire safety and other laws and regulations, the type of insurance coverage available in the market,
and changes in the type, capacity and sophistication of building systems. Approximately 60.7%, 12.8%
and 10.4% of our 2012 contractual rental income is expected to come from retail, industrial, and office
tenants, respectively, and we are vulnerable to economic declines that negatively impact these sectors of
the economy, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, liquidity and financial
condition.
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Our revenues and the value of our portfolio are affected by a number of factors that affect investments in
leased real estate generally.

We are subject to the general risks of investing in leased real estate. These include the
non-performance of lease obligations by tenants, leasehold improvements that will be costly or difficult
to remove should it become necessary to re-rent the leased space for other uses, covenants in certain
retail leases that limit the types of tenants to which available space can be rented (which may limit
demand or reduce the rents realized on re-renting), rights of termination of leases due to events of
casualty or condemnation affecting the leased space or the property or due to interruption of the
tenant’s quiet enjoyment of the leased premises, and obligations of a landlord to restore the leased
premises or the property following events of casualty or condemnation. The occurrence of any of these
events could adversely impact our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition.

Redevelopment activities may be delayed or otherwise may not achieve expected results.

Redevelopment activities may be cancelled, terminated, abandoned, and/or delayed, or otherwise
may not achieve expected results due, among other things, to our inability to achieve favorable leasing
results, to obtain all required permits and approvals, and to finance such development activities. We are
in the process of re-positioning our Cherry Hill, NJ property and re-developing our Plano, TX property
and may continue such activities with these or other properties in the future. In this connection, we will
bear certain risks, including the risks of failure/lack of, or withdrawal of, expected entitlements,
construction delays or cost overruns (including increases in materials and/or labor costs and the
requirement for greater off-site improvements than originally contemplated) that may increase project
costs and make such project uneconomical, the risk that occupancy or rental rates at a completed
project will not be sufficient to enable us to pay operating expenses or achieve targeted rates of return
on investment, and the risk of incurring acquisition and/or predevelopment costs in connection with
projects that are not pursued to completion. In case of an unsuccessful project, our loss could exceed
our investment in the project.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid and their values may decline.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid. Therefore, we will be limited in our ability to
reconfigure our real estate portfolio in response to economic changes. We may encounter difficulty in
disposing of properties when tenants vacate either at the expiration of the applicable lease or
otherwise. If we decide to sell any of our properties, our ability to sell these properties and the prices
we receive on their sale may be affected by many factors, including the number of potential buyers, the
number of competing properties on the market and other market conditions, as well as whether the
property is leased and if it is leased, the terms of the lease. As a result, we may be unable to sell our
properties for an extended period of time without incurring a loss, which would adversely affect our
results of operations, liquidity and financial condition.

The concentration of our properties in certain regions may make our revenues and the value of our portfolio
vulnerable to adverse changes in local economic conditions.

The properties we own may be located in the same or a limited number of geographic regions.
Approximately 26.8% of our rental income (excluding our share of rental income from our joint
ventures) for 2011 was, and approximately 26% of our 2012 contractual rental income will be, derived
from properties located in Texas and New York. At December 31, 2011, 23.1% of the depreciated book
value of our real estate investments (excluding our share of the assets from our joint ventures) were
located in Texas and New York. As a result, a decline in the economic conditions in these regions, or in
regions where our properties may be concentrated in the future, may have an adverse effect on the
rental and occupancy rates for, and the property values of, these properties, which could lead to a
reduction in our rental income and in the results of operations.
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If we reduce our dividend, the market value of our common stock may decline.

The level of our common stock dividend is established by our board of directors from time to time
based on a variety of factors, including our cash available for distribution, funds from operations and
maintenance of our REIT status. Various factors could cause our board of directors to decrease our
dividend level, including insufficient income to cover our dividends, tenant defaults or bankruptcies
resulting in a material reduction in our funds from operations or a material loss resulting from an
adverse change in the value of one or more of our properties. If our board of directors determines to
reduce our common stock dividend, the market value of our common stock could be adversely affected.

We cannot assure you of our ability to pay dividends in the future.

We intend to pay quarterly dividends and to make distributions to our stockholders in amounts
such that all or substantially all of our taxable income in each year is distributed. This, along with other
factors, will enable us to quality for the tax benefits accorded to a REIT under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. We have not established a minimum dividend payment level and our ability
to pay dividends may be adversely affected by the risk factors described in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. All distributions will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend
on our earnings, our financial condition, maintenance of our REIT status and such other factors as our
board of directors may deem relevant from time to time. If the economic climate does not continue to
improve, our tenants may be further affected, which could likely cause a decline in our revenues, and
may reduce or eliminate our profitability and result in the reduction or elimination of our dividends.

Competition in the real estate business is intense and could reduce our revenues and harm our business.

We compete for real estate investments with all types of investors, including domestic and foreign
corporations and real estate companies, financial institutions, insurance companies, pension funds,
investment funds, other REITs and individuals. Many of these competitors have significant advantages
over us, including a larger, more diverse group of properties and greater financial and other resources.

Our current and future investments in joint ventures could be adversely affected by the lack of sole decision
mabking authority, reliance on joint venture partners’ financial condition, and any dispute that may arise
between our joint venture partners and us.

A number of properties in which we have an interest are owned through joint ventures. We may
continue to acquire properties through joint ventures and/or contribute some of our properties to joint
ventures. Investments in joint ventures may, under certain circumstances, involve risks not present when
a third party is not involved, including the possibility that joint venture partners might file for
bankruptcy protection, or fail to fund their share of required capital contributions. Further, joint
venture partners may have conflicting business interests or goals, and as a result there is the potential
risk of impasses on decisions, such as a sale. Any disputes that may arise between joint venture
partners and us may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our expenses and prevent our
officers and/or directors from focusing their time and effort on our business. Consequently, actions by
or disputes with joint venture partners might result in subjecting properties owned by the joint venture
to additional risk.

Compliance with environmental regulations and associated costs could adversely affect our results of
operations and liquidity.

Under various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner or operator of
real property may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum
product releases at the property and may be held liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for
property damage and for investigation and cleanup costs incurred in connection with contamination.
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The cost of investigation, remediation or removal of hazardous or toxic substances may be substantial,
and the presence of such substances, or the failure to properly remediate a property, may adversely
affect our ability to sell or rent the property or to borrow money using the property as collateral. In
connection with our ownership, operation and management of real properties, we may be considered
an owner or operator of the properties and, therefore, potentially liable for removal or remediation
costs, as well as certain other related costs, including governmental fines and liability for injuries to
persons and property, not only with respect to properties we own now or may acquire, but also with
respect to properties we have owned in the past.

We cannot provide any assurance that existing environmental studies with respect to any of our
properties reveal all potential environmental liabilities, that any prior owner of a property did not
create any material environmental condition not known to us, or that a material environmental
condition does not otherwise exist, or may not exist in the future, as to any one or more of our
properties. If a material environmental condition does in fact exist, or exists in the future, the
remediation of costs could have a material adverse impact upon our results of operations, liquidity and
financial condition.

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act could be costly.

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, all public accommodations must meet Federal
requirements for access and use by disabled persons. A determination that our properties do not
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act could result in liability for both governmental fines
and damages. If we are required to make unanticipated major modifications to any of our properties to
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, which are determined not to be the responsibility of
our tenants, we could incur unanticipated expenses that could have an adverse impact upon our results
of operations, liquidity and financial condition.

Our senior management and other key personnel are critical to our business and our future success depends
on our ability to retain them.

We depend on the services of Fredric H. Gould, chairman of our Board of Directors, Patrick J.
Callan, Jr., our president and chief executive officer, Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr., our executive vice
president and chief operating officer, and other members of our senior management to carry out our
business and investment strategies. Only two of our senior officers, Messrs. Callan and Ricketts, devote
substantially all of their business time to our company. The remainder of our senior management
provide services to us on a part-time, as-needed basis. The loss of the services of any of our senior
management or other key personnel, or our inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the
future, could impair our ability to carry out our business and investment strategies.

Our transactions with affiliated entities involve conflicts of interest.

From time to time we have entered into transactions with persons and entities affiliated with us
and with certain of our officers and directors. Our policy for transactions with affiliates is to have these
transactions approved by our audit committee and by a majority of our board of directors, including a
majority of our independent directors. We entered into a compensation and services agreement with
Majestic Property effective as of January 1, 2007. Majestic Property is wholly-owned by the chairman of
our Board of Directors and it provides compensation to certain of our part-time senior executive
officers. Pursuant to the compensation and services agreement, we pay an annual fee to Majestic
Property and it assumes our obligations under a shared services agreement, and provide us with the
services of all affiliated executive, administrative, legal, accounting and clerical personnel that we use
on a part time basis, as well as certain property management services, property acquisition, sales and
leasing and mortgage brokerage services. In 2011, pursuant to the compensation and services
agreement, we paid Majestic Property a fee of $2,725,000 and an additional $175,000 for our share of
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all direct office expenses, including rent, telephone, postage, computer services, and internet usage. See
Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements for information regarding equity awards to individuals
performing services on our behalf.

Risks Related to the REIT Industry

Failure to qualify as a REIT would result in material adverse tax consequences and would significantly reduce
cash available for distributions.

We operate so as to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
Qualification as a REIT involves the application of technical and complex legal provisions for which
there are limited judicial and administrative interpretations. The determination of various factual
matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to qualify as a REIT. In
addition, no assurance can be given that legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or
court decisions will not significantly change the tax laws with respect to qualification as a REIT or the
federal income tax consequences of such qualification. If we fail to quality as a REIT, we will be
subject to federal, certain additional state and local income tax (including any applicable alternative
minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and would not be allowed a deduction
in computing our taxable income for amounts distributed to stockholders. In addition, unless entitled to
relief under certain statutory provisions, we would be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the
four taxable years following the year during which qualification is lost. The additional tax would reduce
significantly our net income and the cash available for distributions to stockholders.

We are subject to certain distribution requirements that may result in our having to borrow funds at
unfavorable rates.

To obtain the favorable tax treatment associated with being a REIT, we generally are required,
among other things, to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our ordinary taxable income
(subject to certain adjustments) each year. To the extent that we satisfy these distribution requirements,
but distribute less than 100% of our taxable income we will be subject to federal corporate tax on our
undistributed taxable income. In addition, we may be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the
amount, if any, by which certain distributions paid by us with respect to any calendar year are less than
the sum of 85% of our ordinary income, 95% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our
undistributed income from prior years.

As a result of differences in timing between the receipt of income and the payment of expenses,
and the inclusion of such income and the deduction of such expenses in arriving at taxable income, and
the effect of nondeductible capital expenditures, the creation of reserves and the timing of required
debt service (including amortization) payments, we may need to borrow funds in order to make the
distributions necessary to retain the tax benefits associated with qualifying as a REIT, even if we believe
that then prevailing market conditions are not generally favorable for such borrowings. Such borrowings
could reduce our net income and the cash available for distributions to holders of our common stock.

Compliance with REIT requirements may hinder our ability to maximize profits.

In order to qualify as a REIT for Federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests
concerning, among other things, our sources of income, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders
and the ownership of our stock. We may also be required to make distributions to stockholders at
disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution. Accordingly,
compliance with REIT requirements may hinder our ability to operate solely on the basis of
maximizing profits.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must also ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter, at
least 75% of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and real estate
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assets. Any investment in securities cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities
of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer.
In addition, no more than 5% of the value of our assets can consist of the securities of any one issuer,
other than a qualified REIT security. If we fail to comply with these requirements, we must dispose of
such portion of these securities in excess of these percentages within 30 days after the end of the
calendar quarter in order to avoid losing our REIT status and suffering adverse tax consequences. This
requirement could cause us to dispose of assets for consideration that is less than their true value and
could lead to an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is a list of our executive officers whose terms expire at our 2012 annual board of
directors’ meeting. The business history of our officers, who are also directors, will be provided in our
proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than April 30, 2012.

NAME AGE POSITION WITH THE COMPANY

Fredric H. Gould™ ................ % Chairman of the Board

Patrick J. Callan, Jr. ... ............ 49  President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. ........... 35  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Matthew J. Gould* . .. ............. 52 Vice Chairman of the Board

Jeffrey A. Gould* . . ............... 46  Senior Vice President and Director

David W. Kalish*** . ... ........ ... 64  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Mark H. Lundy** . .. .............. 49 Senior Vice President and Secretary

Israel Rosenzweig . .. .............. 64  Senior Vice President

Simeon Brinberg** ... ... ...... . ... 78  Senior Vice President

Karen Dunleavy . ................. 53 Vice President, Financial

Alysa Block .......... ... ... ... 51  Treasurer

Richard M. Figueroa .............. 44 Vice President and Assistant Secretary

Isaac Kalish™** . .............. ... 36 Assistant Treasurer

Justin Clair . .................... 29  Assistant Vice President

*  Matthew J. Gould and Jeffrey A. Gould are Fredric H. Gould’s sons.
**  Mark H. Lundy is Simeon Brinberg’s son-in-law.

*** Tsaac Kalish is David W. Kalish’s son.

Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. Mr. Ricketts has been our Chief Operating Officer since January 2008,
Vice President since December 1999 (Executive Vice President since June 2006), and employed by us
since January 1999.

David W. Kalish. Mr. Kalish has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
since June 1990. Mr. Kalish has served as Senior Vice President, Finance of BRT Realty Trust since
August 1998 and Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the managing general partner of Gould
Investors L.P. since June 1990. Mr. Kalish is a certified public accountant.

Israel Rosenzweig. Mr. Rosenzweig has served as our Senior Vice President since June 1997 and
as a Senior Vice President of BRT Realty Trust since March 1998. He has been a Vice President of the
managing general partner of Gould Investors L.P. since May 1997 and was President of GP
Partners, Inc., a sub-advisor to a registered investment advisor, from 2000 to March 2009.

Mark H. Lundy. Mr. Lundy has served as our Secretary since June 1993 and as our Vice
President since June 2000 (Senior Vice President since June 2006). Mr. Lundy has been a Vice
President of BRT Realty Trust since April 1993 (Senior Vice President since March 2005) and a Vice
President of the managing general partner of Gould Investors L.P. since July 1990. He is an
attorney-at-law and a member of the bars of New York and the District of Columbia.
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Simeon Brinberg. Mr. Brinberg has served as our Senior Vice President since 1989. He has been
Secretary of BRT Realty Trust since 1983, a Senior Vice President of BRT Realty Trust since 1988 and
a Vice President of the managing general partner of Gould Investors L.P. since 1988. Mr. Brinberg is
an attorney-at-law and a member of the bar of the State of New York.

Karen Dunleavy. Ms. Dunleavy has been our Vice President, Financial since 1994. She has served
as Treasurer of the managing general partner of Gould Investors L.P. since 1986. Ms. Dunleavy is a
certified public accountant.

Alysa Block. Ms. Block has been our Treasurer since 2007, and served as Assistant Treasurer
from June 1997 to June 2007. Ms. Block also serves as the Treasurer of BRT Realty Trust since March
2008, and served as its Assistant Treasurer from March 1997 to March 2008.

Isaac Kalish. Mr. Kalish has served as our Assistant Treasurer since 2007, as Assistant Treasurer
of Georgetown Partners, Inc. since 2012 and as Assistant Treasurer of BRT Realty Trust since 2009. He
began working for us and our affiliates in 2004. Prior thereto, he worked in public accounting for
Buchbinder Tunick & Co., and Ernst & Young. Mr. Kalish is a certified public accountant.

Richard M. Figueroa. Mr. Figueroa has served as our Vice President and Assistant Secretary
since 2001 and as Vice President and Assistant Secretary of BRT Realty Trust since 2002. He joined
Georgetown Partners, Inc. in 1999, and serves as its Vice President. Mr. Figueroa is an attorney-at-law
and a member of the bar of the State of New York.

Justin Clair. Mr. Clair has served as our Assistant Vice President since 2010 and has been
employed by us since 2006. His responsibilities include sourcing new acquisition opportunities,
managing the portfolio, underwriting of investments and marketing.
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Item 2. Properties.

As of December 31, 2011, we owned 89 properties, one of which is vacant and one of which is a
50% tenancy in common interest, and participated in five joint ventures that own five properties. The
properties owned by us and our joint ventures are suitable and adequate for their current uses. The
aggregate net book value of our 89 properties as of December 31, 2011 was $413 million.

Our Properties

Percentage Conztggtual
of 2012 Approximate Rental Income
Type of Contractual Square Footage per

Location Property Rental Income(1) of Building Square Foot ($)
Baltimore, MD . . .............. Industrial 52% 367,000 $ 6.38
Parsippany, NJ . ............... Office 4.7 106,680 20.08
Hauppauge, NY ............... Flex 43 149,870 12.96
Royersford, PA . . ...... ... ... Retail(2) 4.1 194,451 9.94(2)
ElPaso, TX .................. Retail 3.2 110,179 13.21
Los Angeles, CA .............. Office(3) 3.2 106,262 13.46
Greensboro, NC . . ............. Theater 3.1 61,213 22.90
W. Hartford, CT . .............. Retail 3.0 47,174(5) 28.85
Brooklyn, NY . ................ Office 2.5 66,000 17.12
Knoxville, TN . ................ Retail 24 35,330 30.55
Philadelphia, PA . ... ..... ... ... Industrial 2.2 166,000 5.92
Tucker, GA .................. Health & Fitness 2.0 58,800 15.46
Cherry Hill, NJ . .. ............. Retail 1.7 115,500 10.75(11)
Kansas City, MO .............. Retail 1.6 88,807 8.32
Lake Charles, LA .............. Retail(7) 1.6 54,229 13.05
New York, NY . ............... Residential 1.6 125,000 5.60
Ronkonkoma, NY . ............. Flex 1.5 89,500 7.77
Cedar Park, TX ............... Retail(4) 1.5 50,810 13.39
Hamilton, OH ................ Health & Fitness 1.5 38,000 17.75
Columbus, OH . . .............. Retail(4) 14 96,924 6.72
Columbus, OH .. .............. Industrial 1.4 100,220 6.23
Ft. Myers, FL . . . .............. Retail 1.3 29,993 20.17
Plano, TX ................... Retail(4) 1.3 112,389 5.34
Grand Rapids, MI ............. Health & Fitness 1.3 130,000 4.59
Morrow, GA . ................ Retail 1.2 50,400 10.75
Chicago, IL . ................. Retail(6) 1.2 23,939 22.38
Sacoo ME . ................... Industrial 1.2 91,400 5.82
Plano, TX ................... Retail(4) 1.2 26,000 20.18
Wichita, KS .................. Retail(4) 1.1 88,108 5.78
Miami Springs, FL . ............ Retail(6) 1.1 25,000 20.35
Kennesaw, GA . ............... Retail(6) 1.1 32,052 15.77
Naples, FL . . ................. Retail(6) 1.1 15,912 30.25
Athens, GA .................. Retail(8) 1.1 41,280 11.60
Greenwood Village, CO ......... Retail 1.0 45,000 10.50
Champaign, IL .. .............. Retail 1.0 50,530 9.30(12)
Tyler, TX .. ..o Retail(4) 1.0 72,000 6.14
New Hyde Park, NY . ........... Industrial 1.0 38,000 11.36
Onalaska, WI . ................ Retail 1.0 63,919 6.75
Melville, NY . . ................ Industrial 9 51,351 8.33
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2012

Percentage Contractual
of 2012 Approximate Rental Income
Type of Contractual Square Footage per
Location Property Rental Income(1) of Building Square Foot ($)
Cary, NC . ... ... . . Retail(6) 9 33,490 12.72
Fayetteville, GA ............... Retail(4) .9 65,951 6.34
Niles, IL. . ................... Retail 9 33,089 12.09
Houston, TX ................. Retail 9 25,005 15.70
Richmond, VA .. .............. Retail(4) .8 38,788 9.58
Amarillo, TX . ................ Retail(4) .8 72,227 5.12
Virginia Beach, VA ... ....... ... Retail(4) .8 58,937 6.21
Selden, NY .................. Retail .8 14,550 24.67
Eugene, OR.................. Retail(6) .8 24,978 14.24
Pensacola, FL . .. .............. Retail(6) .8 22,700 15.26
Lexington, KY ................ Retail(4) .8 30,173 11.36
Grand Rapids, MI ............. Health & Fitness 7 72,000 4.66
Duluth, GA .................. Retail(4) i 50,260 6.64
ElPaso, TX .................. Retail(6) i 25,000 13.22
Newark, DE ... ............... Retail 7 23,547 14.00
Newport News, VA . . ........... Retail(4) 7 49,865 6.46
Durham, NC ................. Industrial i 46,181 6.89
Houston, TX ................. Retail 7 20,087 15.50
Hyannis, MA . ................ Retail .6 9,750 28.37
Gumnee, IL .. ................. Retail(4) .6 22,768 12.08
Batavia, NY . ................. Retail(6) .6 23,483 11.60
Crystal Lake, IL . .............. Retail .6 32,446 8.00
Bluffton, SC .. ................ Retail(4) .6 35,011 7.21
Somerville, MA . .............. Retail .6 12,054 20.74
Island Park, NY ............... Retail 5 6,125 37.55
Hauppauge, NY ............... Retail S 7,000 32.46
Bolingbrook, IL . .............. Retail 4 33,111 6.10
W. Hartford, CT . .............. Retail(10) 4 —(10) —(10)
Vicksburg, MS . ............... Retail 4 2,790 68.56
Everett, MA ... ............... Retail 4 18,572 9.45
Flowood, MS . ................ Retail 4 4,505 38.15
Houston, TX ................. Retail 4 12,000 14.25
Bastrop, LA .. ...... ... ... ... Retail 4 2,607 63.63
Monroe, LA .. ................ Retail 4 2,756 60.19
D’Iberville, MS . ... ............ Retail 4 2,650 60.91
Kentwood, LA ................ Retail 4 2,578 62.61
Monroe, LA .. ................ Retail 4 2,806 56.45
Marston Mills, MA . .. .......... Retail 4 8,775 18.00
Vicksburg, MS . ............... Retail 4 4,505 34.83
Monroeville, PA . .............. Retail 3 6,051 23.00
West Palm Beach, FL .. ......... Industrial 3 10,361 12.70
Gettysburg, PA . .. ....... ... .. Retail 3 2,944 43.27
Hanover, PA. . ................ Retail 3 2,702 46.01
Palmyra, PA .. ....... .. ... ..... Retail 3 2,798 40.63
Reading, PA .. ...... ... ... ... Retail 2 2,551 44.03
Reading, PA .. ...... ... ... ... Retail 2 2,754 40.15
Trexlertown, PA .. ............. Retail 2 3,004 36.07
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2012

Percentage Contractual
of 2012 Approximate Rental Income
Type of Contractual Square Footage per
Location Property Rental Income(1) of Building Square Foot ($)
Seattle, WA . ................. Retail q 3,038 21.40
Rosenberg, TX . ............... Retail N 8,000 5.33
New Hyde Park, NY . ........... Industrial(9) — 51,000 —
100% 4,263,545

(1) Represents the percentage of 2012 contractual rental income payable with respect to such property.

(2) This property is leased to nine tenants. Contractual rental income per square foot excludes 6,600
square feet which is vacant.

(3) An undivided 50% interest in this property is owned by us as tenant in common with an unrelated
entity. Percentage of contractual rental income indicated represents our share of 2012 contractual
rental income. Approximate square footage indicated represents the total rentable square footage
of the property.

(4) This property is leased to a retail furniture operator.
(5) The property is a supermarket. Additional parking for such property is identified in note 10 below.
(6) This property is leased to a retail office supply operator.

(7) This property has three tenants. Approximately 43% of the square footage is leased to a retail
office supply operator.

(8) This property has two tenants. Approximately 48% of the square footage is leased to a retail office
supply operator.

(9) Vacant property.
(10) This property is the additional parking lot for the property identified in note 5 above.

(11) Contractual rental income per square foot excludes 45,000 vacant square feet which is currently
being re-positioned.

(12) This property has two tenants.
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Properties Owned by Joint Ventures

The following table summarizes the specified information about the properties owned by joint
ventures in which we are a venture partner. We own a 50% economic interest in each joint venture.

Percentage
of our Share
of Rent Payable Approximate

2012
Contractual
Rental Income

Type of in 2012 to our  Square Footage per
Location Property  Joint Ventures of Building Square Foot(1)
Lincoln, NE .. ...... ... ... ... Retail 40.6% 112,260 $10.75
Milwaukee, WI . .. ... ... ... ... ... .... Industrial 37.9 927,685 1.21
Savannah, GA ............. ... ... .... Retail 11.9 45,973 7.67
Savannah, GA .......... ... ... ... .... Retail 8.3 101,550 2.44
Savannah, GA .......... ... ... ... .... Retail 13 7,959 5.03

100% 1,195,427

(1) Approximate square footage indicated represents the total rentable square footage of the property

owned by the joint venture.

The occupancy rate for our properties based on total rentable square footage, was 97.6% and
98.5% as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The occupancy rate for the properties owned by
our joint ventures, based on total rentable square footage, was 100% as of December 31, 2011 and

2010.
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As of December 31, 2011, the 89 properties owned by us and the five properties owned by our
joint ventures were located in 29 states. The following tables set forth certain information, presented by
state, related to our properties as of December 31, 2011:

Approximate

State Propertics Rental Income  Square Fee
New York ........ ... ... .. ....... 11 $ 6,415,421 621,879
Texas . ..o 11 5,320,552 533,697
Pennsylvania. ....................... 9 3,685,432 383,255
Georgia ........... i 6 3,186,872 298,743
Maryland . . ......... . ... L. 1 2,340,923 367,000
California. .. ............... ... ..... 1 1,430,749 106,262
Hinois . .. ... 6 2,141,998 195,883
New lJersey ............iiiiinn.. 2 2,899,300 222,180
Florida ......... .. ... .. ........ 5 2,073,118 103,966
North Carolina...................... 3 2,145,868 140,884
Connecticut . ..............0...... 2 1,561,013 47,174
Louisiana . ............. ... ......... 5 1,359,284 64,976
Ohio ....... ... ... i 3 1,950,247 235,144
Tennessee . ......... ... ... 1 1,079,367 35,330
Virginia . . ... ..o 3 1,059,605 147,590
Michigan . .......... .. ... ... ..... 2 931,868 202,000
Other ...... ... ... .. ... ... ... 18 5,570,940 557,582
@ $45,152,557 4,263,545

The following tables set forth certain information, presented by state, related to the properties
owned by our joint ventures as of December 31, 2011:

Our Share
of Rent Payable  Approximate
Number of  in 2012 to Our Building

State Properties  Joint Ventures  Square Feet
Nebraska . .. .. ... ooe 1 § 603,594 112,260
WISCONSIN - .+ oo 1 562,500 927,685
GORgia . . . oo 3 320,144 155482

5 §1486,238 1,195,427

25



Mortgage Debt
At December 31, 2011, we had:

* 38 first mortgages on 54 of the 89 properties we owned (including our 50% tenancy in common
interest, but excluding properties owned by our joint ventures); and

* $205.8 million of mortgage loans outstanding, bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.5% to
8.8%, with a weighted average interest rate of 5.9%. Substantially all of our mortgage loans
contain prepayment penalties.

The following table sets forth scheduled principal mortgage payments due for our properties as of
December 31, 2011, and assumes no payment is made on principal on any outstanding mortgage in
advance of its due date:

PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS DUE
IN YEAR INDICATED

YEAR (Amounts in Thousands)
2002 $ 33,499
2013 9,788
2014 . e 36,071
2005 L 24,719
2016 .. 29,153
Thereafter . . .. ... ... . . e 72,619
Total . . oo $205,849

At December 31, 2011, our joint ventures had first mortgages on four properties with outstanding
balances aggregating approximately $18.9 million, bearing interest at rates ranging from 5.8% to 6.0%
with a weighted average interest rate of 5.9%. Substantially all of these mortgages contain prepayment
penalties. The following table sets forth the scheduled principal mortgage payments due for properties
owned by our joint ventures as of December 31, 2011, and assumes no payment is made on principal
on any outstanding mortgage in advance of its due date:

PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS DUE
IN YEAR INDICATED

YEAR (Amounts in Thousands)
2012 . $ 544
2013 e 578
2014 . 613
2005 13,556
2016 . . 95
Thereafter . . . ... ... . 3,529
Total . ..o $18,915

Significant Tenants

As of December 31, 2011, no single property owned by us had a book value equal to or greater
than 10% of our total assets or had revenues which accounted for more than 10% of our aggregate
annual gross revenues in the year ended December 31, 2011.

Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc.

As of December 31, 2011, we owned a portfolio of eleven properties leased under a master lease
to Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc., which properties had an aggregate net book value equal to
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11.9% of the depreciated book value of our real estate investments, and revenues which in 2011
accounted for 10.7% of our rental income. Of the eleven properties, three are located in each of Texas
and Virginia, two are located in Georgia, and one is located in each of Kansas, Kentucky and South
Carolina. The properties contain buildings with an aggregate of approximately 612,130 square feet.

The properties are net leased to Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. pursuant to a master lease,
which expires on August 14, 2022. Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. is a New York Stock Exchange
listed company. The master lease provides for a current base rent of $4,310,000 per annum (which
accounts for 9.8% of our 2012 contractual rental income), increasing by 6% on each of August 15, 2012
and 2017, and provides the tenant with certain renewal options. Pursuant to the master lease, the
tenant is responsible for maintenance and repairs, and for real estate taxes and assessments on the
properties. The 2011 annual real estate taxes on the properties aggregated $781,000.

The mortgage loan, assumed by our subsidiary when it acquired these eleven properties in 2000, is
secured by mortgages/deeds of trust on all such properties in the principal amount of approximately
$23.3 million at December 31, 2011. The mortgage loan bears interest at 6.87% per annum, matures on
September 1, 2012 and is being amortized based on a 25-year amortization schedule. Assuming only
contractual payments are made on the principal amount of the mortgage loan, the principal balance
due on the maturity date will be approximately $22.8 million. Although the mortgage loan provides for
defeasance, it is generally not prepayable until 90 days prior to the maturity date. We believe that we
will be able to refinance such loan on terms more favorable than currently in effect, though no
assurance can be given that we will be successful in this regard.

Office Depot, Inc.

As of December 31, 2011, we owned a portfolio of nine properties, each of which is subject to a
lease with Office Depot, Inc. These properties have an aggregate net book value equal to 9% of the
depreciated book value of our real estate investments, accounted for 7.8% of our 2011 rental income
(excluding a property sold in 2011) and accounts for 7.8% of our 2012 contractual rental income. Two
properties are located in each of Florida and Georgia, and one is located in each of Illinois, Louisiana,
North Carolina, Oregon and Texas. The properties contain buildings with an aggregate of approximately
230,700 square feet.

Each property is subject to a separate lease. Seven of the leases contain cross-default provisions,
expire on September 30, 2018, and provide the tenant with four five-year renewal options. One lease
expires on June 30, 2013 and provides the tenant with three five-year renewal options, and one lease
expires on February 28, 2014 and provides the tenant with four five-year renewal options. Office
Depot, Inc. is a New York Stock Exchange listed company. The nine leases provide for an aggregate
current base rent of $3,541,000. The rent for seven of the properties increases every five years by 10%.
The rent for one property increases by 5% every five years and the rent for one property increases by
$20,000 every five years. Pursuant to the leases, the tenant is responsible for maintenance and repairs,
and for real estate taxes and assessments on the properties. The 2011 annual real estate taxes on the
properties aggregated $590,000.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchase of Equity Securities.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “OLP.” The
following table sets forth for the periods indicated, the high and low prices for our common stock as
reported by the New York Stock Exchange and the per share distributions declared on our common
stock.

2011 2010
Distribution Per Distribution Per
Quarter Ended High Low Share(1) High Low Share(1)
March 31 ...... $17.43  $14.51 $.33 $16.98 §$ 8.81 $.30
June 30 ....... 16.09 14.77 33 18.80 14.02 .30
September 30 . . . 16.33 11.52 33 17.53 13.74 .30
December 31 ... 17.71 14.00 33 18.14 15.01 33

(1) The dividends in the fourth quarter of 2011 and 2010 were distributed on January 4, 2012
and January 4, 2011, respectively.

As of March 2, 2012, there were 326 holders of record of our common stock.

We qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes. In order to maintain that status, we are
required to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our annual ordinary taxable income. The
amount and timing of future distributions will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will
depend upon our financial condition, earnings, business plan, cash flow and other factors. We intend to
make distributions in an amount at least equal to that necessary for us to maintain our status as a real
estate investment trust for Federal income tax purposes.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance of our common stock with the Standard and Poor’s
500 Index and a peer group index of publicly traded equity real estate investment trusts prepared by
the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts. As indicated, the graph assumes $100 was
invested on December 31, 2006 in our common stock and assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among One Liberty Properties, Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and the FTSE NAREIT Equity REITS Index
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——H+— One Liberty Properties, Inc. — A — S&P 500 ---©--- FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs

*  $100 invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending December 31.

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

One Liberty Properties, Inc. . ... 100.00 80.57 42.28 49.50 101.46 109.03
S&P 500 .................. 100.00 10549 66.46 84.05 96.71  98.75
FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs ... 100.00 84.31 52.50 67.20 85.98 93.11

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any shares of our outstanding common stock in October, November or
December 2011.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth the selected consolidated statement of operations data for each of
the periods indicated, all of which are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and
related notes. The selected financial data for each of 2011, 2010 and 2009 should be read together with
our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” below, where this data is discussed in more detail.

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

OPERATING DATA(1)
Total revenues(2) . . ... i i $ 45240 $ 40,984 $ 39,350 $ 35216 $ 32,894
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures . . ... ... 350 446 559 622 648
Gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint

VENLUIES « o v vt vt e et e e e e e — 107 — 297 583
Gain on sale of excess unimproved land . .. ............ — — — 1,830 —
Gain on settlement of debt . . . ......... ... ... ... ... 1,240 — — — —
Income from continuing operations. . . .. .............. 12,511 8,186 11,334 9,446 7,443
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . ........... 1,209 1,120 8,307 (4,554) 3,147
Net income attributable to One Liberty Properties, Inc. . . . .. 13,724 9,306 19,641 4,892 10,590
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

BasiC . . ... 13,801 11,465 10,651 10,183 10,069

Diluted . ... ... 13,851 11,510 10,812 10,183 10,069
Net income per common share—basic

Income from continuing operations . . ............... $ 87 $ g1 % 106 $ 93 3 74

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . . ........ .09 .10 18 (:45) 31
Net iNCOME . . v vt e e e e e e e e e e $ 96 $ 81 $ 184 § 48 § 105
Net income per common share—diluted

Income from continuing operations . . ............... $ 87 $ g8 105 0§ 93 3 74

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . . ........ .09 .10 77 (:45) 31
Net INCOME . o v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 96 $ 81 $ 182 § 48 $  1.05
Cash distributions per share of common stock(3).......... $ 132 $§ 123 § 08 $ 130 $ 211
Stock distributions per share of common stock . .......... — — 3 .80 — —
BALANCE SHEET DATA(1)
Real estate investments, Nt . . . ... . ... ..., $412,611  $391,763  $331,883  $339,073  $298,697
Properties held for sale and related assets . ............. — 10,678 14,810 49,284 45,345
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures . . ........... 5,093 4,777 5,839 5,857 6,570
Cash and cash equivalents. . .. ........ ... ....... ... 12,668 7,732 28,036 10,947 25,737
Available-for-sale securities . . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... .. 396 422 6,762 297 1,024
Total @SSELS . . v v vt e e e 460,736 444,623 408,686 429,105 406,634
Mortgages and loan payable . ...................... 205,849 215,308 190,518 225,514 222,035
Line of credit . . . ... ... . 20,000 36,200 27,000 27,000 —
Total liabilities . ... ... ... .. ... 241,789 265,440 228,558 265,130 235,395
Total equity . . . .. .ot 218,947 179,183 180,128 163,975 171,239
OTHER DATA(4)(5)
Funds from operations . . .. .......... ... .. .. ... .. $ 22,825 $ 18,160 $ 23,501 $ 19,935 $ 18,645
Funds from operations per common share:

Basic . .. ... $ 161 $ 158 § 221 $§ 196 $ 1.85

Diluted ... ... .. e $ 161 $ 158 $ 217 $ 196 § 185
Adjusted funds from operations . . ... .......... .. .. .. $ 21,430 $ 17,030 $ 22,293 $ 18,441 $ 16,621
Adjusted funds from operations per common share:

Basic . . ... $ 151 $ 149 $ 209 $ 181 § 1.65

Diluted ... ... ... . $ 151 $ 148 $§ 206 $ 181 $ 1.65

(1) Certain amounts reported in prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation; in
particular the restatement of prior periods for discontinued operations.

30



(2) Includes in 2009 a lease termination fee of $1,784.
(3) Includes a special cash distribution of $.67 per share in 2007.

(4) We consider funds from operations (“FFO”) and adjusted funds from operations (“AFFO”) to be relevant and
meaningful supplemental measures of the operating performance of an equity REIT, we do not use them as a
measure of liquidity. FFO and AFFO (i) do not represent cash generated from operations as defined by generally
accepted accounting principles, (ii) are not indicative of cash available to fund all cash needs, including distributions
and (iii) should not be considered as an alternative to net income for the purpose of evaluating our performance or
to cash flows as a measure of liquidity.

(5) Amounts reported in 2009 and 2008 have been adjusted to add back impairment charges in accordance with
NAREIT’s (as defined) updated guidance.

We compute FFO in accordance with the “White Paper on Funds From Operations” issued by the
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) and NAREIT’s related guidance.
FFO is defined in the White Paper as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepting
accounting principles), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus depreciation and
amortization, plus impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate and after adjustments for
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint
ventures will be calculated to reflect funds from operations on the same basis. In computing FFO, we
do not add back to net income the amortization of costs in connection with our financing activities or
depreciation of non-real estate assets. Since the NAREIT White Paper only provides guidelines for
computing FFO, the computation of FFO may vary from one REIT to another. We compute AFFO by
deducting from FFO our straightline rent accruals and amortization of lease intangibles (including our
share of our unconsolidated joint ventures).

We believe that FFO and AFFO are useful and standard supplemental measures of the operating
performance for equity REITs and are used frequently by securities analysts, investors and other
interested parties in evaluating equity REITs, many of which present FFO and AFFO when reporting
their operating results. FFO and AFFO are intended to exclude GAAP historical cost depreciation and
amortization of real estate assets, which assures that the value of real estate assets diminish
predictability over time. In fact, real estate values have historically risen and fallen with market
conditions. As a result, we believe that FFO and AFFO provide a performance measure that when
compared year over year, should reflect the impact to operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental
rates, operating costs, interest costs and other matters without the inclusion of depreciation and
amortization, providing a perspective that may not be necessarily apparent from net income. We also
consider FFO and AFFO to be useful to us in evaluating potential property acquisitions.

FFO and AFFO do not represent net income or cash flows from operations as defined by GAAP.
FFO and AFFO should not be considered to be an alternative to net income as a reliable measure of
our operating performance; nor should FFO and AFFO be considered an alternative to cash flows
from operating, investing or financing activities (as defined by GAAP) as measures of liquidity.

FFO and AFFO do not measure whether cash flow is sufficient to fund all of our cash needs,
including principal amortization, capital improvements and distributions to stockholders. FFO and
AFFO do not represent cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities as defined by GAAP.

Management recognizes that there are limitations in the use of FFO and AFFO. In evaluating our
performance, management is careful to examine GAAP measures such as net income and cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities. Management also reviews the reconciliation of net
income to FFO and AFFO.
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The table below provides a reconciliation of net income in accordance with GAAP to FFO and
AFFO for each of the indicated years (amounts in thousands):

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Net INCOME .« . v v v o e e e e e e e e $13,724 $ 9,306 $19,641 §$ 4,892 $10,590
Add: depreciation of properties . . .............. 9,588 8,829 9,001 8,971 8,248
Add: our share of depreciation in unconsolidated

joint ventures . ............. ..., 371 314 323 322 329
Add: impairment charges .................... — — 229 5,983 —
Add: amortization of deferred leasing costs . ... ... 74 53 64 64 61
Deduct: gain on sales of real estate . . ........... (932) (235)  (5,757) — —
Deduct: gain on dispositions of real estate of

unconsolidated joint ventures . . . .. ........... — (107) — (297) (583)
Funds from operations . ..................... 22,825 18,160 23,501 19,935 18,645
Deduct: straight line rent accruals and amortization

of lease intangibles . .................. . ... (1,397)  (1,135) (1,151) (1,394) (1,924)
Deduct: our share of straight line rent accruals and

amortization of lease intangibles of unconsolidated

JOINt VENtUIes . .. ..o oot 2 5 (57) (100) (100)
Adjusted funds from operations. . .............. $21,430 $17,030 $22,293 $18,441 $16,621

The table below provides a reconciliation of net income per common share (on a diluted basis) in
accordance with GAAP to FFO and AFFO.

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Netincome. .. ...t $ .96 $ .81 $1.82 § .48 $1.05
Add: depreciation of properties . ............... ... . ... .68 a7 .83 .88 .82
Add: our share of depreciation in unconsolidated joint ventures . .03 .03 .03 .03 .03
Add: impairment charges. . ........... ... ... — — .02 .59 —
Add: amortization of deferred leasing costs. ............... .01 — — .01 .01
Deduct: gain on sales of real estate . .................... (.07)  (.02) (.53) —
Deduct: gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated

JOINE VENTUICS .« . v vttt ettt e e et e e e e e e —  (.01) — (.03) (.06)
Funds from operations. . .. ....... ... ... 1.61 158 217 196  1.85
Deduct: straight line rent accruals and amortization of lease

intangibles . . .. ... (.10)  (.10)  (11) (14 (19
Deduct: our share of straight line rent accruals and amortization

of lease intangibles of unconsolidated joint ventures. . ... ... — — — (.01 (.01)
Adjusted funds from operations . . ........... ... ... .. $1.51 $1.48 $2.06 $1.81 $1.65

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

We are a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust. We acquire, own and
manage a geographically diversified portfolio of retail (including furniture and office supply stores),
industrial, office, flex, health and fitness and other properties, a substantial portion of which are under
long-term net leases. As of December 31, 2011, we owned 89 properties, one of which is vacant, and
one of which is a 50% tenancy in common interest. Our joint ventures owned a total of five properties.
The 94 properties are located in 29 states.
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We face a variety of risks and challenges in our business. As more fully described under Item 1.A.
Risk Factors, we, among other things, face the possibility we will not be able to lease our properties on
terms favorable to us or at all and that our tenants may not be able to pay their rental and other
obligations owing under their leases. In particular, during the recent national economic recession,
consumer confidence and retail spending declined, which negatively impacted certain of our retail
tenants. As a result, from 2008 through March 2011, four of our retail tenants sought bankruptcy
protection and several of our retail tenants obtained rent relief or negotiated lease renewals on
financial terms more favorable to such tenants.

We seek to manage the risk of our real property portfolio by diversifying among types of
properties and industries (i.e., 60.7%, 12.8%, 10.4% and 16.1% of our 2012 contractual rental income is
derived from retail, industrial, office, and other properties, respectively), tenant identity (no tenant
accounts for more than 10% of our 2012 contractual rental income), geography (2012 contractual rental
income exceeds 10% from properties in only two states), and lease expiration dates (through 2020,
there are only two years in which the percentage of our contractual rental income represented by
expiring leases exceeds 10% of our 2012 contractual rental income and approximately 43.6% of our
2012 contractual rental income is represented by leases expiring in 2021 and thereafter). We monitor
the risk of tenant non-payments through a variety of approaches tailored to the applicable situation.
Generally, based on our assessment of the credit risk posed by our tenants, we monitor a tenant’s
financial condition through one or more of the following actions: reviewing tenant financial statements,
obtaining other tenant related financial information, regular contact with tenant’s representatives,
tenant credit checks and regular management reviews of our tenants. In acquiring properties, we
balance an evaluation of the terms of the leases and the credit of the existing tenants with a
fundamental analysis of the real estate to be acquired, which analysis takes into account, among other
things, the estimated value of the property, local demographics and the ability to re-rent or dispose of
the property on favorable terms upon lease expiration or early termination.

In 2011, we:
* purchased six properties for an aggregate of $28 million,
* sold one property tenanted by Office Depot for a net gain of $932,000, and

e issued 2.7 million common shares and received net proceeds of approximately $40.6 million
which proceeds were used to, among other things, reduce the amount outstanding under our
credit line by approximately $26.2 million and repay mortgage debt of $7.7 million with a
weighted average interest rate of 7.9%.
Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Total Revenues

The following table compares revenues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Revenues:
Total revenues . .................. $45,240 $40,984  $4,256 10.4%

Total revenues. The increase is attributable to rental revenues of $4.2 million earned from
substantially all of the properties acquired by us since February 2010 (approximately $3.38 million and
$857,000 from properties acquired in 2010 and 2011, respectively), and $249,000 of real estate tax and
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expense reimbursements from tenants. Partially offsetting the increase was the $198,000 net decrease of
rental income from the property formerly tenanted by Robb & Stucky, a furniture retailer that sought
bankruptcy protection in February 2011 and the $198,000 decrease from lease amendments with tenants
at two properties.

Operating Expenses

The following table compares operating expenses for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Operating expenses:
Depreciation and amortization. . . ... .. $ 9599 §$ 8657 $ 942 10.9%
General and administrative . ......... 7,017 6,341 676 10.7%
Real estate acquisition costs . ........ 213 1,010 (797) (78.9)%
Real estate expenses . .. ............ 2,604 2,143 461 21.5%
Leaseholdrent .. ................. 308 308 — —
Total operating expenses .......... 19,741 18,459 1,282 6.9%
Operating income . ................. $25,499 $22,525  $2,974 13.2%

Depreciation and amortization expense. The increase is due to the $951,000 expense associated
with substantially all of the properties acquired since February 2010 (of which $300,000 relates to the
six properties acquired in 2011) and $84,000 relating to the depreciation of tenant improvements
partially offset by the inclusion in 2010 of $118,000 in amortization of the lease intangible associated
with the property formerly tenanted by Robb & Stucky.

General and administrative expenses. The increase is attributable to several factors including: (i) a
$500,000 increase in the annual amount payable pursuant to the compensation and services agreement;
(ii) a $100,000 annual fee paid to our vice-chairman which fee commenced in 2011; (iii) an increase,
due to higher compensation rates, of $130,000 in payroll and payroll related expenses; and (iv) an
increase of $94,000 in non-cash compensation expense primarily related to pay-for-performance
restricted stock units awarded in September 2010. Partially offsetting the increase was the inclusion in
2010 of $138,000 in professional fees in connection with a contemplated equity financing that was not
pursued.

Real estate acquisition costs. These expenses decreased due to the inclusion in 2010 of expenses
related to more acquisitions than in 2011.

Real estate expenses. Approximately $257,000 of the increase is attributable to real estate taxes, of
which $74,000 and $156,000 relate to properties we acquired in 2011 and 2010, respectively. The
balance of the increase is attributable to increases in various components of real estate expense, none
of which was individually significant.
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Other Income and Expenses

The following table compares other income and expenses for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Other income and expenses:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . . . $ 350 $ 446 $ (96) (21.5)%
Gain on disposition of real estate held by unconsolidated
jointventure . ............. . ... ... ... — 107 (107) (100)%
Gain on settlement of debt . . .................... 1,240 — 1,240 n/a
Other (loss) income . ................uu..... (35) 308 (343) (111.4)%
Interest:
Expense . ...... ... (13,675) (14,574) 899 (6.2)%
Amortization of deferred financing costs . .. ........ (868) (626) (242) 38.7%
Income from continuing operations . .. ............... 12,511 8,186 4,325 52.8%

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures. The decrease is attributable to our 50% share
of real estate acquisition costs incurred in connection with the purchase of a property in March 2011
and from the sale of a property in April 2010 at the time the related lease expired.

Gain on disposition of real estate held by unconsolidated joint venture. In 2010, we recognized a net
gain of $107,000 on the sale of a property owned by a joint venture. There was no comparable gain in
2011.

Gain on settlement of debt. This gain represents the satisfaction, at less than face value, of the
$8.9 million mortgage payable related to the property previously leased by Robb & Stucky. The $1.24
million gain is net of a $19,000 write off of the balance of related deferred mortgage costs.

Other (loss) income. The decrease is due to an impairment charge recorded on marketable
securities that had unrealized losses of $126,000 and that were sold in January 2012 and the inclusion
in 2010 of $68,000 in interest income from marketable securities which were sold in 2010 for a $149,000
gain.

Interest expense. The following table summarizes interest expense for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Interest expense:
Credit line interest .. .............. $ 987 $ 1,551  $(564) (36.4)%
Mortgage interest . ................ 12,688 13,023 (335) (2.6)%
Total ........ ... ... o oL $13,675 $14,574 $(899) (6.2)%

Credit line interest

The decrease is due to the $12.6 million, or 44.2%, reduction in the weighted average balance
outstanding under our line of credit. In February 2011, we applied $26.2 million of our public offering
proceeds to reduce the then outstanding balance on our credit line. The decrease in interest expense
was offset by an approximately $151,000 increase in such expense due to the change in the weighted
average interest rate from 5.24% for 2010 to 5.82% for 2011. Effective April 1, 2010, the interest rate
charged on the credit line increased to 6% (reduced to 5.5% effective August 5, 2011). In 2009 and
through March 31, 2010, we paid interest at LIBOR plus 2.15% (2.44% at March 31, 2010).
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Mortgage interest

The following table reflects the interest rate on our mortgage debt and principal amount of
outstanding mortgage debt, in each case on a weighted average basis:

Year Ended

December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Interest rate on mortgage debt ... ... 6.22% 6.39%  (0.17Y% (2.7)%
Principal amount of mortgage debt ... $204,085 $203910 $ 175 0.1%

The $335,000 decrease in mortgage interest expense is due primarily to the decrease in the
weighted average interest rate on outstanding mortgage debt. The interest rate decreased due to the
paydowns and settlements (i) in 2011 of $19.6 million of mortgage debt bearing a weighted average
interest of 7.52% and (ii) in 2010 of approximately $10.7 million of mortgage debt bearing a weighted
average interest rate of approximately 8.15%.

Amortization of deferred financing costs. The increase is due to $86,000 incurred in connection
with financings on four properties we acquired in 2010, $63,000 incurred in connection with the
amendment of our line of credit in January 2011and $99,000 due to the accelerated amortization of
deferred financing costs relating to two mortgage loans that were paid in full in February 2011.

Discontinued Operations

The following table compares discontinued operations for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, I
ncrease
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 (Decrease) % Change
Discontinued operations:
Income from operations . ............. $ 277 $ 885  $(608) (68.7)%
Net gainonsales ................... 932 235 697 297%
Income from discontinued operations . . . . .. $1,209 $1,120 $ 89 7.9%

Income from discontinued operations includes the operations of three of our properties, one of
which was sold during 2011 and two of which were sold in 2010.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Total Revenues

The following table compares revenues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 Difference % Change
Revenues:
Rental income, net . ............... $40,984 $37.566 $ 3,418 9.1%
Lease termination fee .............. — 1,784 (1,784) (100)%
Total revenues . . ................ $40,984 $39,350 $ 1,634 4.2%
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Rental Revenues

Rental income. A significant component of the increase is the $3 million of rental revenue
generated from the 14 properties we acquired in 2010, of which $1.7 million is attributable to our
February 2010 acquisition of a community shopping center. Partially offsetting the increase was an
approximately $657,000 decrease in rental income (representing the December 2010 rent of $116,000
that was not accrued and the $541,000 net write-off of the entire balance of unbilled rent receivable
and lease intangibles) resulting from Robb & Stucky’s bankruptcy filing. Robb & Stucky accounted for
$882,000 or 2.2% of our 2010 rental income. Approximately $496,000 of the increase represents real
estate tax and expense reimbursements from tenants from three properties we acquired in 2010.

Lease termination fee. In 2009, we received a $1.9 million lease termination payment from a retail
tenant which was offset by the $121,000 write-off of the entire balance of the unbilled rent receivable
and intangible lease asset related to this property. There was no comparable fee income in 2010.
Operating Expenses

The following table compares operating expenses for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 Difference % Change
Operating expenses:
Depreciation and amortization . . ...... $ 8657 $ 8261 $ 396 4.8%
General and administrative .......... 6,341 5,931 410 6.9%
Real estate acquisition costs . . . ....... 1,010 59 951 1,612%
Real estate expenses . .............. 2,143 1,216 927 76.2%
Leaseholdrent ................... 308 308 — —
Total operating expenses. . . ........ 18,459 15,775 2,684 17.0%
Operating income . . ................. $22,525 $23,575  $(1,050) (4.5)%

Depreciation and amortization. 'The increase is substantially due to depreciation and amortization
on the 14 properties we acquired in 2010.

General and administrative expense. The increase is attributable principally to the following items:
(1) a $200,000 increase in the annual fee payable pursuant to the compensation and services agreement;
and (ii) the inclusion of $138,000 of professional fees incurred in connection with an equity financing
that was not pursued. The net balance of the increase is attributable to increases in payroll,
amortization expense relating to our restricted stock awards and the award of pay-for-performance
restricted stock units, investor relations activities, and directors’ fees, none of which was material on an
individual basis. Partially offsetting this increase was an $87,000 decrease from 2009 in expenses relating
to litigation involving our former president’s activities.

Real estate acquisition costs. These expenses increased because of our acquisition of 14 properties.
We did not acquire any properties in 2009 but incurred $59,000 of such expense in 2009 in connection
with an acquisition completed in February 2010.

Real estate expenses. Approximately $513,000 of the increase results from real estate taxes and
expenses ($235,000 and $278,000, respectively) from three properties we acquired in 2010. The tenants
are contractually obligated to reimburse us, and have reimbursed us, for a substantial portion of these
expenses. Approximately $316,000 of the increase is attributable to 2010 real estate taxes, of which
$288,000 is attributable to the property tenanted by Robb & Stucky. There were also increases in
repairs, maintenance and other operating expenses at several properties.
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Other Income and Expenses

The following table compares other income and expenses for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 Difference % Change
Other income and expenses:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . . . $ 446 § 559 § (113) (202)%
Gain on disposition of real estate held by unconsolidated
JOoINt VENTUIE . ... ..ottt 107 — 107 n/a
Other income, including realized gain on sale of
available-for-sale securities and interest income . . . ... 308 358 50) (14.0)%
Interest:
Expense. .. ... (14,574)  (13,385)  (1,189) (8.9)%
Amortization of deferred financing costs ... ........ (626) (724) 98 13.5%
Income from settlement with former president .. . ... .. — 951 (951) (100)%

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures. Approximately $79,000 of the decrease results
primarily from a sale by a joint venture of its only property on April 30, 2010 at the same time the
related lease expired and approximately $61,000 relates to a decrease in rental income of another joint
venture.

Interest expense. The increase is due to increased interest expense on our outstanding mortgages
and credit line. Net mortgage interest expense increased by approximately $455,000 or 3.6%. Mortgage
interest expense increased by approximately $1.3 million due to the assumption, in connection with
acquisitions, of mortgage debt in the aggregate amount of $33.6 million and $7.5 million in connection
with the financing of certain properties, which increase was partially offset by the payoff or paydown of
mortgage loans aggregating $10.7 million, as well as regular monthly principal amortization of other
mortgages. The weighted average interest rate of the mortgages that were paid off and paid down in
2010 was approximately 8.2% and the weighted average interest rate of the mortgages we assumed and
on the properties we financed in 2010 is approximately 5.9%. In addition, interest expense relating to
our revolving line of credit increased by $734,000 due primarily to the increase, effective April 1, 2010,
in the interest rate charged thereunder.

Amortization of deferred financing costs. The decrease was primarily due to accelerated
amortization of deferred financing costs of $118,000 relating to a mortgage loan that was refinanced
during 2009. This was offset in part by the amortization of deferred financing costs that were incurred
in connection with new financings.

Income from settlement with former president. In November 2009, civil litigations commenced by us
as plaintiff, against our former president and chief executive officer, arising out of his inappropriate
financial dealings, were settled, and we received $900,000 in cash and 5,641 shares of our common
stock valued at $51,000 (based on the November 23, 2009 closing price). We were also assigned an
interest in a real estate consulting venture, the value of which was fully reserved against.
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Discontinued Operations

The following table sets forth a comparison of discontinued operations for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 Difference % Change
Discontinued operations:
Income from operations . ............. $ 885 $1,882 $ (997) (53.0)%
Impairment charges ................. — (229) 229 100%
Gain on troubled mortgage restructuring,
as a result of conveyance to mortgagee . . — 897 (897) (100)%
Net gainonsales ................... 235 5,757 (5,522)  (95.9)%
Income from discontinued operations . . . . .. $1,120 $8,307  $(7,187)  (86.5)%

Discontinued operations for 2010 includes the results of operations and the gain on sale of two
properties sold in 2010 and the results of operations for one property sold in 2011. The year ended
December 31, 2009 includes the results of operations of ten properties, five of which were conveyed by
us to the mortgagee in July 2009, three of which were sold in 2009 and three of which were sold in
2011 and 2010. Included in income from discontinued operations for 2009 is a $400,000 lease
termination payment from a retail tenant that had been paying its rent on a current basis, but vacated
the property in 2006. In March 2009, we sold this property and recorded an impairment charge of
$229,000 to recognize the loss on the sale. Also included in income from discontinued operations for
2009 is an $897,000 gain recognized in connection with the conveyance of five of our properties to the
mortgagee by deeds-in-lieu of foreclosure. These properties had formerly been leased to Circuit City
Stores Inc. which filed for protection under federal bankruptcy laws and rejected the leases for these
five properties.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity and capital include cash flow from our operations, cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale securities, borrowings under our revolving credit facility, refinancing
existing mortgage loans and obtaining mortgage loans secured by our unencumbered properties. Our
available liquidity at December 31, 2011 was approximately $48.1 million, including $12.7 million of
cash and cash equivalents, $396,000 of available-for-sale securities and $35 million available under our
revolving line of credit.

Liquidity and Financing

We expect to meet substantially all of our operating cash requirements (including dividend
payments) from cash flow from operations. To the extent that cash flow from operations is not
adequate to cover all of our operating needs, we will be required to use our available cash and cash
equivalents, sell our marketable securities or draw on our credit line (to the extent permitted) to satisfy
operating requirements.

Mortgage debt in aggregate principal amount of $79.3 million is payable from March 2012 through
December 31, 2014 (i.e., $33.5 million in 2012, $9.7 million in 2013 and $36.1 million in 2014). We
generally intend to refinance or extend the mortgage loans which mature in 2012 through 2014. Though
no assurance can be given in this regard, we believe that we will be able to refinance or extend the
repayment obligation of such debt because, among other things, approximately $28.2 million of such
mortgage debt secures properties with long term leases (i.e., expiring after 2021) and approximately
$15.7 million represents debt amortization payments, a portion of which will be paid from operating
cash flow. We intend to repay the amount not refinanced or extended from our existing funds and
sources of funds, including our available cash and our credit line (to the extent permitted and
available).
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We continually seek to refinance existing mortgage loans on terms we deem acceptable, in order to
generate additional liquidity. Additionally, in the normal course of our business, we sell properties
when we determine that it is in our best interests, which also generates additional liquidity. Further,
since each of our encumbered properties is subject to a non-recourse mortgage (with standard carve
outs), if our in-house evaluation of the market value of such property is substantially less than the
principal balance outstanding on the mortgage loan, we may determine to convey such property to the
mortgagee in order to terminate our mortgage obligations, including payment of interest, principal and
real estate taxes, with respect to such property.

Typically, we utilize funds from a credit facility to acquire a property and, thereafter secure long
term, fixed rate mortgage debt on such property. We apply the proceeds from the mortgage loan to
repay borrowings under the credit facility, thus providing us with the ability to re-borrow under the
credit facility for the acquisition of additional properties. As a result, in order to grow our business, it
is important to have a credit facility in place.

Credit Facility

We can borrow up to $55 million pursuant to our revolving credit facility which is available to us
for the acquisition of commercial real estate, repayment of mortgage debt, and for any other purpose,
provided, if used for a purpose other than a property acquisition or mortgage repayment, the amount
borrowed for such other purpose will not exceed the lesser of $6 million and 15% of the permitted
borrowing base. The facility matures on March 31, 2013 and bears interest at the greater of (i) 90 day
LIBOR plus 3% and (ii) 5.5%. There is an unused facility fee of 0.25% per annum on the difference
between the outstanding loan balance and $55 million. We are required to maintain at least $6 million
average outstanding collected deposit balances. The facility is guaranteed by our subsidiaries that own
unencumbered properties and is to be secured by the outstanding stock of any newly formed subsidiary.
Net proceeds received from the sale, financing or refinancing of properties are generally required to be
used to repay amounts outstanding under the facility.

The terms of our revolving credit facility include certain restrictions and covenants which may
limit, among other things, the incurrence of liens, and which require compliance with financial ratios
relating to, among other things, the minimum amount of tangible net worth, the minimum amount of
debt service coverage, the minimum amount of fixed charge coverage, the maximum amount of debt to
value, the minimum level of net income, certain investment limitations and the minimum value of
unencumbered properties and the number of such properties. Net proceeds received from the sale,
financing or refinancing of properties are generally required to be used to repay amounts outstanding
under our credit facility. At December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with the covenants under this
facility.
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Contractual Obligations

The following sets forth our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011, which includes
interest and amortization payments and balances due at maturity under outstanding mortgages secured
by our properties for the periods indicated. It also includes the amount due at maturity under our
credit facility.

Payment due by period

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than
(Dollars in thousands) Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Contractual Obligations
Mortgages payable—interest and amortization ... $ 86,197 $17,608 $21,205 $26,440  $20,944
Mortgages payable—balances due at maturity . ... 168,954 28170 35,452 46,177 59,155
Credit facility(1) . . . ... 20,000 — 20,000 — —
Purchase obligations(2) . ................... 19,192 3,551 7,141 7,271 1,229
Total . ... .. $294,343  $49,329  $83,798 $79,888  $81,328

(1) Represents the amount outstanding as of December 31, 2011. We may borrow up to $55,000 under
such facility.

(2) Includes $3,150 payable annually pursuant to the compensation and services agreement (at the rate
in effect at December 31, 2011 and assuming such agreement continues for only five years),
amounts payable to lease office space from a related party and amounts payable pursuant to a
ground lease.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $205.8 million of mortgage debt outstanding (excluding
mortgage indebtedness of our unconsolidated joint ventures), all of which is non-recourse (subject to
standard carve-outs). We expect that mortgage interest and amortization payments (excluding
repayments of principal at maturity) of approximately $38.8 million due through 2014 will be paid
primarily from cash generated from our operations. We anticipate that debt obligations due through
2014 of approximately $83.6 million, including $20 million currently outstanding under our credit
facility, will be paid primarily from cash and cash equivalents and mortgage financings and refinancings.
If we are unsuccessful in refinancing our existing indebtedness or financing our unencumbered
properties, our cash flow, funds available under our credit facility and available cash, if any, may not be
sufficient to repay all debt obligations when payments become due, and we may need to issue
additional equity, obtain long or short term debt, or dispose of properties on unfavorable terms.

Cash Distribution Policy

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. To
qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a
requirement that we distribute currently at least 90% of our ordinary taxable income to our
stockholders (pursuant to Internal Revenue Procedures). It is our current intention to comply with
these requirements and maintain our REIT status. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to
corporate federal, state or local income taxes on taxable income we distribute currently (in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code and applicable regulations) to our stockholders. If we fail to qualify as
a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to federal, state and local income taxes at regular
corporate rates and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent tax years. Even if we
qualify for federal taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income
and to federal income taxes on our undistributed taxable income (i.e., taxable income not distributed in
the amounts and in the time frames prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code and applicable
regulations thereunder) and are subject to federal excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income.
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It is our intention to pay to our stockholders within the time periods prescribed by the Internal
Revenue Code no less than 90%, and, if possible, 100% of our annual taxable income, including
taxable gains from the sale of real estate and recognized gains on the sale of securities. It will continue
to be our policy to make sufficient distributions to stockholders in order for us to maintain our REIT
status under the Internal Revenue Code.

In 2008, our board determined that, in view of the economic environment, we should conserve our
capital. As a result, all of our dividends declared in 2009 consisted of 90% stock and 10% cash,
pursuant to Revenue Procedures issued by the Internal Revenue Service. In 2010 and 2011, we declared
dividends (all in cash) of $1.23 and $1.32 per share, respectively. Our board of directors reviews the
dividend policy at each regularly scheduled quarterly board meeting to determine if any changes to our
dividend should be made.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain of our accounting policies
are particularly important to an understanding of our financial position and results of operations and
require the application of significant judgment by our management; as a result they are subject to a
degree of uncertainty. These critical accounting policies include the following, discussed below.

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Real Estate

The fair value of real estate acquired is allocated to acquired tangible assets, consisting of land and
building, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and
below-market leases and other value of in-place leases based in each case on their fair values. The fair
value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes land and building) is determined by
valuing the property as if it were vacant, and the “as-if-vacant” value is then allocated to land and
building based on management’s determination of relative fair values of these assets. We assess fair
value of the lease intangibles based on estimated cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount
rates and available market information. The fair values associated with below-market rental renewal
options are determined based on our experience and the relevant facts and circumstances that existed
at the time of the acquisitions. The portion of the values of the leases associated with below-market
renewal options that are likely to be exercised are amortized to rental income over the respective
renewal periods. The allocation made by management may have a positive or negative effect on net
income and may have an effect on the assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.

Revenues

Our revenues, which are substantially derived from rental income, include rental income that our
tenants pay in accordance with the terms of their respective leases reported on a straight line basis over
the term of each lease. It is our policy not to record straight-line rent beyond the expected useful life
of a building. Since many of our leases provide for rental increases at specified intervals, straight line
basis accounting requires us to record as an asset and include in revenues, unbilled rent receivables
which we will only receive if the tenant makes all rent payments required through the expiration of the
term of the lease. Accordingly, our management must determine, in its judgment, that the unbilled rent
receivable applicable to each specific tenant is collectible. We review unbilled rent receivables on a
quarterly basis and take into consideration the tenant’s payment history and the financial condition of
the tenant. In the event that the collectability of an unbilled rent receivable is in doubt, we are
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required to take a reserve against the receivable or a direct write off of the receivable, which has an
adverse affect on net income for the year in which the reserve or direct write off is taken, and will
decrease total assets and stockholders’ equity.

Carrying Value of Real Estate Portfolio

We review our real estate portfolio on a quarterly basis to ascertain if there are any indicators of
impairment to the carrying value of any of our real estate assets, including deferred costs and
intangibles, in order to determine if there is any need for an impairment charge. In reviewing the
portfolio, we examine the type of asset, the current financial statements or other available financial
information of the tenant, the economic situation in the areca in which the asset is located, the
economic situation in the industry in which the tenant is involved and the timeliness of the payments
made by the tenant under its lease, as well as any current correspondence that may have been had with
the tenant, including property inspection reports. For each real estate asset owned for which indicators
of impairment exist, if the undiscounted cash flow analysis yields an amount which is less than the
asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the estimated fair value is
less than the asset’s carrying amount. The estimated fair value is determined using a discounted cash
flow model of the expected future cash flows through the useful life of the property. Real estate assets
that are expected to be disposed of are valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs
to sell on an individual asset basis. We generally do not obtain any independent appraisals in
determining value but rely on our own analysis and valuations. Any impairment charge taken with
respect to any part of our real estate portfolio will reduce our net income and reduce assets and
stockholders’ equity to the extent of the amount of any impairment charge, but it will not affect our
cash flow or our distributions until such time as we dispose of the property.

Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Our primary market risk exposure is the effect of changes in interest rates on the interest cost of
draws on our revolving variable rate credit facility and the effect of changes in the fair value of our
interest rate swap agreements. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including
governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and political
considerations and other factors beyond our control.

At December 31, 2011, we had five interest rate swap agreements outstanding (including one held
by two of our unconsolidated joint ventures). The fair market value of the interest rate swaps is
dependent upon existing market interest rates and swap spreads, which change over time. As of
December 31, 2011, if there had been a 1% increase in forward interest rates, the fair market value of
the interest rate swaps and net unrealized gain on derivative instruments would have increased by
approximately $848,000. If there were a 1% decrease in forward interest rates, the fair market value of
the interest rate swaps and net unrealized gain on derivative instruments would have decreased by
approximately $1,042,000. These changes would not have any impact on our net income or cash.

From time-to-time, we utilize interest rate swaps to limit interest rate risk. These swaps are used
for hedging purposes-not for speculation. We do not enter into interest rate swaps for trading purposes.

Our mortgage debt (excluding our mortgages subject to the interest rate swap agreements), bears
interest at fixed rates and accordingly, the effect of changes in interest rates would not impact the
amount of interest expense that we incur under these mortgages. Our credit facility is a revolving
variable rate facility which is sensitive to interest rates. Under current market conditions, we do not
believe that our risk of material potential losses in future earnings, fair values and/or cash flows from
near-term changes in market rates that we consider reasonably possible is material.

We assessed the market risk for our revolving credit facility and believe that there is no
foreseeable market risk because interest is charged at the greater of (i) 90 day LIBOR plus 3% and
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(ii) 5.5% per annum. At December 31, 2011, 90 day LIBOR plus 3% was approximately 3.6%;
therefore, a 1% increase or decrease would not have any impact on our interest expense related to this
facility.

The fair market value of our long term debt is estimated based on discounting future cash flows at
interest rates that our management believes reflect the risks associated with long term debt of similar
risk and duration.

The following table sets forth our debt obligations by scheduled principal cash flow payments and
maturity date, weighted average interest rates and estimated fair market value at December 31, 2011:

For the Year Ended December 31,

Fai
Maa:'ll:et

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total Value
Fixed rate:
Long term debt ... $33,499 $ 9,788 $36,071 $24,719 $29,153 $72,619 $205,849 $216,792
Weighted average

interest rate . . . . 6.00% 5.98% 5.88% 5.84% 5.86% 5.90% 5.91% 4.5%
Variable rate:
Long term debt(1) . — $20,000 — — — — $ 20,000 $ 20,000

(1) Our credit facility matures on March 31, 2013 and bears interest at the greater of (i) 5.5% and
(ii) 90 day LIBOR plus 3%.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

This information appears in Item 15(a) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporated
into this Item 8 by reference thereto.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

A review and evaluation was performed by our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Based on that review and evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that our current
disclosure controls and procedures, as designed and implemented, were effective. There have been no
significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect our internal
controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation. There were no significant material weaknesses
identified in the course of such review and evaluation and, therefore, we took no corrective measures.

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial
officers and effected by a company’s board, management and other personnel to provide reasonable
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assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with GAAP, and includes those policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of a company;

 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of a
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
a company; and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of a company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011. In making this assessment, our management used criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, our management believes that, as of December 31, 2011, our internal
control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an audit report
on management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. This report appears on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Apart from certain information concerning our executive officers which is set forth in Part I of this
Annual Report, additional information required by this Item 10 shall be included in our proxy
statement for our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed with the SEC not later than
April 30, 2012, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information concerning our executive compensation required by this Item 11 shall be included
in our proxy statement for our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed with the SEC not later
than April 30, 2012, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information concerning our beneficial owners and management required by this Item 12 shall
be included in our proxy statement for our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed with the
SEC not later than April 30, 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about shares of our common stock that may be issued
upon the exercise of options, warrants and rights under our 2009 Stock Incentive Plan as of
December 31, 2011:

Number of
securities
Number of remaining available
securities for future issuance
to be issued Weighted- under equity
upon exercise average compensation
of outstanding exercise price plans (excluding
options, of outstanding securities
warrants and  options, warrants reflected in
Plan Category rights and rights column(a))(3)
(a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
hOIderS(1) . . oo oe e e e e e 200,000(2) — 183,090
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders. ... ... ... ... .. . . . — — —
Total .. ... 200,000 — 183,090

(1) Ouwur 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, which was approved by our stockholders in June 2009, is our only
equity compensation plan under which equity compensation currently may be awarded. This Plan
permits us to grant stock options, restricted stock and performance based awards to our
employees, officers, directors and consultants. There are no options outstanding under our 2009
Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Represents an aggregate of up to 200,000 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to restricted
stock units. The shares underlying these units vest on June 30, 2017 if and to the extent specified
performance or market conditions are satisfied, assuming continued employment.

(3) Does not give effect to 109,450 restricted stock awards granted effective January 16, 2012.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information concerning certain relationships, related transactions and director independence
required by this Item 13 shall be included in our proxy statement for our 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders, to be filed with the SEC not later than April 30, 2012 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information concerning our principal accounting fees required by this Item 14 shall be
included in our proxy statement for our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed with the SEC
not later than April 30, 2012, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:

(1) The following financial statements of the Company are included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K:

—Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ............... F-1 through F-2
—Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets .. .......... ... ... ... F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income .. ........... ... ... ... ... .. F-4
Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income .. ......... F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . ......... ... ... ... ....... F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ........................ F-8 through F-38

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

—Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation. . .. ............. F-39 through F-43

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is
shown in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits:

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of One Liberty Properties, Inc., dated July 20,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to One Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

3.2 Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of One Liberty
Properties, Inc. filed with the State of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland on June 17,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to One Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005).

3.3 Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of One Liberty
Properties, Inc. filed with the State of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland on June 21,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to One Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005).

3.4 By-Laws of One Liberty Properties, Inc., as amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to One Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 12, 2007).

4.1* One Liberty Properties, Inc. 2009 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to One Liberty Properties, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010).

4.2 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to One
Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-2, Registration No. 333-86850,
filed on April 24, 2002 and declared effective on May 24, 2002).
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*

14.1

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

321

322
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Seconded Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2010, by and
among One Liberty Properties, Inc., Valley National Bank, Merchants Bank Division, Bank
Leumi USA, Israel Discount Bank of New York and Manufacturers and Traders Trust
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on January 10, 2011).

First Amendment dated as of January 6, 2011 to the Second Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2010, between VNB New York Corp. as assignee of
Valley National Bank, Merchants Bank Division, Bank Leumi, USA, Manufacturers and
Traders Trust Company, Israel Discount Bank of New York, and One Liberty

Properties, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on January 10, 2011).

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of
August 5, 2011, between VNB New York Corp., Bank Leumi USA, Israel Discount Bank of
New York, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company and One Liberty Properties, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
August 15, 2011).

Compensation and Services Agreement effective as of January 1, 2007 between One Liberty
Properties, Inc. and Majestic Property Management Corp. (incorporated by reference to
One Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2007).

Form of Performance Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 15, 2010).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010).

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to One
Liberty Properties, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 20006).

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

The file number for all the exhibits incorporated by reference is 001-09279 other than exhibit 4.2
whose file number is 333-86850.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.

March 14, 2012 By: /s/ PATRICK J. CALLAN, JR.

Patrick J. Callan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ FREDRIC H. GOULD
Fredric H. Gould

Chairman of the Board of Directors March 14, 2012

/s/ PATRICK J. CALLAN, JR. President, Director and Chief Executive
Patrick J. Callan, Jr Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

March 14, 2012

/s/ JOSEPH A. AMATO

Director March 14, 2012
Joseph A. Amato
/s/ CHARLES BIEDERMAN .
- Director March 14, 2012
Charles Biederman
/s/ JAMES J. BURNS )
Director March 14, 2012
James J. Burns
/s/ JOSEPH A. DELUCA )
Director March 14, 2012
Joseph A. DeLuca
/s/ JEFFREY A. GOULD .
Director March 14, 2012
Jeffrey A. Gould
/s/ MATTHEW J. GOULD .
Director March 14, 2012

Matthew J. Gould
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Signature Title Date

/s/ Louls P. KAROL

T ouis P. Karol Director March 14, 2012
ouis P. Karo
/s/ J. ROBERT LOVEJOY )
- Director March 14, 2012
J. Robert Lovejoy
/s/ EUGENE 1. ZURIFF .
) Director March 14, 2012
Eugene 1. Zuriff
/s/ DAVID W. KALISH Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer March 14, 2012

David W. Kalish (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ KAREN DUNLEAVY Vice President, Financial

Karen Dunleavy (Principal Accounting Officer) March 14, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of One Liberty Properties, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income,
equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011 of the Company and our report dated March 14, 2012 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2012



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of One Liberty Properties, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated
statements of income, equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2011. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), One Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 14, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2012
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Par Value)

ASSETS
Real estate investments, at cost
Land . . ... . e
Buildings and improvements. . . . . ... ..

Total real estate investments, at COSt. . . . . ..ottt e e
Less accumulated depreciation. . . . ... ...ttt

Real estate investments, Net . . . . ... ... i e e

Property held for sale (including related assets of $808) .. ... .................
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures . .................. .. ... ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . ... ... .. .
Available-for-sale securities . .. ... ... ... L
Unbilled rent receivable . ........ ... ... . ... .
Unamortized intangible lease assets . .. ........... ... .. . .. .. . ...
Escrow, deposits and other assets and receivables .. ........................
Investment in BRT Realty Trust at market (related party).....................
Unamortized deferred financing costs . . .. . ... ... i

Total ASSelS . . . o vt e

Liabilities:
Mortgages payable . .. .. ...
Line of credit . . . .. .ot
Dividends payable . . . . . .. ..
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . .. ....... .. ... .. . L ..
Unamortized intangible lease liabilities . ... ......... ... .. .. .. ... ... ...

Total liabilities . . . . . . ..o
Commitments and cONtingencCies . . . . ... .. ... v v e e
Equity:

One Liberty Properties, Inc. stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value; 12,500 shares authorized; none issued. . ..........
Common stock, $1 par value; 25,000 shares authorized; 14,213 and 11,212 shares
issued and outstanding . . . . . ... L
Paid-in capital . . . . . ..

Accumulated other comprehensive loss . .. ....... .. .. .. . L L oL,
Accumulated undistributed net income ... ...... ... .. L L L o oL

Total One Liberty Properties, Inc. stockholders’ equity. .. .................
Non-controlling interest in joint venture . . . .. ... ... ...t

Total equity . . . . oot
Total liabilities and equity . . . . . ... oot

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,

2011 2010
$135,099  $126,697
340,343 319,203
475442 445900
62,831 54,137
412,611 391,763
— 10,678
5,093 4,777
12,668 7,732
396 422
12,567 11,149
11,996 10,887
2,856 4,684
235 266
2,314 2,265
$460,736  $444,623
$205,849  $215,308
20,000 36,200
4,805 3,806
5,969 5,144
5,166 4,982
241,789 265,440
14213 11212
189,486 147,158
(1,019) (156)
15,605 20,969
218,285 179,183
662 —
218,947 179,183
$460,736  $444,623




ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues:
Rental inCOME, NEL . . . . v v ot e e e e e e e e e e $ 45240 §$40984 §$ 37,566
Lease termination fee . . ... ... ... ... e — — 1,784
Total TEVENUES . . . . o o e e e e e e e e e e e e 45,240 40,984 39,350
Operating expenses:
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... ... ... ... 9,599 8,657 8,261
General and administrative (including $2,685, $2,083 and $1,932, respectively, to
related party) . . . . ... 7,017 6,341 5,931
Real estate acquiSition COSES . . . . . oo ittt e 213 1,010 59
Real estate expenses (including $600, $600 and $550, respectively, to related party) . . 2,604 2,143 1,216
Leasehold rent . . . . . ... 308 308 308
Total Operating EXpPenses . . « . o v v v v v v e e e e e e e e 19,741 18,459 15,775
Operating iNCOME . . . . . .ttt e e et e e 25,499 22,525 23,575
Other income and expenses:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . ... ................. 350 446 559
Gain on disposition of real estate—unconsolidated joint venture . ............. — 107 —
Gain on settlement of debt . . . . . . .. .. . ... 1,240 — —
Other (Ioss) Income . . . ... .. (35) 308 358
Interest:
EXPense . . . o v (13,675)  (14,574)  (13,385)
Amortization of deferred financing costs . ... ........ ... .. . L L. (868) (626) (724)
Income from settlement with former president . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — — 951
Income from continuing operations . . . . ......... ... ... e 12,511 8,186 11,334
Discontinued operations:
Income from Operations. . . . . ... ... 277 885 1,882
Impairment charge . .. ... ... ... . .. ... — — (229)
Gain on troubled mortgage restructuring, as a result of conveyance to mortgagee . . . — — 897
Netgainonsales . . ... ... 932 235 5,757
Income from discontinued operations . . ............... . .. .. . . ... 1,209 1,120 8,307
NetinCOME . . . . ..ot 13,720 9,306 19,641
Plus net loss attributable to non-controlling interest . . .. ... ........ ... ... .. 4 — —
Net income attributable to One Liberty Properties, Inc. . . .. ................. $ 13,724 § 9306 $ 19,641
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic. . . ... 13,801 11,465 10,651
Diluted . . . ... 13,851 11,510 10,812
Net income per common share—basic:
Income from continuing OPErations . . . . . .. .o vt v v it e $ 8 $ 71 $ 1.06
Income from discontinued operations . .. ........... .. ... ... .09 .10 78
Net income per common share—basic . . . .. ....... ... ... .. . . $ 96 $ 81 § 184
Net income per common share—diluted:
Income from continuing OPErations . . . . . . ..o vt vt in et $ 8 $ 71§ 105
Income from discontinued operations . .. ........... .. ... ... .09 .10 i
Net income per common share—diluted . ... ........ .. ... ... ... ........ $ 96 $ 81§ 1.82

See accompanying notes.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2011

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Balances, December 31,2008 ... ..........

Distributions—common stock
Cash—$.08 per share . . ...............
Stock—$.80 per share . . . .. ............
Repurchase of common stock . ............
Retirement of common stock . . ...........
Restricted stock vesting . ... ....... ..., ..
Compensation expense—restricted stock . ... ..
Netincome . . .. ..................
Other comprehensive income—
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities . . . ... ...
Net unrealized gain on derivative instruments

Comprehensive income . .. ..............
Balances, December 31,2009 .. ...........

Distributions—common stock
Cash—$1.23 pershare . ...............
Issuance of stock for stock dividend obligation at
December 31,2009 . .................
Restricted stock vesting . . ... ......... ...
Shares issued through dividend reinvestment plan
Compensation expense—restricted stock . ... ..
Netincome . .. ...................
Other comprehensive income—
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities . . . ... ... L.
Net unrealized loss on derivative instruments

Comprehensive income . .. ..............
Balances, December 31,2010 .. ...........

Distributions—common stock
Cash—$1.32 pershare . ...............
Share issued in public offering—net of offering
costs of $282 . . ... ... ...
Restricted stock vesting . .. ..............
Shares issued through dividend reinvestment plan
Contribution from non-controlling interest partner
Compensation expense—restricted stock . ... ..
Net income (loss) . ... ..............
Other comprehensive income—
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities . . .. ...
Net unrealized loss on derivative instruments
OLP’s share of joint venture net unrealized
loss on derivative instruments . . . . ... ..

Comprehensive income . . ...............
Balances, December 31, 2011 .. ...........

Non-
Accumulated Controlling
Other Accumulated Interest in
Common  Paid-in Comprehensive Undistributed Joint

Stock Capital Income (Loss) Net Income Venture Total
$ 9,962  $138,688 $ (239) $ 15,564 $ — $163,975
— — — (948) — (948)
1,160 4,955 — (8,471) — (2,356)
(268) (1,148) — — — (1,416)
(6) (45) — — — (51)
31 31) — — — —
— 853 — — — 853
— — — 19,641 — 19,641
— — 319 — — 319
— — 111 — — 111
— — — — — 20,071
10,879 143,272 191 25,786 — 180,128
— — — (14,123) — (14,123)
216 1,888 — — — 2,104
36 (36) — — — —
81 1,119 — — — 1,200
— 915 — — — 915
— — — 9,306 — 9,306
— — (60) — — (60)
— — (287) — — (287)
_ _ — — — 8,959
11,212 147,158 (156) 20,969 — 179,183
— — — (19,088) — (19,088)
2,700 37,869 — — — 40,569
46 (46) — — — —
255 3,496 — — — 3,751
— — — — 666 666
— 1,009 — — — 1,009
— — — 13,724 4) 13,720
— — 66 — — 66
— — (747) — — (747)
— — (182) — (182)
— — — — — 12,857
$14,213  $189,486 $(1,019) $ 15,605 $662 $218,947

See accompanying notes.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEetinCOME . . . . oo v i
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Gain on settlement of debt. . . . ... ... . L o Lo
Gain on sale of real estate and other assets . . . . ........................
Gain on troubled mortgage restructuring, as a result of conveyance to mortgagee . . .
Increase in rental income from straight-lining of rent .. ... ................
Decrease in rental income resulting from bad debt expense . .. ..............
Decrease (increase) in rental income from amortization of intangibles relating to
laSES . o i
Impairment charge on available-for-sale securities . . . .. ......... .. .. ... ...
Impairment charge on real estate . ... ... ... ... .. ..t
Amortization of restricted StOCK €Xpense . . . . . ...
Retirement of common stock . . ...... ... . . L
Gain on disposition of real estate held by unconsolidated joint venture . . . .. ... ..
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . .. ..................
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures . . . . ... ..........
Depreciation and amortization . .. ... ... ... ... e
Amortization and write off of financing costs . . . .. ... ... Lo oL
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in escrow, deposits, other assets and receivables . . ... .............
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . ... ...........

Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. ... ....... ... .. .........

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of real estate and improvements . . . . ... .. ... ...
Net proceeds from sale of real estate . . ... ... ... ... . .
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures . . . ... ... ... ... . ... ...
Distributions of return of capital from unconsolidated joint ventures . ..........
Prepaid tenant improvement allowance . . . ......... .. ... .. .. . . ..
Net proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities . . .. .................
Purchase of available-for-sale securities . . . .. ....... .. ... .. .. .. .. ... ...

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . ... .................

Cash flows from financing activities:
Scheduled amortization payments of mortgages payable . . .. ................
Repayment of mortgages payable . . . ... .. ... ...
Proceeds from mortgage financings . .. ... ... ... .. ... oo
Proceeds from common stock offering, net . ... ....... ... .. .. . ... . .. ...
Proceeds from bank line of credit . .. ......... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... ...
Repayment on bank line of credit . ... ....... . ... ... . .. o L
Issuance of shares through dividend reinvestment plan. . .. ... ..............
Payment of financing costs . . . . .. ... L
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest . . .. ....................
Cash distributions to common stockholders . . .. ....... .. ... .. .. .. ... ...
Repurchase of common stock . ... ... .. L L
Expenses associated with stock issuance . .. ... ....... ... .. ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . .. .................

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. ....................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . .. ............. ... ......

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . .. ......... ... .. .. ... ... ... ..

Continued on next page.
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$13,720  $ 9306 $ 19,641
(1,240) — —
(932) (384)  (5,757)
— — (897)
(1,434) (693)  (1,336)
467 525 619

37 (442) 23

126 — —

— — 229
1,009 915 853
— — (51)

— (107) —
(350) (446) (559)
423 628 507
9,662 8,882 9,066
868 627 1,012
(590)  (1,023) (976)
36 1,120 (682)
21,802 18,908 21,692
(29,414)  (38,813) (576)
11,544 4136 24,014
(669) — (7)
95 991 86

—  (1,750) —

— 6,345 4,495

— —  (10,683)
(18,444)  (29,091) 17,329
(5530)  (5393)  (5.692)
(15302)  (10,689)  (14,088)
12,455 7,500 2,559
40,569 — —
28,500 28,700 —
(44,700)  (19,500) —
3,751 1,200 —
(741)  (1,272) (208)
666 — —
(18,090)  (10,564)  (2,939)
— — (1,416)

— (103) (148)
1,578 (10,121)  (21,932)
4936 (20,304) 17,089
7,732 28,036 10,947
$ 12,668 $ 7,732 $ 28,036




ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

(Amounts in Thousands)

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for interest expense . . .. . ........... .. ...
Cash paid during the year for income taxes . . .. .......... . ... ... ......

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Mortgage debt extinguished upon conveyance of properties to mortgagee by

deeds-in-lieu of foreclosure . ... ....... .. .. .. ...
Properties conveyed t0 MOTtEagee . . . . . . oottt
Liabilities extinguished upon transfer to mortgagee . . .....................
Common stock dividend—portion paid in shares of Company’s common stock . .. ..
Assumption of mortgages payable in connection with purchase (sale) of real estate . . .
Settlement of mortgage debt . . ... ... .. ...
Purchase accounting allocations—intangible lease assets . ... ................
Purchase accounting allocations—intangible lease liabilities . . .. ... ...........

Reclassification of 2010 prepaid tenant improvement allowance to building

IMPIOVEMENLS . . . ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ 13872 $ 14464 $ 15287
70 73 67

$ — $ — $ 8706
— — 8,075

— — 543

— 2,209 6,263

— 33548 (9,069)
1,259 — —
2,387 5,500 —
(614)  (1,040) —
1,750 — —



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BACKGROUND

One Liberty Properties, Inc. (“OLP”) was incorporated in 1982 in Maryland. OLP is a
self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust (“REIT”"). OLP acquires, owns and
manages a geographically diversified portfolio of retail (including furniture and office supply stores),
industrial, office, flex, health and fitness and other properties, a substantial portion of which are under
long-term net leases. As of December 31, 2011, OLP owned 89 properties, one of which is owned by a
consolidated joint venture and one of which is a 50% tenancy in common interest. OLP’s
unconsolidated joint ventures owned a total of five properties. The 94 properties are located in 29
states.

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of OLP, its wholly
owned subsidiaries and its investment in a joint venture in which the Company, as defined, has a
controlling interest. OLP and its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as the “Company”. Material
intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

With respect to its consolidated joint venture, in which the Company has a 90% interest, the
Company has determined that (i) such entity is not a variable interest entity and (ii) the Company
exercises substantial operating control over such entity and accordingly, such entity should be
consolidated for financial statement purposes. Current accounting guidance provides a framework for
determining whether an entity is a variable interest entity and if consolidation of an entity in which it
owns an interest is appropriate.

Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

The Company accounts for its investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity
method of accounting. All investments in unconsolidated joint ventures have sufficient equity at risk to
permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support and, as a
group, the holders of the equity at risk have power through voting rights to direct the activities of the
venture. As a result, none of the Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures are variable-interest entities.
In addition, although the Company is the managing member, it does not exercise substantial operating
control over these entities, and therefore the entities are not consolidated. These investments are
recorded initially at cost, as investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, and subsequently adjusted for
its share of equity in earnings, cash contributions and distributions. None of the joint venture debt is
recourse to the Company, subject to standard carve-outs.

The Company has elected to follow the cumulative earnings approach when assessing, for the
statement of cash flows, whether the distribution from the investee is a return of the investor’s
investment as compared to a return on its investment. The source of the cash generated by the investee
to fund the distribution is not a factor in the analysis (that is, it does not matter whether the cash was
generated through investee refinancing, sale of assets or operating results).

Consequently, the investor only considers the relationship between the cash received from the
investee to its equity in the undistributed earnings of the investee, on a cumulative basis, in assessing
whether the distribution from the investee is a return on or return of its investment. Cash received



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

from the unconsolidated entity is presumed to be a return on the investment to the extent that, on a
cumulative basis, distributions received by the investor are less than its share of the equity in the
undistributed earnings of the entity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Management believes that the estimates and assumptions that are most important to the portrayal
of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations, in that they require management’s most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments, form the basis of the accounting policies deemed to be most
significant to the Company. These significant accounting policies relate to revenues and the value of
the Company’s real estate portfolio. Management believes its estimates and assumptions related to
these significant accounting policies are appropriate under the circumstances; however, should future
events or occurrences result in unanticipated consequences, there could be a material impact on the
Company’s future financial condition or results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

Rental income includes the base rent that each tenant is required to pay in accordance with the
terms of their respective leases reported on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
Company’s policy is not to record straight-line rent beyond the expected useful life of a building. In
order for management to determine, in its judgment, that the unbilled rent receivable applicable to
each specific property is collectible, management reviews unbilled rent receivables on a quarterly basis
and takes into consideration the tenant’s payment history and financial condition. Some of the leases
provide for additional contingent rental revenue in the form of percentage rents and increases based on
the consumer price index. The percentage rents are based upon the level of sales achieved by the lessee
and are recorded once the required sales levels are reached.

Substantially all of the Company’s properties are subject to long-term net leases under which the
tenant is typically responsible to pay for real estate taxes, insurance and ordinary maintenance and
repairs for the property directly to the vendor and the Company is not the primary obligor with respect
to such items. As a result, the revenue and expenses relating to these properties is recorded on a net
basis. For certain properties, the tenants, in addition to base rent, also pay the Company their pro rata
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses. The income and expenses associated with these
properties is recorded on a gross basis. During 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded additional rental
income for the reimbursement of expenses in the amount of $794,000 and $496,000, respectively. No
additional rental income was recorded during 2009.

Gains or losses on disposition of properties are recorded when the criteria under GAAP have been
met.



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for fair value measurements based on the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, a fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity and the
reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions. In accordance with the fair
value hierarchy, Level 1 assets/liabilities are valued based on quoted prices for identical instruments in
active markets, Level 2 assets/liabilities are valued based on quoted prices in active markets for similar
instruments, on quoted prices in less active or inactive markets, or on other “observable” market inputs
and Level 3 assets/liabilities are valued based significantly on “unobservable” market inputs. The
Company does not currently own any financial instruments that are classified as Level 3.

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Real Estate

The Company allocates the purchase price of real estate among land, building, improvements and
intangibles, such as the value of above, below and at-market leases and origination costs associated with
in-place leases. The Company assesses the fair value of the lease intangibles and the assumed mortgage
based on estimated cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount rates and available market
information. Such inputs are Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the tangible assets of
an acquired property is determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The value, as
determined, is allocated to land, buildings and improvements based on management’s determination.

In valuing an acquired property’s intangibles, factors considered by management include an
estimate of carrying costs during the expected lease-up periods, such as real estate taxes, insurance,
other operating expenses, and estimates of lost rental revenue during the expected lease-up periods
based on its evaluation of current market demand. Management also estimates costs to execute similar
leases, including leasing commissions, tenant improvements, legal and other related costs.

The values of acquired above-market and below-market leases are recorded based on the present
values (using discount rates which reflect the risks associated with the leases acquired) of the
differences between the contractual amounts to be received and management’s estimate of market lease
rates, measured over the terms of the respective leases that management deemed appropriate at the
time of the acquisitions. Such valuations include a consideration of the non-cancellable terms of the
respective leases as well as any applicable renewal period(s). The fair values associated with below-
market rental renewal options are determined based on the Company’s experience and the relevant
facts and circumstances that existed at the time of the acquisitions. The values of above-market leases
are amortized to rental income over the terms of the respective non-cancelable lease periods. The
portion of the values of below-market leases associated with the original non-cancelable lease terms are
amortized to rental income over the terms of the respective non-cancelable lease periods. The portion
of the values of the leases associated with below-market renewal options that are likely of exercise are
amortized to rental income over the respective renewal periods. The value of other intangible assets
(including leasing commissions and tenant improvements) is amortized to expense over the applicable
terms of the respective leases. If a lease were to be terminated prior to its stated expiration or not
renewed, all unamortized amounts relating to that lease would be recognized in operations at that time.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The estimated useful lives of building and intangible assets or liabilities generally range from two to
forty years.

Accounting for Long-Lived Assets and Impairment of Real Estate Owned

The Company reviews its real estate portfolio on a quarterly basis to ascertain if there are any
indicators of impairment to the value of any of its real estate assets, including deferred costs and
intangibles, in order to determine if there is any need for an impairment charge. In reviewing the
portfolio, the Company examines one or more of the following: the type of asset, the current financial
statements or other available financial information of the tenant, the economic situation in the area in
which the asset is located, the economic situation in the industry in which the tenant is involved, the
timeliness of the payments made by the tenant under its lease, and as any current communication with
the tenant, including property inspection reports. For each real estate asset owned for which indicators
of impairment exist, if the undiscounted cash flow analysis yields an amount which is less than the
asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the estimated fair value is
less than the asset’s carrying amount. The estimated fair value is determined using a discounted cash
flow model of the expected future cash flows through the useful life of the property. The analysis
includes an estimate of the future cash flows that are expected to result from the real estate
investment’s use and eventual disposition. These cash flows consider factors such as expected future
operating income, trends and prospects, the effects of leasing demand, competition and other factors.
Real estate assets that are classified as held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less costs to sell on an individual asset basis. A $229,000 impairment charge was recorded in 2009
on a property that was sold. There were no impairment charges required for 2011 and 2010.

Real estate investments include costs of development and redevelopment activities, and
construction in progress. Capitalized costs, including interest and other carrying costs during the
construction and/or renovation periods, are included in the cost of the related asset and charged to
operations through depreciation over the asset’s estimated useful life. Interest capitalized amounted to
$36,000 in 2011. A variety of costs are incurred in the acquisition, development and leasing of a
property, such as pre-construction costs essential to the development of the property, development
costs, constructions costs, interest costs, real estate taxes, and other costs incurred during the period of
development. After a determination is made to capitalize a cost, it is allocated to the specific
component of a project that is benefited. The Company ceases capitalization on the portions
substantially completed and occupied, or held available for occupancy, and capitalizes only those costs
associated with the portions under development. The Company considers a construction project to be
substantially completed and held available for occupancy upon the completion of tenant improvements.

A conditional asset retirement obligation (“CARO”) is a legal obligation to perform an asset
retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement is conditional on a future event
that may or may not be within the control of the Company. The Company would record a liability for a
CARO if the fair value of the obligation can be reasonably estimated. There were no CARO’s
recorded by the Company during the three years ended December 31, 2011.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased are
considered to be cash equivalents. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents in high quality
financial institutions.

Escrow, Deposits and Other Assets and Receivables

Escrow, deposits and other assets and receivables include $1,083,000 and $1,184,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, of restricted cash relating to real estate taxes, insurance and
other escrows.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of our tenants to make required rent payments. If the financial condition of a specific tenant
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of its ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance in allowance for doubtful accounts was
$335,000 and $977,000, respectively, recorded as a reduction to accounts receivable. The balance at
December 31, 2011 is net of a $1,109,000 write off, primarily related to Robb & Stucky, a former
tenant which vacated the Company’s property in June 2011 in the course of its liquidation after filing
for bankruptcy protection in early 2011. The Company records bad debt expense as a reduction of
rental income. For 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded bad debt expense of $467,000, $525,000
and $619,000, respectively. Of these amounts $2,000 and $75,000 were recorded in discontinued
operations for 2010 and 2009, respectively. There was no bad debt expense in discontinued operations
for 2011.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of buildings is computed on the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of
40 years for commercial properties and 27%2 years for the Company’s residential property. Depreciation
for improvements is computed on the straight line method over the lesser of the remaining lease term
or its estimated useful life. Depreciation ceases when a property is deemed “held for sale”. If a
property which was deemed “held for sale” is reclassified to a “held and used” property, “catch-up”
depreciation is recorded. Leasehold interest and the related ground lease payments are amortized over
the initial lease term of the leasehold position. Depreciation expense, including amortization of a
leasehold position, lease origination costs, and capitalized lease commissions amounted to $9,599,000,
$8,657,000 and $8,261,000 for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Mortgage and credit line costs are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the respective debt obligations, which approximates the effective interest method. At December 31,
2011 and 2010, accumulated amortization of such costs was $3,016,000 and $2,764,000, respectively.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Federal Income Taxes

The Company has qualified as a real estate investment trust under the applicable provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, the Company will not be subject to federal income
taxes on amounts distributed to stockholders providing it distributes at least 90% of its taxable income
and meets certain other conditions.

Distributions during 2011 were treated as ordinary income. Distributions during 2010 included
1.3% treated as capital gain distributions, with the balance treated as ordinary income.

The Company follows a two-step approach for evaluating uncertain tax positions. Recognition (step
one) occurs when an enterprise concludes that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits, is
more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (step two) determines the
amount of benefit that more-likely-than-not will be realized upon settlement. Derecognition of a tax
position that was previously recognized would occur when a company subsequently determines that a
tax position no longer meets the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained. The use of a
valuation allowance as a substitute for derecognition of tax positions is prohibited. The Company has
not identified any uncertain tax positions requiring accrual.

Investment in Available-For-Sale Securities

The Company determines the classification of equity and debt securities at the time of purchase
and reassesses the classification at each reporting date. At December 31, 2011, all marketable securities
have been classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value. The fair value of the Company’s
equity and debt investment in publicly-traded companies is determined based upon the closing trading
price of the equity and debt securities as of the balance sheet date and unrealized gains and losses on
these securities are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Unrealized losses that
are determined to be other-than-temporary are recognized in earnings.

The Company’s investment in 37,081 common shares of BRT Realty Trust (“BRT”), a related party
of the Company, (accounting for less than 1% of the total voting power of BRT), was purchased at a
cost of $132,000 and has a fair market value at December 31, 2011 of $235,000.

At December 31, 2011, the total cumulative net unrealized gain of $86,000 on all investments in
equity and debt securities is reported as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the
stockholders’ equity section. In addition, certain marketable securities that had unrealized losses of
$126,000 were sold in January 2012 and accordingly, these losses were determined to be
other-than-temporary. In 2011, this unrealized loss was reclassified from other comprehensive income
against earnings as an impairment charge.
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NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Realized gains and losses are determined using the average cost method and are included in
“Other income” on the income statement. During 2011, 2010 and 2009, sales proceeds and gross
realized gains and losses on securities classified as available-for-sale were (amounts in thousands):

% 2010 2009
Sales proceeds . . ..ot $—  $6,345 $4,495
Gross realized losses. . .. ...... ... .. . — — —
Gross realized gains . . ....... ... ... L i . — 149 —

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains accounts at various financial institutions, all of which accounts are
federally insured.

The Company’s properties are located in 29 states. During 2011, 2010 and 2009, 12.6%, 12.6% and
14.6% of rental revenues, respectively, were attributable to real estate investments located in Texas and
14.2%, 15.0% and 16.0% of rental revenues, respectively, were attributable to real estate investments
located in New York. No other state contributed over 10% to the Company’s rental revenues.

The Company owns eleven real estate investments that are located in six states and are net leased
to Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc., a retail furniture company, pursuant to a master lease. The
initial term of the net lease expires August 2022, with several renewal options. These real estate
investments, which represented 11.9% of the depreciated book value of real estate investments at
December 31, 2011, generated rental revenues of approximately $4,844,000 in each year, or 10.7%,
11.8% and 12.3%, of the Company’s total revenues for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In 2008, the Company acquired eight real estate investments, located in seven states, net leased to
Office Depot, Inc., a retail office supply company, pursuant to eight separate leases. The initial term of
the net leases expire September 2018, with several renewal options. The Company sold one of these
investments in May 2011 (see Note 4). The remaining seven real estate investments plus two other real
estate investments, net leased to Office Depot, Inc. and purchased prior to 2008, represented 9.0% of
the depreciated book value of real estate investments at December 31, 2011 and generated rental
revenues of $3,545,000 in each of 2011, 2010 and 2009, or 7.8%, 8.6% and 9.0%, of the Company’s
total revenues, respectively.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share was determined by dividing net income allocable to common stockholders
for each year by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each
year, including the effect of the 2,700,000 shares sold in February 2011 as described in Note 10. Net
income is also allocated to the unvested restricted stock outstanding during each year, as the restricted
stock is entitled to receive dividends and is therefore considered a participating security. Unvested
restricted stock is not allocated net losses and/or any excess of dividends declared over net income;
such amounts are allocated entirely to the common stockholders other than the holders of unvested
restricted stock. The restricted stock units awarded under the Pay-for-Performance program described
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NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

in Note 10 are excluded from the basic earnings per share calculation, as these units are not
participating securities.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
rights exercisable for, or convertible into, common stock were exercised or converted or otherwise
resulted in the issuance of common stock that shared in the earnings of the Company. The weighted
average number of common shares outstanding used for the diluted earnings per share calculations
includes the full impact of common stock issued in connection with the dividends paid in April, July
and October 2009 and January 2010, as of the dividend declaration date, as the shares were
contingently issuable as of that date. Such stock dividends were included in basic earnings per share as
of the issuance date.

For 2011 and 2010, the diluted weighted average number of common shares also includes 50,000
and 30,000 shares respectively, representing the weighted average impact of the 100,000 shares of
common stock underlying the restricted stock units awarded on September 14, 2010 under the Pay-For-
Performance Program. These 100,000 shares may vest upon satisfaction of the total stockholder return
threshold and were weighted for each quarterly period, based on the number of shares that would be
issued based on the current market price and dividends paid at the end of each quarterly period
assuming the end of that quarterly period was the end of the vesting period The remaining 100,000
shares of common stock underlying the restricted stock units awarded under the Pay-For-Performance
Program are not included, as they did not meet the defined performance metric during any quarterly
period during 2011 and 2010. There were no options outstanding to purchase shares of common stock
or other rights exercisable for, or convertible into, common stock in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Earnings per share for 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the data presented in the
consolidated statements of income for those periods.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of earnings per
share calculations for 2011 (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations . . . . ...............ui.. $12,511
Plus net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest . ............... 4
Less earnings allocated to unvested shares. ... ................... (460)
Income from continuing operations available for common stockholders . . 12,055
Discontinued operations . . . . ... ...t 1,209
Net income available for common stockholders, basic and diluted . . . . .. $13,264
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share—weighted average shares .. 13,801
Effect of diluted securities:
Restricted stock units awarded under Pay-for-Performance program . 50
Denominator for diluted earnings per share—weighted average
ShATES . . . o e 13,851
Earnings per common share, basic .. ......... ... ... .. .. $ .96
Earnings per common share, diluted. . . . ......... .. .. .. .. .. ... $ .9
Income from continuing operations . .................iiii... $12,515
Income from discontinued operations . . .. ............. ... 1,209
Net income attributable to One Liberty Properties, Inc. . ............. $13,724

Segment Reporting

Substantially all of the Company’s real estate assets are comprised of real estate owned that is net
leased to tenants on a long-term basis. Therefore, the Company operates predominantly in one industry
segment.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company’s objective in using derivatives, and in particular interest rate swaps, is to add
stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. The Company does
not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company records all derivatives on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The
valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. In addition, the Company
incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and
the respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. These counterparties
are generally larger financial institutions engaged in providing a variety of financial services. These
institutions generally face similar risks regarding adverse changes in market and economic conditions,
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NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

including, but not limited to, fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, equity and commodity prices
and credit spreads.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the
derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and
apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to
apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability
in expected future cash flows are considered cash flow hedges. For derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is initially reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income (outside of earnings) and subsequently reclassified to
earnings in the period in which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized directly in earnings. For derivatives not
designated as cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized directly in
earnings in the period in which the change occurs.

Stock Based Compensation

The fair value of restricted stock grants and restricted stock units, determined as of the date of
grant, is amortized into general and administrative expense over the respective vesting period. The
deferred compensation to be recognized as expense is net of certain forfeiture and performance
assumptions which are re-evaluated quarterly.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,
Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements which requires a number of additional disclosures
regarding fair value measurements, including the amount of transfers between Level 1 and 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, the reasons for transfers in or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and activity for
recurring Level 3 measures. In addition, the amendments clarify certain existing disclosure
requirements related to the level at which fair value disclosures should be disaggregated and the
requirement to provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the
fair value of assets or liabilities classified as Level 2 or 3. These required disclosures were effective
January 1, 2010, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the
roll-forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements. Those disclosures were effective for the
Company on January 1, 2011. There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 and no significant
transfers into or out of level 3 during 2011 and 2010. The adoption did not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

In May 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement: Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS. This update
defines fair value, clarifies a framework to measure fair value, and requires specific disclosures of fair
value measurements. The guidance will be effective for the Company’s interim and annual reporting
periods beginning January 1, 2012, and applied prospectively. The Company does not expect adoption
of this guidance to have a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations, or
disclosures.
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NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income. This
standard eliminates the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in
the statement of stockholders’ equity and instead requires the components of other comprehensive
income to be presented either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements. This standard is intended to enhance comparability between
entities that report under GAAP and to provide a more consistent method of presenting other
comprehensive income transactions that affect an entity’s equity. This standard is effective for the
Company on January 1, 2012 and is to be applied retrospectively. The amendments in this update do
not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other
comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income but will change the way the information is
presented in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Reclassification

Property management costs of $600,000, $600,000 and $550,000 per annum incurred under the
compensation and services agreement were reclassified from general and administrative expenses to
real estate operating expenses for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Such amounts had been included
as a component of general and administrative expenses in 2010 and 2009.
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NOTE 3—REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND MINIMUM FUTURE RENTALS

Real Estate Acquisitions

The following chart details the Company’s real estate acquisitions during 2011 and 2010 (amounts

in thousands):

Third Party

Contract Real Estate
Purchase Acquisition
Description of Property Date(s) Acquired Price Terms of Payment Costs(a)
Retail discount store,
Bolingbrook, Illinois . . . .. ............... March 4, 2011 $ 2,325 All cash § 22
Shipping distribution center,
Durham, North Carolina . . . ............... July 29, 2011 3,975 All cash 35
Health club,
Hamilton, Ohio . ... ................... August 9, 2011 7,900 All cash 54
Two retail stores,
Niles and Crystal Lake, Illinois . . . .. ......... September 14, 2011 8,000 All cash 76
Retail property—redevelopment,
Cherry Hill, New Jersey(b) .. .............. October 27, 2011 5,800 All cash —(b)
Other . .. ... . . — 26
Total for 2011 . . . . ... ... ... ... $28,000 $ 213
Community shopping center,
Royersford, Pennsylvania . . . ... ............ February 28, 2010 $23,500 Cash and $17,700 mortgage $ 399
assumption. Mortgage
matures May 2014 with
interest at 5.67% per annum.
Retail store,
Monroeville, Pennsylvania . . ... ............ April 28, 2010 1,313(c) All cash 54
Retail department store,
Kansas City, Missouri . . . .. ............... June 30, 2010 8,950 All cash 46
Six fast food restaurants,
Pennsylvania (sale/leaseback transactions). . . . .. .. July 30, 2010 and 7,958 All cash 216
August 31, 2010
Supermarket and related parking lot,
West Hartford, Connecticut . . .. ... ......... October 7, 2010 20,550 Cash and $13,000 mortgage 205
assumption. Mortgage
matures May 2016 with
interest at 6.1% per annum.
Two retail stores,
Houston, Texas . . . . .. ... ... .. .......... November 17, 2010 7,434 Cash and $2,900 mortgage 70
assumption. Mortgage
matures January 2017 with
interest at 5.98% per annum.
Restaurant,
Island Park, New York . .. ... ............. December 22, 2010 2,600 All cash 20
Total for 2010 . . .. ......... .. ... ... ... $72,305 $1,010

(a) Included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

(b) Owned by a consolidated joint venture in which the Company has a 90% interest. Transaction costs of $578,000 incurred with this

asset acquisition were capitalized.

(c)  Purchase price includes $300 of contracted building improvements.
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With the exception of the Cherry Hill, New Jersey and the Royersford, Pennsylvania properties, all
of the properties purchased by the Company in 2011 and 2010 are currently 100% occupied and are
each leased by a single tenant pursuant to a long term net lease. The Cherry Hill, New Jersey retail
property is being redeveloped and is currently 61% leased by one major tenant pursuant to a long term
net lease, with a contractual rent commencement date of April 1, 2012. The Royersford, Pennsylvania
community shopping center is currently leased to nine separate tenants and a significant portion of the
rental income from this property is derived from ground leases.

As a result of the 2011 and 2010 purchases, the Company recorded intangible lease assets of
$2,387,000 and $5,500,000, respectively, and intangible lease liabilities of $614,000 and $1,040,000,
respectively, representing the value of the acquired leases and origination costs. As of December 31,
2011, the weighted average amortization period for the 2011 and 2010 acquisitions is 10.3 and
12.1 years for the intangible lease assets and 24.0 and 24.1 years for the intangible lease liabilities,
respectively. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, accumulated amortization of intangible lease assets was
$4,081,000 and $3,046,000, respectively and accumulated amortization of intangible lease liabilities was
$2,053,000 and $1,622,000, respectively. The mortgages assumed by the Company in 2010 were
determined to be at market.

The Company recognized a net (decrease) increase in rental revenue of $(37,000), $442,000 and
($23,000) for the amortization of the above/below market leases for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
For 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized amortization expense of $844,000, $620,000, and
$534,000, respectively, relating to the amortization of the origination costs. The results for 2011 and
2010 include an increase in rental revenue of $7,000 and $462,000, respectively, and additional
amortization expense of $5,000 and $115,000, respectively, resulting from the accelerated expiration of
certain leases

The unamortized balance of intangible lease assets as a result of acquired above market leases at
December 31, 2011 will be deducted from rental income through 2027 as follows (amounts in
thousands):

2002 . e $ 394
2008 . e 393
2004 . e 387
2005 . e 382
2000, . e 372
Thereafter . ... ... . e 1,323
TOtal . . o $3,251

F-20



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 3—REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND MINIMUM FUTURE RENTALS (Continued)

The unamortized balance of intangible lease liabilities as a result of acquired below market leases
at December 31, 2011 will be added to rental income through 2041 as follows (amounts in thousands):

2002 . e $ 442
2008 . e 442
2004 . e 442
2005 . e 442
2000 . o e 442
Thereafter . ... ... . e 2,956
TOtal . . o $5,166

The unamortized balance of origination costs associated with in-place leases at December 31, 2011
will be charged to amortization expense through 2027 as follows (amounts in thousands):

2002 . e $ 930
2003 . 928
2004 . 916
2005 . 908
2006 . . 830
Thereafter . . .. ... e 4,233
TOtal . . $8,745

Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

During the period January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010, the Company acquired 14 properties
for a total purchase price of approximately $72,300,000, sold five properties and conveyed to the mortgagee
by deeds-in-licu of foreclosure five properties (as discussed in Note 4). The following table summarizes, on
an unaudited pro forma basis, the combined results of operations of the Company for 2010 and 2009, as if
all properties acquired, sold and conveyed to the mortgagee were completed as of January 1, 2009. The
total acquisition costs of $1,069,000 (including $59,000 paid in 2009) paid in connection with the 2010
purchases are included below as a reduction of net income in the 2009 period. This unaudited pro forma
information does not purport to represent what the actual results of operations of the Company would have
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been had the acquisitions, sales and conveyed properties occurred as of January 1, 2009, nor does it purport
to predict the results of operations for future periods. (Amounts in thousands, except per share data.)

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Pro forma revenues . . ... ... ..ot $45,677 $47,420
Pro forma netincome. ... ...... ... ... ... ... $11,017 $13,601
Pro forma weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:
Basic .. ... 11,465 10,651
Diluted. . .. ... 11,510 10,812
Pro forma net income per common share:
Basic . ... $ 96 $§ 128
Diluted. . .. .o $ 96 $ 126

Revenues and net income related to these properties already included in the 2010 results of
operations amounted to $3,488,000 and $440,000, respectively.

This pro forma information does not include 2011 acquisitions as such acquisitions were
determined not to be material in the aggregate.
Minimum Future Rentals

The minimum future contractual rentals (without taking into consideration straight-line rent or
amortization of intangibles) to be received over the next five years and thereafter on the operating
leases in effect at December 31, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

200 . $ 45,153
2003 . 44,772
2004 . e 41,922
2005 . e 37,848
2006 . o e 36,035
Thereafter. . . .. ... e 205,567
TOtal . . o e $411,297

Included in the minimum future rentals are rentals from one property pursuant to a long term
ground lease from the fee owner. The Company pays annual fixed leasehold rent of $296,875 through
July 2014 with 25% increases every five years through March 3, 2020 and the Company has a right to
extend the lease for up to five 5-year and one seven month renewal options.

Except for one vacant property, the rental properties owned at December 31, 2011 are leased
under noncancellable operating leases with current expirations ranging from 2012 to 2038, with certain
tenant renewal rights. Substantially all lease agreements are net lease arrangements which require the

F-22



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 3—REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND MINIMUM FUTURE RENTALS (Continued)

tenant to pay rent and substantially all the expenses of the leased property including maintenance,
taxes, utilities and insurance. For certain properties, the tenants pay the Company, in addition to the
base rent, their pro rata share of real estate taxes and operating expenses. Certain lease agreements
provide for periodic rental increases and others provide for increases based on the consumer price
index.

Unbilled Rent Receivable

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded an unbilled rent receivable aggregating
$12,567,000 and $11,149,000, respectively, excluding $101,000 classified as assets related to property
held for sale at December 31, 2010, representing rent reported on a straight-line basis in excess of
rental payments required under the term of the respective leases. This amount is to be billed and
received pursuant to the lease terms during the next 19 years.

During 2011, the Company wrote off $118,000 of unbilled “straight-line” rent receivable, relating
to a property sold during 2011. During 2010, the Company wrote off or recorded accelerated
amortization of $1,152,000 of unbilled “‘straight-line” rent receivable, which includes $149,000 relating
to a property sold during 2010 and $1,003,000 relating to Robb & Stucky. During 2009, the Company
wrote-off or recorded accelerated amortization of $1,545,000 of unbilled “straight-line” rent receivable.

Lease Termination Fee Income

In June 2009, the Company received a $1,905,000 lease termination fee from a retail tenant that
had been paying its rent on a current basis, but had vacated the property in March 2009. Offsetting this
amount is the write off of the entire balance of the unbilled rent receivable and the intangible lease
asset related to this property, aggregating $121,000. The net amount of $1,784,000 is recorded on the
income statement as “Lease termination fee” income in the year ended December 31, 2009. The
Company re-leased this property effective November 2009.

NOTE 4—DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Discontinued operations include real estate investments sold in 2011, 2010 and 2009, as well as
real estate investments conveyed in July 2009 to a mortgagee by deeds-in-lieu of foreclosure. These
operations were previously reclassified to discontinued operations in all periods presented. The related
assets sold in 2011 were also previously reclassified to assets held for sale as of December 31, 2010.

Real estate investments are classified as held for sale when management has determined that it has
met the criteria established under GAAP. Real estate investments which are held for sale are not
depreciated and their operations are included in a separate component of income on the consolidated
statements of income under the caption Discontinued Operations.
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Sales of Properties

During 2011, the Company sold a property, leased to Office Depot and located in California, to an
unrelated party for $11,544,000, net of closing costs, and realized a gain of approximately $932,000,
which is included in net gain on sales in discontinued operations in the results of operations for 2011.
The net book value of the property, including related assets of $808,000, was $10,678,000 at
December 31, 2010 and is included in property held for sale on the accompanying balance sheet.

During 2010, the Company sold to unrelated parties, two properties in separate transactions, for an
aggregate of approximately $4,100,000, net of closing costs, and realized an aggregate gain of $235,000,
which is included in net gain on sales in discontinued operations in the results of operations for 2010.

In February 2009, the Company entered into a lease termination agreement with a retail tenant of
a Texas property that had been paying its rent on a current basis, but had vacated the property in 2006.
Pursuant to the agreement, the tenant paid the Company $400,000 as consideration for the lease
termination. On March 5, 2009, the Company sold this property for $1,900,000 and recorded an
impairment charge of $229,000 to recognize the loss. This is in addition to an impairment charge of
$752,000 taken in 2008. The related property income and expenses, including the 2009 impairment
charge and the lease termination fee, are included in discontinued operations.

In October 2009, in unrelated transactions, the Company sold two properties for an aggregate of
$31,788,000, resulting in gains totaling $5,757,000, which are included in net gain on sales in
discontinued operations in the results of operations. The Company incurred a $492,000 fee for
terminating the interest rate swap agreement relating to the mortgage debt on one of these properties.

The following summarizes the components of income from discontinued operations (amounts in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Rental income . .. ..... .t $ 342 $1,243  $4,530
Depreciation and amortization .................... 63 225 805
Real estate expenses . . . . . ...t 2 8 288
Interest €Xpense . . . ... .ot — 125 1,555

Total eXpenses. . . ... ov vt 65 358 2,648
Income from operations . ........... ... ... . ... .. 271 885 1,882
Impairment charge .. .......... . ... .. ... ... .. — — (229)
Gain on troubled mortgage restructuring, as a result of

conveyance to mortgagee(a). . ... ... .. — — 897
Netgainonsales .......... ... ..., 932 235 5,757
Income from discontinued operations ............... $1,209 $1,120 $8,307

(a) A retail tenant that previously leased five properties from the Company filed for
protection under Federal bankruptcy law in November 2008. These five properties were
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secured by non-recourse cross-collateralized mortgages with an outstanding balance of
$8,706. In July 2009, these properties were conveyed to the mortgagee by deeds-in-lieu of
foreclosure and the Company was released from all obligations thereunder. The gain was
based on the excess of the carrying amount of the mortgages over the fair value of the
five properties transferred.

NOTE 5—INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES

The Company’s five unconsolidated joint ventures each own and operate one property, including a
joint venture which was organized to acquire a retail property in March 2011 for a total purchase price
of $3,200,000. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s equity investment in unconsolidated
joint ventures totaled $5,093,000 and $4,777,000, respectively. In addition to the gain on disposition of
real estate of $107,000 for 2010, the unconsolidated joint ventures contributed $350,000, $446,000 and
$559,000 in equity earnings for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In April 2010, one of the Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures sold its only property for
$3,171,000, net of closing costs. The sale resulted in a gain to the Company of $107,000.
NOTE 6—DEBT OBLIGATIONS
Mortgages Payable

At December 31, 2011, there were 38 outstanding mortgages payable, all of which are secured by
first liens on individual real estate investments with an aggregate carrying value before accumulated
depreciation of $339,326,000. The mortgage payments bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 4.5% to
8.8%, and mature between 2012 and 2037. The weighted average interest rate was 6.10% and 6.29% at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Scheduled principal repayments during the next five years and thereafter are as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2002 . e $ 33,499(a)
2008 . e 9,788
2004 . e 36,071
2005 e 24,719
2006 . . e 29,153
Thereafter. . . ... . . e 72,619
Total . . .o $205,849

(a) Includes one loan with a principal balance of $23,300 and a maturity date of
September 1, 2012. This loan is secured and cross-collateralized by mortgages on 11 retail
furniture store properties that are covered by one master lease which expires August
2022.

F-25



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2011

NOTE 6—DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Line of Credit

On January 6, 2011, the Company entered into an amendment of its credit facility with VNB New
York Corp., Bank Leumi USA, Israel Discount Bank of New York and Manufacturer’s & Trader’s Trust
Company, which, among other things, increased the Company’s borrowing capacity by $15,000,000 to
$55,000,000 and extended the maturity of this facility by one year to March 31, 2013. The interest rate
thereon is the greater of (i) 90 day LIBOR plus 3% (3.58% at December 30, 2011), and (ii) 5.5% per
annum, effective August 5, 2011, as a result of an additional amendment (was 6% per annum through
August 5, 2011), and there is an unused facility fee of .25% per annum. In connection with the January
2011 amendment, the Company incurred a $350,000 commitment fee which is being amortized over the
remaining term of the facility. At December 31, 2011, $20,000,000 was outstanding under the facility
and at March 12, 2012, $27,100,000 was outstanding.

The terms of the credit facility include certain restrictions and covenants which may limit, among
other things, the incurrence of liens, and which require compliance with financial ratios relating to,
among other things, minimum amount of tangible net worth, minimum amount of debt service
coverage, minimum amount of fixed charge coverage, maximum amount of debt to value, minimum
level of net income, certain investment limitations and minimum value of unencumbered properties and
number of such properties. The Company was in compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2011.

The facility is guaranteed by specified subsidiaries of the Company and secured by stock or
membership interests in certain subsidiaries. The facility is available to pay off existing mortgages, to
fund the acquisition of additional properties, and for any other purpose, provided, if used for a purpose
other than a property acquisition or mortgage repayment, it will not exceed the lesser of $6,000,000 or
15% of the permitted borrowing base, as defined. Net proceeds received from the sale or refinancing of
properties are required to be used to repay amounts outstanding under the facility if proceeds from the
facility were used to purchase or refinance the property. In addition, the net proceeds from the
mortgage of any unencumbered property are also required to be used to repay amounts outstanding
under the facility.

NOTE 7—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which adjustments to measure at fair value are not reported:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for these
instruments approximate their fair values.

Mortgages payable: At December 31, 2011, the $216,792,000 estimated fair value of the
Company’s mortgages payable is more than their carrying value by approximately $10,943,000, assuming
a blended market interest rate of 4.5% based on a 4.75 year weighted average remaining term of the
mortgages.

Line of credit: The $20,000,000 carrying amount of the Company’s line of credit approximates its
fair value at December 31, 2011.
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The fair value of the Company’s mortgages and line of credit was estimated using other observable
inputs such as available market information and discounted cash flow analysis based on borrowing rates
the Company believes it could obtain with similar terms and maturities.

Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. The
use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities, other than mortgages payable and line of credit, are
generally short-term in nature, and consist of cash and cash equivalents, rents and other receivables,
other assets, and accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of these assets and
liabilities are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis, but are considered to be recorded at
amounts that approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of the Company’s available-for-sale securities and derivative financial instrument was
determined using the following inputs as of December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value
Measurements
Using Fair Value

Carrying and M
Fair Value Level 1  Level 2

Financial assets:
Available-for-sale securities:
Equity securities . ... ... ... $631 $631 $ —

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instrument . .. ............... 923 — 923

Available-for-sale securities

The Company’s available-for-sale securities have a total cost of $514,000, after recognizing an
other-than-temporary impairment charge of $126,000 in 2011. At December 31, 2011, unrealized gains
on such securities were $119,000 and unrealized losses were $2,000. The aggregate net unrealized gain
of $117,000 is included in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet. Fair values
are approximated on current market quotes from financial sources that track such securities. All of the
available-for-sale securities in an unrealized loss position are equity securities and amounts are not
considered to be an other-than-temporary impairment (other than the securities that the Company
recorded a $126,000 impairment charge) because the Company expects the value of these securities to
recover and plans on holding them until at least such recovery.

During 2010, the Company sold three corporate bonds for total gross proceeds of $2,356,000 and
recognized a total gain of $149,000. At December 31, 2009, the total unrealized gain on these bonds
was $186,000 which was included in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet.
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Derivative financial instruments

Fair values are approximated using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash
flow analysis on the expected cash flows of the derivatives. This analysis reflects the contractual terms
of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including
interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, and implied volatilities. At December 31, 2011, these
derivatives are included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives
fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with it use
Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads, to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself
and its counterparty. However, as of December 31, 2011, the Company assessed the significance of the
impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and
determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its
derivatives. As a result, the Company determined that its derivative valuation is classified in Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. Additionally, based on the rates in effect as of December 31, 2011, if a
counterparty were to default, the Company would receive a net interest benefit.

NOTE 8—DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives, all
of which were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk (amounts in thousands):

Notional Fixed Interest

Interest Rate Derivative Amount Rate Maturity Date
Interest Rate Swap . ................. $9,288 6.50%  December 2014
Interest Rate Swap . ................. $4,410 5.75%  November 2020
Interest Rate Swap . ................. $3,972 475%  August 2016
Interest Rate Swap .. ................ $2,200 4.50%  April 2016

The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s interest rate derivatives designated as
hedging instruments for the periods presented (amounts in thousands):

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value Location Value Location Value

Other Assets $0  Other Assets $126 Other Liabilities $923 Other Liabilities $302
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The following table presents the effect of the Company’s interest rate derivatives that were
designated as cash flow hedges on the consolidated statement of income for the periods presented
(amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Amount of (loss) recognized on derivative in Other Comprehensive Income .  $(1,098) $(523) $ (24)
Amount of (loss) reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income into Interest EXPENsSe . ... .......ouvuiiennnennnennnn.n. $ (351) $(236) $(135)

During 2009, the Company recorded an $111,000 gain on hedge ineffectiveness attributable to the
late designation of one of the Company’s interest rate swaps which was recorded as a reduction of
interest expense. During 2011 and 2010, the Company did not record any ineffectiveness. In addition,
during 2009 the Company accelerated the reclassification of amounts in other comprehensive income to
earnings as a result of the Company’s termination of the loan agreement on this interest rate swap due
to the sale of the mortgaged property. The accelerated amount was a gain of $63,000 reclassified out of
other comprehensive income into earnings as a reduction to interest expense. There were no
accelerated amounts recorded during 2011 or 2010. The Company estimates that in 2012 an additional
$339,000 will be reclassified from other comprehensive income as an increase to interest expense.

The following table presents the effect of the Company’s interest rate derivative that was not
designated as a cash flow hedge on the consolidated statement of income for 2009 (amounts in
thousands):

Location of Gain Recognized in  Gain Recognized
Derivative Not Designated As Hedging Instrument Income on Derivative on Derivative

Interest Rate Swap ................ Interest Expense $201

The interest rate derivative agreements in effect at December 31, 2011 provide that if the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company which is a party to the agreement defaults or is capable of being
declared in default on any of its indebtedness, then a default can be declared on such subsidiary’s
derivative obligation. In addition, the Company is a party to one of the derivative agreements and if
the subsidiary defaults on the loan subject to the derivative agreement to which the Company is a
party, the Company could be held liable for interest rate swap breakage losses, if any.

As of December 31, 2011, the fair value of the interest rate derivatives in a liability position
including accrued interest but excluding any adjustments for nonperformance risk was approximately
$999,000. If the Company breaches the derivative contracts, it could be required to settle its obligations
thereunder at their termination liability value of $999,000.

Two of the Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures, in which a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company is a 50% partner, had an interest rate derivative outstanding at December 31, 2011 with a
notional amount of $3,952,000. The interest rate derivative, which was entered into in March 2011, has
an interest rate of 5.81% and matures in April 2018. The Company’s 50% share of the interest rate
derivative is $1,976,000 and its 50% share of the value is $(182,000) as of December 31, 2011 and is
included in “Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures” on the Company’s balance sheet. The
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Company’s 50% share of loss recognized in other comprehensive income was $225,000 for 2011 and the
amount of loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into equity in earnings of
unconsolidated joint ventures was $43,000 for 2011.

NOTE 9—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, Gould Investors L.P. (“Gould”), a related party, owned 1,450,670
and 1,346,275 shares of the outstanding common stock of the Company or approximately 10% and
11.7%, respectively. During 2011, Gould purchased 104,395 shares of the Company’s stock through the
Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. During 2010, Gould purchased 5,700 shares of the Company’s
stock in the open market, purchased 45,029 shares of the Company’s stock through the Company’s
dividend reinvestment plan and received 27,325 shares of the Company’s stock in connection with the
stock dividend paid in January 2010.

Effective as of January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a compensation and services agreement
with Majestic Property Management Corp. (“Majestic”’), a company wholly-owned by our Chairman
and in which certain of the Company’s executive officers are officers and from which they receive
compensation. Under the terms of the agreement, Majestic assumed the Company’s obligations to
make payments to Gould (and other affiliated entities) under a shared services agreement and agreed
to provide to the Company the services of all affiliated executive, administrative, legal, accounting and
clerical personnel that the Company had previously used on an as needed, part time basis and for
which the Company had reimbursed an allocated portion of the payroll expenses of such personnel in
accordance with the shared services agreement. Commencing January 1, 2007, the Company no longer
incurs any allocated expenses. Under the terms of the compensation and services agreement, Majestic
(or its affiliates) continues to provide to the Company certain property management services (including
construction supervisory services), property acquisition, sales and leasing services and mortgage
brokerage services that it has provided to the Company in the past, some of which were capitalized,
deferred or reduced net sales proceeds in prior years. The Company does not incur any fees or
expenses for such services except for the annual fees described below.

In consideration for providing to the Company the services described above, the Company paid
Majestic an annual fee of $2,725,000, $2,225,000 and $2,025,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, in
equal monthly installments. Majestic credits against the fee payments due to it under the agreement
any management or other fees received by it from any joint venture in which the Company is a joint
venture partner (exclusive of fees paid by the tenant in common on a property located in Los Angeles,
California). The agreement also provides for an additional payment to Majestic of $175,000 in 2011,
2010 and 2009 for the Company’s share of all direct office expenses, such as rent, telephone, postage,
computer services and internet usage, previously allocated to the Company under the shared services
agreement. The annual payments the Company makes to Majestic is negotiated each year by the
Company and Majestic, and is approved by the Company’s independent directors. The Company also
agreed to pay the Company’s Chairman $250,000 per annum effective January 2007 and to pay the
Company’s Vice Chairman $100,000 per annum effective January 2011.

On September 13, 2011, the independent members of the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized a $500,000 increase (effective January 1, 2011) from $2,400,000 to $2,900,000 in the
compensation and services agreement with Majestic. In June 2011, a compensation consultant was
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engaged to prepare a “Compensation and Total Costs Analysis” report. The results of this report were
utilized to evaluate the $500,000 increase.

Executive officers and others providing services under the compensation and services agreement
also receive awards of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units under the Company’s stock
incentive plans. In addition, certain executive officers received awards under the Company’s Pay-for-
Performance Plan. These plans are described in Note 10. The costs of the plans charged to the
Company’s operations applicable to the executive officers and others providing services under the
compensation and services agreement amounted to $603,000, $553,000 and $546,000 in 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.

In addition to its share of rent included in the $175,000 payment to Majestic, the Company also
leases under a direct lease with a subsidiary of Gould approximately 1,200 square feet of additional
space in the same building at an annual rent of $47,000, $45,000 and $44,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009,

respectively.

Except for the property management costs described above, the fees paid under the compensation
and services agreement, the chairman and vice-chairman fees and the rent expense are included in
general and administrative expense in 2011, 2010 and 20009.

NOTE 10—STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Based Compensation

The Company’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, approved by the Company’s stockholders in June 2009,
permits the Company to grant stock options, restricted stock and/or performance-based awards to its
employees, officers, directors and consultants. A maximum of 600,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock is authorized for issuance pursuant to the 2009 Incentive Plan.

The Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, approved by the Company’s stockholders in June 2003,
permitted the Company to grant stock options and restricted stock to its employees, officers, directors
and consultants. A maximum of 275,000 shares of the Company’s common stock was authorized for
issuance pursuant to the 2003 Incentive Plan.

The restricted stock grants are charged to general and administrative expense over the respective
vesting periods based on the market value of the common stock on the grant date. Substantially all
restricted stock awards made to date provide for vesting upon the fifth anniversary of the date of grant
and under certain circumstances may vest earlier. For accounting purposes, the restricted stock is not
included in the shares shown as outstanding on the balance sheet until they vest; however dividends are
paid on the unvested shares.

On September 14, 2010, the Board of Directors approved a Pay-For-Performance Program under
the Company’s 2009 Incentive Plan and awarded 200,000 performance share awards in the form of
restricted stock units (the “Units”), half of which were awarded to full time employees of the
Company. The other half were awarded to part time officers of the Company who are compensated
through the compensation and services agreement, some of whom are also officers of Majestic Property
Management Corp. The holders of Units are not entitled to dividends or to vote the underlying shares
until the Units vest and shares are issued. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the shares underlying
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the Units are not included in the shares shown as outstanding on the balance sheet. If the defined
performance criteria are satisfied in full at June 30, 2017, one share of the Company’s common stock
will vest and be issued for each Unit outstanding and a pro-rata portion of the Units will vest and be
issued if the performance criteria fall between defined ranges. In the event that the performance
criteria are not satisfied in whole or in part at June 30, 2017, the unvested Units will be forfeited and
no shares of the Company’s common stock will be issued for those Units. For the awards which vest
based on total stockholder return, a third party appraiser prepared a Monte Carlo simulation pricing
model to determine the fair value. For the awards which vest based on return on capital, the fair value
is based on the market value on the date of grant. Expense is not recognized on the Units which the
Company does not expect to vest as a result of service conditions or the Company’s performance
expectations. The average per Unit grant price of the 200,000 units granted is $11.74. The total amount
recorded as deferred compensation is $554,000 and is being charged to general and administrative
expense over the approximate seven year vesting period. The deferred compensation expense to be
recognized is net of certain forfeiture and performance assumptions (which are re-evaluated quarterly).
No Units were forfeited or vested during 2011 and 2010.

Through December 31, 2011, a total of 416,910 and 274,100 stock awards were issued pursuant to
the Company’s 2009 and 2003 Stock Incentive Plans, respectively. Under the 2009 Incentive Plan,
183,090 shares remain available for grant. No additional shares may be granted under the 2003
Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2011, there were approximately $2,389,000 of total compensation
costs related to nonvested awards that have not yet been recognized, including $448,000 related to the
Pay-for-Performance Program (net of forfeiture and performance assumptions which are re-evaluated
quarterly). These compensation costs will be charged to general and administrative expense over the
remaining respective vesting periods. The weighted average vesting period is approximately 3.5 years.

As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 there were no options outstanding under the 2009 and
2003 Incentive Plans.
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The following is a summary of the activity of the incentive plans:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Restricted share grants. . ................. 74,040 875 175,025(a)
Average per share grant price ............. $ 1619 §$ 1464 § 7.00
Recorded as deferred compensation .. ....... $1,199,000 $ 13,000 $1,225,000
Non-vested shares:

Non-vested beginning of period. .......... 320,940 357,925 213,625

Grants. .. ....covviie ... 74,040 875 175,025

Vested during period . ................. (46,450)  (36,050) (30,675)

Forfeitures . . . ....... ... .. ....... (145) (1,810) (50)

Non-vested end of period .. ............. 348,385 320,940 357,925
Average per share value of non-vested shares

(based on grant price) ................. $ 1296 $ 1333 § 1390
Value of shares vested during the year (based

ON Grant Price) . . ..o vv v $ 960,000 $687,000 $ 602,000
Average value of shares forfeited (based on

Grant PriCe) . ... oo v vv e $ 11.03 $ 1362 $§ 2450
Total charge to operations:

Outstanding restricted stock grants . ....... $ 930,000 $889,000 $ 853,000

Outstanding restricted stock units . ........ 79,000 26,000 —

$1,009,000 $915,000 $ 853,000

(a) Of these 175,025 shares, 72,275 shares were awarded effective February 26, 2010, but
were considered granted in December 2009 pursuant to GAAP, because the grants were
approved by the Company’s board of directors and communicated to the grantees in
December 2009. The balance of 102,750 shares were awarded and effective in 2009.

Common Stock Dividend Distributions

In 2011 and 2010, the Company declared an aggregate $1.32 and $1.23 per share in cash
distributions. In 2009, the Company declared an aggregate $.08 and $.80 per share in cash and stock
distributions, respectively.

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

In June 2010, the Company reinstated its Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan
provides stockholders with the opportunity to reinvest all, or a portion of, their cash dividends paid on
the Company’s common stock in additional shares of its common stock, at a discount of up to 5% from
the market price. The discount is determined in the Company’s sole discretion. The Company is
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currently offering a 5% discount from market, the same discount which was in place at the time of the
suspension of the Plan in December 2008. The Company issued 254,502 and 81,154 common shares
under the Plan during 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Public Offering

On February 11, 2011, the Company sold 2,700,000 shares of its common stock and received net
proceeds of approximately $40,569,000. The proceeds were used to repay two mortgages in aggregate
amount of $7,700,000 having a weighted average interest rate of 7.9%, to reduce the amount
outstanding under the line of credit by $26,200,000, to purchase a property in March 2011 for
$2,325,000 and for general corporate purposes.

NOTE 11—GAIN ON SETTLEMENT OF DEBT

In June 2011, the Company paid off the $8,893,000 principal balance of the mortgage secured by
the property previously leased to Robb & Stucky with a payment of $7,634,000. The $1,240,000 gain on
settlement of debt is net of a $19,000 write off of the remaining balance of related deferred mortgage
costs. The property was tested for impairment in June 2011 and it was determined that no charge was
required. No additional indicators of impairment have been identified.

NOTE 12—INCOME FROM SETTLEMENT WITH FORMER PRESIDENT

In 2009, the Company settled its civil suit against the Company’s former president and chief
executive officer (who resigned in July 2005 following the discovery of inappropriate financial dealings).
The income from this settlement aggregated $951,000.

NOTE 13—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company maintains a non-contributory defined contribution pension plan covering eligible
employees. Contributions by the Company are made through a money purchase plan, based upon a
percent of qualified employees’ total salary as defined. Pension expense approximated $119,000,
$114,000 and $114,000 for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In the ordinary course of business the Company is party to various legal actions which
management believes are routine in nature and incidental to the operation of the Company’s business.
Management believes that the outcome of the proceedings will not have a material adverse effect upon
the Company’s consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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The Company elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with
its taxable year ended December 31, 1983. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet a number of
organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently distribute at least
90% of its adjusted taxable income to its stockholders. It is management’s current intention to adhere
to these requirements and maintain the Company’s REIT status. As a REIT, the Company generally
will not be subject to corporate level federal, state and local income tax on taxable income it distributes
currently to its stockholders. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be
subject to federal, state and local income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years.
Even though the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company is subject to certain state and
local taxes on its income and property, and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed
taxable income.

Included in general and administrative expenses for 2011, 2010 and 2009 are state tax expense of
$168,000, $193,000 and $178,000, respectively.
Reconciliation between Financial Statement Net Income and Federal Taxable Income:

The following unaudited table reconciles financial statement net income to federal taxable income
for the years indicated (amounts in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Estimate Actual Actual
NEt INCOME .« . oo e ettt e e e e e e e e e e $13,724  $ 9,306 $19,641
Straight line rent adjustments . . .......... ... .. ... . .. (1,434) (693) (1,176)
Financial statement gain on sale in excess of tax gain(a) . . ........... (61) 557 (9,620)
Rent received in advance, net . .. ... ... (78) 205 299
Financial statement adjustment for above/below market leases ........ 37 (442) 23
Non-deductible portion of restricted stock expense . . .. ............. 300 249 741
Financial statement adjustment of fair value of derivative . . .. ........ — — (650)
Financial statement depreciation in excess of tax depreciation......... 1,176 1,051 626
Property acquisition costs—capitalize for tax purposes .............. 213 1,010 59
Other adjustments . . ... ...ttt e (474) 542 600
Federal taxable INCOME . . . . . ..ottt et e e e e $13,403 $11,785 $10,543

(a) For 2009, amount includes (i) $5,021 GAAP gain on sale of real estate which was deferred for
federal tax purposes in accordance with Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended and (ii) financial statement impairment charges of $5,983, which were recorded during
the year ended December 31, 2008 relating to four properties that were disposed of in 2009.
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Reconciliation between Cash Dividends Paid and Dividends Paid Deduction:

The following unaudited table reconciles cash dividends paid with the dividends paid deduction for
the years indicated (amounts in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Estimate Actual Actual
Dividends paid(a) . ......... ... $14,748 $14,123 $ 9,416
Dividend reinvestment plan(b) . ................. 153 108 —
14,901 14,231 9,416
Less: Spillover dividends designated to previous year .. (1,448) (3,844) (2,667)
Plus: Dividends designated from following year . . . . .. — 1,448 3,844
Dividends paid deduction(c).................... $13,453 $11,835 $10,593

(a) In 2009, the quarterly dividends on the Company’s common stock of $.22 per share were
paid in cash and/or common stock of the Company.

(b) Amount reflects the 5% discount on common stock purchased through the dividend
reinvestment plan which was suspended in December 2008 and reinstated in June 2010.

(c) Dividends paid deduction is slightly higher than federal taxable income in 2011, 2010 and
2009 to account for adjustments made to federal taxable income as a result of the impact
of the alternative minimum tax.

NOTE 15—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 16, 2012, 109,450 shares were issued as restricted share grants having an aggregate
value of approximately $1,836,000.

In February 2012, the Company entered into a joint venture with an affiliate of Trammel Crow
Company pursuant to which the venture contemplates redeveloping a 6.2 acre site in Plano, Texas
(formerly tenanted by a retail furniture operator that filed for bankruptcy protection in February 2011
and currently tenanted by another retail furniture operator under a short term lease) into up to two
Class A office buildings. The Company contributed this property, with a net book value at
December 31, 2011 of $11,758,000, to the joint venture in exchange for a 90% equity interest therein
and Trammel Crow Company contributed $1,500,000 in exchange for its 10% equity interest therein.
The redevelopment of this property is subject to, among other things, obtaining various approvals, the
necessary equity and debt financing and sufficient tenant commitments.

On March 5, 2012, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.33 per share on
the Company’s common stock, totaling $4,861,000. The quarterly dividend is payable on April 2, 2012
to stockholders of record on March 20, 2012.

In March 2012, the Company’s consolidated joint venture entered into a loan agreement pursuant
to which it may borrow up to $7,045,750. The loan is secured by the Cherry Hill, New Jersey property
that was acquired in October 2011. A total of $3,445,750 is allocated under the loan for construction at
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the property, of which $820,875 was immediately borrowed and funded to the tenant for tenant
improvements and $3,600,000 was borrowed to reimburse partially the joint venture for the acquisition
of the property. A balance of $2,624,750 is available to be borrowed for construction at the property.
The loan matures in 2022 and bears interest at a floating rate equal to the one-month LIBOR plus 300
basis points with certain rights to fix the rate in the future.

In March 2012, the Company acquired three Applebee’s restaurant locations in the Atlanta,
Georgia area. The three properties are all subject to individual long term net leases. The purchase
price of approximately $8,600,000 was paid in cash.

NOTE 16—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited):
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Quarter Ended

Total

% March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 For Year
Rental revenues as previously reported . ......... $11,325 $11,241  $11,151 $11,746  $45,463
Revenues from discontinued operations(a). . ... ... (223) — — — (223)
Revenues.......... ... ... .. .. .. ... .. ... $11,102  $11,241  $11,151  $11,746  $45,240
Income from continuing operations(b). . ......... $ 2552 $ 4,113 $ 2765 $ 3,085 $12,515
Income from discontinued operations(b) . ........ 180 1,029 — — 1,209
Netincome . .. ... iii i $ 2,732 $ 5142 $ 2765 $ 3,085 $13,724
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:

BaSIC .« v e et e 13,117 14,078 14,143 14210 13,801

Diluted: . ... ... .. 13,117 14,178 14,143 14,310 13,851

Basic:
Income from continuing operations(b) . ... ....... $ 20 $§ 29 $ 19 $ 21 $ .87(c)
Income from discontinued operations(b) . ........ .01 .07 — — .09(c)
Netincome . .........c.oiiinnnnnnen... $ 21§ 36 $ 19 $§ 21 § .96(c)

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations(b) . . .. ....... $ 20 $ 28 $ 19 $ 21 $ .87(c)
Income from discontinued operations(b) . ........ .01 .07 — — .09(c)
Netincome . ..........oiiiiiiinnnnnnnnn... $ 21§ 35 $ 19 $§ 21 § .96(c)

(a) Represents revenues from discontinued operations which were previously included in rental
revenues as previously reported.

(b) Amounts have been adjusted to give effect to discontinued operations.

(c) Calculated on weighted average shares outstanding for the year.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2011

NOTE 16—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited): (Continued)

Quarter Ended

Total

ﬂ March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 For Year
Rental revenues as previously reported . ......... $ 9,979 $10,545 $10,688 $10,660 $41,872
Revenues from discontinued operations(d) ....... (222) (222) (222) (222) (888)
ReVENUES . . . o oot $ 9,757 $10,323 $10,466 $10,438 $40,984
Income from continuing operations(e) . . .. ....... $ 2,187 $ 2,147 $ 2392 $ 1,460 $ 8,186
Income from discontinued operations(e) . ........ 234 252 454 180 1,120
Net inCOME . . ... $ 2421 $2399 $2846 $ 1,640 $ 9,306
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:

Basic:. ..o 11,395 11,453 11,481 11,531 11,465

Diluted: . ... ..o 11,453 11,453 11,518 11,631 11,510

Basic:
Income from continuing operations(e) . .. ........ $ 19 § 19 $ 21§ 12 § 71D
Income from discontinued operations(e) ......... .02 .02 .04 .02 10(f)
Netincome ... .ovvvv i $ 21§ 21 % 25 $ 14 $ 81(f)

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations(e) . . .. ....... $ 19 § 19 $ 21 $ 12 $ 71(f)
Income from discontinued operations(e) . ........ .02 .02 .04 .02 10(f)
Netincome ... ......oouiiiiniinnenen .. $ 21 $ 21 $ 25 $§ 14 $ 81

(d) Represents revenues from discontinued operations which were previously included in rental

revenues as previously reported.

(e) Amounts have been adjusted to give effect to discontinued operations.

(f) Calculated on weighted average shares outstanding for the year.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule III—Consolidated Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
December 31, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands)

Initial Cost To Cost Gross Amount at Which Carried
Company Capitalized at December 31, 2011
Buildings  >ljosequent to Buildings
and a and Accumulated Date of Date

Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation(4) Construction Acquired

Apartment Building

New York, NY . . . ............ $ 6,970 $ 1,110 $ 4,439 $  — $ 1,110 $ 4,439 $ 5,549 $ 2,832 1910 1994
Flex

Hauppauge, NY . . .. .......... 9,288 1,952 10,954 — 1,952 10,954 12,906 3,024 1982 2000
Ronkonkoma, NY . ... ......... 3,973 1,042 4,171 1,033 1,042 5,204 6,246 1,273 1986 2000
Health Clubs

Tucker, GA. . . .............. 5,293 807 3,027 3,126 807 6,153 6,960 1,260 1988 2002
Grand Rapids, MI . . ... ....... 2,166 912 3,649 — 912 3,649 4,561 1,038 1972 2000
Grand Rapids, MI . . .......... 1,134 513 2,053 — 513 2,053 2,566 584 1968 2000
Hamilton, OH . . ... .......... — 1,483 5,953 — 1,483 5,953 7,436 64 2008 2011
Industrial

West Palm Beach, FL . ......... — 181 724 — 181 724 905 239 1973 1998
Baltimore, MD(3) . . . ... ....... 22,124 6,474 25,282 — 6,474 25,282 31,756 3,187 1960 2006
Sacoo,ME . ................. 3,473 1,027 3,623 — 1,027 3,623 4,650 517 2001 2006
Durham, NC . ... ............ 2,200 1,043 2,244 160 1,043 2,404 3,447 33 1991 2011
Melville, NY .. .............. 2,018 774 3,029 748 774 3,777 4,551 704 1982 2003
New Hyde Park, NY . .......... — 182 728 33 182 761 943 235 1960 1999
New Hyde Park, NY . .......... — 197 788 187 197 975 1,172 263 1954 1999
Columbus, OH. . ... .......... — 435 1,703 — 435 1,703 2,138 479 1979 1995
Philadelphia, PA. . . .. ... ... ... 5,391 1,981 7,668 — 1,981 7,668 9,649 1,318 1964 2005
Office

Los Angeles, CA ... .......... 7,912 2,157 8,240 72 2,157 8,312 10,469 1,746 1960 2003
Parsippany, NJ . . ... .......... 14,768 6,055 23,300 1,750 6,055 25,050 31,105 3,749 1997 2005
Brooklyn, NY . .............. 6,285 1,381 5,447 2,565 1,381 8,012 9,393 2,376 1973 1998
Retail

Denver, CO ................ 3,258 780 3,247 413 780 3,660 4,440 1,323 1995 1996
West Hartford, CT . ........... 2,881 94 — 2,881 94 2,975 9 N/A 2010

West Hartford, CT .. .......... 12,908 9,296 5,071 — 9,296 5,071 14,367 176 2005 2010
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Retail—Continued
Newark, DE

Ft. Myers, FL
Miami Springs, FL(1)
Naples, FL . .. ..............
Pensacola, FL(1)
Athens, GA(1) . . . ............
Atlanta, GA
Duluth, GA2) . . .. ...... ... ..
Fayetteville, GA(2) .. ..........
Kennesaw, GA(1) . .. ..........
Bolingbrook, IL . . .. ..........
Champaign, IL. . ... ..........
Chicago, IL(1) . . ... ..........
Crystal Lake, IL . . .. ..........
Gurnee, IL . ... .............
Niles, IL. . . ....... ... .....
Wichita, KS(2) . . .............
Lexington, KY(2) . ............
Bastrop, LA
Kentwood, LA . . .. ... ........
Lake Charles, LA(1) . ..........
Monroe, LA . . ... ... ... ... ..
Monroe, LA . .. ... .. ... ... ..
Everett, MA . . ... ...........
Hyannis, MA. . .. ............
Marston Mills, MA . . . .. .......
Somerville, MA . ... ... .......

Initial Cost To Cost Gross Amount at Which Carried
Company Capitalized at December 31, 2011
R Subsequent to e
Buildings 3o Buildings
and & M and 8 Accumulated Date of Date
Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation(4) Construction Acquired
— 935 3,643 — 935 3,643 4,578 763 1996 2003
3,308 1,013 4,054 — 1,013 4,054 5,067 1,533 1995 1996
— 3,430 2,280 — 3,430 2,280 5,710 188 1993 2008
— 3,070 2,846 — 3,070 2,846 5,916 234 1992 2008
— 1,043 2,911 — 1,043 2,911 3,954 240 1971 2008
2,953 1,130 4,340 — 1,130 4,340 5,470 827 2003 2004
1,689 803 3,211 — 803 3,211 4,014 1,234 1994 1996
1,764 778 3,436 — 778 3,436 4,214 490 1987 2006
2,211 976 4,308 — 976 4,308 5,284 615 1987 2006
— 1,501 4,349 — 1,501 4,349 5,850 358 1995 2008
— 834 1,887 — 834 1,887 2,721 37 2001 2011
1,973 791 3,165 274 791 3,439 4,230 1,031 1985 1999
— 3,877 2,256 — 3,877 2,256 6,133 186 1994 2008
2,095 615 1,899 — 615 1,899 2,514 18 1997 2011
2,537 834 3,635 — 834 3,635 4,469 481 1994 2006
3,445 843 3,485 — 843 3,485 4,328 29 1995 2011
2,693 1,189 5,248 — 1,189 5,248 6,437 749 1996 2006
1,813 800 3,532 — 800 3,532 4,332 504 1999 2006
1,048 378 1,465 — 378 1,465 1,843 188 1995 2006
1,020 368 1,425 — 368 1,425 1,793 183 1995 2006
2,751 1,167 4,669 — 1,167 4,669 5,836 1,085 1998 2002
1,048 378 1,465 — 378 1,465 1,843 188 1995 2006
1,001 361 1,399 — 361 1,399 1,760 179 1995 2006
1,337 1,935 — — 1,935 — 1,935 — N/A 2008
1,386 802 2,324 — 802 2,324 3,126 230 1998 2008
593 461 2,313 — 461 2,313 2,774 224 1998 2008
2,015 510 1,993 24 510 2,017 2,527 446 1993 2003
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Initial Cost To Cost Gross Amount at Which Carried

Company Capitalized at December 31, 2011
R Subsequent to e
Buildings YN Buildings
and Acquisition and Accumulated Date of Date

Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation(4) Construction Acquired

Retail—Continued

Kansas City, MO . ............ 4,411 2,958 5,691 — 2,958 5,691 8,649 219 2004 2010
D’lberville, MS . ... ... ... .. 1,020 368 1,425 — 368 1,425 1,793 183 1995 2006
Flowood, MS. . . . ... ... ...... 1,086 392 1,517 — 392 1,517 1,909 194 1995 2006
Vicksburg, MS . . . ............ 992 358 1,385 — 358 1,385 1,743 177 1985 2006
Vicksburg, MS . . ... ... ... ... 1,209 436 1,689 — 436 1,689 2,125 216 1995 2006
Cary, NC(1) ................ — 1,129 3,736 — 1,129 3,736 4,865 307 1995 2008
Cherry Hill, NJ . . ............ — 3,584 2,794 281 3,584 3,075 6,659 9 2000 2011
Batavia, NY . ............... — 515 2,061 — 515 2,061 2,576 663 1998 1999
Hauppauge, NY . . .. .......... — 725 2,963 — 725 2,963 3,688 454 1992 2005
Island Park, NY . .. ........... 1,697 1,235 1,355 — 1,235 1,355 2,590 42 1947 2010
Selden, NY . . ............... 2,382 572 2,287 150 572 2,437 3,009 766 1997 1999
Columbus, OH. . ... .......... — 1,445 5,431 350 1,445 5,781 7,226 2,041 1996 1997
Eugene, OR(1) . ............. — 1,952 2,096 — 1,952 2,096 4,048 172 1994 2008
Gettysburg, PA. . . ... ... .. ... — 754 704 — 754 704 1,458 24 1991 2010
Hanover, PA ... ... ... ...... — 736 686 — 736 686 1,422 24 1992 2010
Monroeville, PA . . ... ... ... — 450 863 — 450 863 1,313 35 1994 2010
Palmyra, PA ... ... . ... ... .. — 650 650 — 650 650 1,300 24 1981 2010
Reading, PA ... ... ... ... ... — 655 625 — 655 625 1,280 23 1981 2010
Reading, PA .. .............. — 618 643 — 618 643 1,261 25 1983 2010
Royersford, PA . ... ... . ... .. 17,009 19,538 3,150 — 19,538 3,150 22,688 148 2001 2010
Trexlertown, PA . . ... ... ... .. — 800 439 — 800 439 1,239 15 1994 2010
Bluffton, SC(2) . ............. 1,335 589 2,600 — 589 2,600 3,189 371 1994 2006
Knoxville, TN .. ............. 4,944 2,290 8,855 — 2,290 8,855 11,145 1,725 2003 2004
Amarillo, TX(2) . . ............ 1,955 863 3,810 — 863 3,810 4,673 544 1996 2006
Austin, TX(2) .. ............. 3,598 1,587 7,010 — 1,587 7,010 8,597 1,000 2001 2006
El Paso, TX ................ — 2,821 11,123 321 2,821 11,444 14,265 3,364 1974 2000

El Paso, TX(1) .............. — 1,035 2,700 — 1,035 2,700 3,735 222 1993 2008
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Initial Cost To Cost Gross Amount at Which Carried

Company Capitalized at December 31, 2011
R Subsequent to e
Buildings YN Buildings
and Acquisition and Accumulated Date of Date

Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation(4) Construction Acquired

Retail—Continued

Houston, TX . . . ............. — 396 1,583 — 396 1,583 1,979 536 1997 1998
Houston, TX . ... ............ 2,846 1,962 1,540 — 1,962 1,540 3,502 50 2006 2010
Houston, TX . .. ............. — 2,002 1,800 — 2,002 1,800 3,802 57 2009 2010
Plano, TX. ... .............. — 825 3,299 — 825 3,299 4,124 980 1998 2000
Plano, TX. .. ... ............ — 2,701 11,425 — 2,701 11,425 14,126 2,368 2000 2003
Rosenberg, TX . ............. — 216 863 — 216 863 1,079 346 1994 1995
Tyler, TX(2) ... ............. 2,338 1,031 4,554 — 1,031 4,554 5,585 650 2001 2006
Newport News, VA(2) . ... ...... 1,702 751 3,316 — 751 3,316 4,067 473 1995 2006
Richmond, VA(2) . . . .......... 1,965 867 3,829 — 867 3,829 4,696 546 1979 2006
Virginia Beach, VA(2) ... ... .. .. 1,935 854 3,771 — 854 3,771 4,625 538 1995 2006
Seattle, WA .. .............. — 201 189 — 201 189 390 115 1986 1987
Onalaska, WI ... ............ — 753 3,099 — 753 3,099 3,852 552 1994 2004
Theater

Greensboro, NC. . ... ......... 5,584 — 8,328 — — 8,328 8,328 3,964 1999 2004
Totals . ................... $205,849 $135,099 $328,856 $11,487 $135,099 $340,343 $475,442 $62,831

Note 1—These nine properties are retail office supply stores net leased to the same tenant, pursuant to separate leases. Seven of these leases contain cross default provisions.
They are located in seven states (Florida, Illinois, Louisiana, North Carolina, Texas, Georgia and Oregon).

Note 2—These 11 properties are retail furniture stores covered by one master lease and one loan that is secured by cross—collateralized mortgages. They are located in six
states (Georgia, Kansas, Kentucky, South Carolina, Texas and Virginia).

Note 3—Upon purchase of the property in December 2006, a $416,000 rental income reserve was posted by the seller for the Company’s benefit, since the property was not
producing sufficient rent at the time of acquisition. The Company recorded the receipt of this rental reserve as a reduction to land and building.

Note 4—Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the buildings and improvements, which range from 3 to 40 years.



ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Schedule III
Consolidated Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

(a) Reconciliation of “Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation”

(Amounts In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Investment in real estate:
Balance, beginning of year . ... ............... ... ... ... .. $445900  $378,000  $387,595
Addition: Land, buildings and improvements . . ............... 29,542 67,900 576
Deduction: Cost of property sold . ........................ — — (10,171)
Balance, end of year ................. .. ... .. .......... $475,442(b) $445,900  $378,000
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance, beginning of year . ............. .. ... ... ... ..., $ 54,137  $ 46,117 $ 38,389
Addition: Depreciation. . .. ........ . 8,694 8,152 8,467
Deduction: Accumulated depreciation related to “property held for

SAlE” L — (132) (739)
Balance, end of year ........... ... ... $ 62,831  $ 54,137 $ 46,117

(b) The aggregate cost of the properties is approximately $14,796 lower for federal income tax

purposes at December 31, 2011.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.
60 Cutter Mill Road
Great Neck, New York 11021
(516) 466-3100

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
June 12, 2012

The annual meeting of stockholders of One Liberty Properties, Inc. will be held at our offices,
located at Suite 303, 60 Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY, on Tuesday, June 12, 2012 at 9:00 a.m.
local time. We are holding the meeting for the following purposes:

1. To elect three directors to hold office for a term expiring in 2015;
2. To approve the 2012 Incentive Plan;

3. To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for 2012; and

4. o transact any other business properly brought before the meeting.

Holders of record of our common stock at the close of business on April 17, 2012 are entitled to
notice of the annual meeting and to vote at the meeting and any adjournment thereof.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the meeting. To assure that your vote
will be counted, please complete, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and return it in the enclosed
prepaid envelope, whether or not you plan to attend the meeting. Most stockholders can also vote by
telephone or via the internet. Telephone and internet voting information is provided on the
accompanying proxy card. Your proxy may be revoked in the manner described in the accompanying
proxy statement at any time before it has been voted at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mark H. Lundy, Secretary
Dated: April 17, 2012

We urge each stockholder to promptly sign and return the enclosed proxy card or use telephone or
internet voting. See our questions and answers about the meeting for information about voting by
telephone or internet, how to revoke a proxy, and how to vote shares in person.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

GENERAL

Our board of directors is furnishing you with this proxy statement to solicit proxies on its behalf to
be voted at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders of One Liberty Properties, Inc. The meeting will
be held at our offices, 60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, NY 11021 on June 12, 2012 at
9:00 a.m., local time. The proxies will be voted at the meeting and may also be voted at any
adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

All properly executed proxy cards, and all properly completed proxies submitted by telephone or
by the internet, that are delivered pursuant to this solicitation, will be voted at the meeting in
accordance with your directions, unless the proxy is revoked before the meeting.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND VOTING
What is the purpose of the annual meeting?
At our annual meeting, stockholders will vote on the following matters:

* election of three directors (Joseph A. DeLuca, Fredric H. Gould and Eugene 1. Zuriff) to hold
office until the 2015 annual meeting;

* approval of our 2012 Incentive Plan;

* ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for 2012; and

 such other matters as may properly come before the meeting.
Who is entitled to vote?

We are mailing this proxy statement on or about April 25, 2012 to our stockholders of record on
April 17, 2012. The record date was established by our board of directors. Stockholders as of the close
of business on the record date of April 17, 2012 are entitled to receive notice of and to vote their
shares at the meeting. Each outstanding share of common stock is entitled to one vote. As of the
record date, 14,787,152 shares of our common stock were outstanding and entitled to vote at the
meeting.

How do I vote?

If you are a stockholder of record on April 17, 2012 and attend the annual meeting, you may vote
in person at the meeting. If your shares are held by a bank, broker or other nominee (i.e., in “street
name”) and if you wish to vote in person at the annual meeting, you must contact the nominee to
obtain evidence of your ownership of our common stock as of the record date. If you hold your shares
directly (i.e., the share certificate or certificates representing your shares are registered in your name),
you may complete, sign and date the accompanying proxy card and return it in the prepaid envelope,
and your shares will be voted according to your instructions.



How will my shares be voted?

If you do not mark any selections but return the signed proxy card, your shares will be voted by
the proxies named on the proxy card in favor of the three nominees for election as directors, in favor
of our approval of the 2012 Incentive Plan, in favor of the proposal to ratify the appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2012, and as the proxy
holders may determine in their discretion with respect to other matters that properly come before the
meeting. Registered holders (i.e., those who hold shares directly rather than through a bank or broker)
can simplify their voting by calling 1-800-PROXIES (776-9437) or by accessing the internet website
www.voteproxy.com. Telephone voting information and internet voting information is provided on the
proxy card. The internet and telephone voting facilities for stockholders of record will close at
11:59 p.m., local time, on June 11, 2012. You should be aware that if you vote over the internet you
may incur costs, such as telephone and internet access charges, for which you will be responsible. If you
vote by telephone or via the internet, it is not necessary to return your proxy card. If you attend the
meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy or vote in person.

If you wish to name as a proxy someone other than the proxies named on the proxy card, you may
do so by crossing out the name of the designated proxies and inserting the name of another person. In
that case, it will be necessary to sign the proxy card and deliver it to the person so named and for the
person so named to be present at and vote at the meeting. Proxy cards so marked should not be mailed
to us or to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC, our transfer agent.

Is my vote important?

Yes. Under applicable rules, brokers, banks and other nominees are prohibited from voting shares
held in street name on matters pertaining to the election of directors and the approval of our 2012
Incentive Plan, unless the client specifically instructs his or her nominee to vote their shares. Shares
held in street name and for which voting instructions are not provided and accordingly, as to which
bank, brokers and other nominees do not have discretionary authority to vote on their clients’ behalf,
are referred to “broker non-votes.” Because “broker non-votes” will have the effect of a vote against
these proposals, it is very important that you vote your shares.

Who will count the vote?

A representative of our transfer agent, American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC, will
tabulate the votes and act as inspector of elections.

Can I revoke my proxy before it is exercised?

If you hold stock directly in your name, you may revoke a proxy at any time before it is voted at
the annual meeting with a later dated, properly executed proxy (including an internet or telephone
vote), or a written revocation delivered to our Secretary. The proxy holders” powers may also be
suspended if you attend the meeting and notify our Secretary at the meeting that you would like to
change your vote or vote in person. If your stock is held in the name of a broker, bank or other
nominee, you must contact such nominee and comply with the nominee’s procedures if you want to
revoke or change the instructions that you previously provided to the nominee. Attendance at the
meeting will not by itself automatically revoke a previously granted proxy.

What constitutes a quorum?

A quorum is the presence in person or by proxy of stockholders holding a majority of shares
entitled to vote at the meeting. To constitute a quorum, at least 7,393,577 shares must be present in
person or by proxy at the meeting. Generally, action cannot be taken at the meeting unless a quorum is
present.



How many votes does it take to approve the items to be voted upon?

The vote of a plurality of all of the votes cast at the meeting at which a quorum is present is
necessary for the election of directors. The three individuals receiving the greatest number of
affirmative votes will be elected directors. For purposes of the election of directors, abstentions and
broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted as votes cast and will have no effect on the result of the
vote.

The affirmative vote of a majority of all of the votes cast on the proposal to approve the 2012
Incentive Plan is required for the approval thereof, provided that the total vote cast on the proposal
represents over 50% of the outstanding shares of common stock. For purposes of this vote, abstentions
will have the same effect as votes against the proposal and broker non-votes will have the same effect
as votes against the proposal, unless holders of more than 50% of the outstanding shares of common
stock entitled to vote on the proposal cast votes, in which event broker non-votes will not have any
effect on the results of the vote.

Who is soliciting my vote and who pays the cost?

Our board of directors is soliciting votes for the meeting and we will pay the entire cost of the
solicitation, including preparing and mailing this proxy statement. In addition to the solicitation of
proxies by mail and through our and our affiliates’ employees, we will request banks, brokers,
custodians, nominees and other record holders to forward copies of the proxy statement and other
soliciting materials to persons for whom they hold shares and to request authority for the exercise of
proxies. We will reimburse such record holders for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in
forwarding proxies and proxy materials to stockholders. We have retained Phoenix Advisory Partners
for a fee of $4,500, plus reasonable out of pocket expenses, to aid in the solicitation of proxies from
our stockholders. To the extent necessary to ensure sufficient representation at the meeting, we or our
proxy solicitor may solicit the return of proxies by personal interview, mail, telephone, facsimile,
internet or other means of electronic transmission. The extent to which this will be necessary depends
upon how promptly proxies are returned. We urge you to send in your proxy without delay.

What is householding?

We are sending only one proxy statement to eligible stockholders who share a single address,
unless we have received instructions to the contrary from any stockholder at that address. This practice,
known as “householding,” is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, if a
stockholder of record residing at such an address wishes to receive a separate annual report or proxy
statement, he or she may request it orally or in writing by contacting us at One Liberty Properties, Inc.,
60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, NY 11021, Attention: Investor Relations, by emailing us at
simeonb@1liberty.com, or by calling us at 516-466-3100, and we will promptly deliver to the
stockholder the requested annual report or proxy statement. If a stockholder of record residing at such
an address wishes to receive a separate annual report or proxy statement in the future, he or she may
contact us in the same manner. If you are an eligible stockholder of record receiving multiple copies of
our annual report and proxy statement, you can request householding by contacting us in the same
manner. If you own your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee, you can request
householding by contacting the nominee.

When are stockholder proposals due for the 2013 Annual Meeting?

If a stockholder wants a proposal to be included in our proxy statement for the 2013 annual
meeting of stockholders, the proposal, in writing and addressed to our Secretary, must be received by
us no later than December 26, 2012. Upon timely receipt of any such proposal, we will determine
whether or not to include such proposal in the proxy statement in accordance with applicable
regulations governing the solicitation of proxies.



For any proposal that is not submitted for inclusion in next year’s proxy statement, but is instead
intended to be presented directly at the 2013 annual meeting, rules and regulations promulgated by the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission permit us to exercise discretionary voting authority
to the extent conferred by proxy if we:

* receive notice of the proposal before March 10, 2013, and advise stockholders in the 2013 proxy
statement of the nature of the proposal and how management intends to vote on such matter; or

* do not receive notice of the proposal before March 10, 2013.

Notices of intention to present proposals at our 2013 annual meeting should be submitted in
writing and addressed to our Secretary.

What other information about us is available?

Stockholders can call (516) 466-3100 or write to us at 60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck,
NY 11021, Attention: Secretary, to request a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K. This and other
important information about us is also available on our web site which is located at
www.onelibertyproperties.com. Our Annual Report to Stockholders accompanies this proxy statement.



GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY
General

Pursuant to the Maryland General Corporation Law and our by-laws, as amended, our business,
property and affairs are managed by or under the direction of our board of directors. Members of the
board are kept informed of our business through discussions with our chief executive officer, chairman
of our board and other officers, by reviewing materials provided to them and by participating in
meetings of the board and its committees.

During 2011, the board held five meetings. All of the directors attended at least 75% of the total
number of meetings of the board of directors and the board committees of which such director was a
member. Our directors meet at regularly scheduled executive sessions without management. We
encourage our directors to attend the annual meeting of stockholders. Last year, nine of our directors
attended our annual meeting of stockholders.

Leadership Structure

The board of directors has designated J. Robert Lovejoy as its “Independent Lead Director.”
Among other things, the Lead Director presides at, and prepares the agenda for, executive sessions of
the independent directors, recommends to the Chairman of the Board matters to be considered, and
materials to be reviewed by the board, serves as an independent point of contact for stockholders
desiring to communicate with the board and performs such other duties and responsibilities as are
assigned to him by a majority of the non-management directors.

Our company is led by Fredric H. Gould, chairman of our board, and Patrick J. Callan, Jr.,
president and chief executive officer. Although the board of directors has not established a policy on
whether the role of the chairman and chief executive officer should be separated, the board of directors
believes this is the most appropriate structure at this time because it makes the best use of the abilities
of Messrs. Gould and Callan. The board does not believe that its risk oversight activities have any
effect on the board’s leadership structure.

Risk Oversight

Management is responsible for the day-to-day management of risks we face. Our board of directors
has overall responsibility for overseeing risk management with a focus on the more significant risks
facing us. Our audit committee oversees risk policies and processes related to our financial statements,
financial reporting processes and liquidity risks, our compensation committee oversees risks relating to
renumeration of our full-time officers, and our nominating and corporate governance committee
oversees corporate governance risks.

A portion of each quarterly meeting of the audit committee is devoted to reviewing tenant credit
risks, issues related to tenant matters and property operations which might have a material adverse
impact on current or future operations, the status of issues previously considered by the audit
committee with respect to tenant matters or property operations, liquidity risks, management of debt
maturities and, as required, to review risks arising from related party transactions and compliance with
debt covenants. Each audit committee meeting is attended by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer who are there to, among other things, respond to issues relating to tenant matters or
property operations. In addition, at each meeting of the audit committee, our chief financial officer, the
accounting firm performing the internal audit function on behalf of the company, and our independent
registered public accounting firm report to the committee with respect to compliance with our internal
control policies in order to ascertain that no failures of a significant or material nature have occurred.
This process assists the audit committee in overseeing the risks related to our financial statements and
the financial reporting process.



At each meeting of the board of directors, a portion of the meeting is dedicated to reviewing and
discussing significant risk issues reviewed by the audit committee.

Our compensation committee monitors risks associated with our compensation structure. The
compensation committee does not believe that the compensation programs which are in place give rise
to any risk that is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on us.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics, as amended and restated, that is designed
to help our directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants resolve ethical issues. This code
applies to all directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants, including our chief executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or persons performing similar functions. The
code covers a variety of topics, including those required by the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the New York Stock Exchange. Topics covered include conflicts of interest, confidentiality of
information, and compliance with laws and regulations. The code of business conduct and ethics, as
amended and restated, is available at the corporate governance section of our website at
www.onelibertyproperties.com/corporate_governance and a copy may be obtained, without charge, by
writing to us at 60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, New York 11021, Attention: Secretary.
During 2011, there were no amendments to the code of business conduct and ethics and no waivers of
the provisions of the code of business conduct and ethics with respect to any of our directors, officers,
employees, agents or consultants. We will post any amendments to, or waivers of, our code of business
conduct and ethics, as amended and restated, on our website.

Committees of the Board of Directors

We have three standing committees: audit, compensation and nominating and corporate
governance. Our board has adopted corporate governance guidelines that address the make-up and
function of the board and a charter for each of these committees. The charter for each committee
requires that such committee be comprised of at least three independent directors and in the case of
the audit committee, also requires that at least one member of the committee qualify as a “financial
expert.” All of the members of each committee were independent during their period of service on
such committee and in the case of the audit committee, each such member was also financially literate.

You can find each charter and the corporate governance guidelines by accessing the corporate
governance section of our website at: www.onelibertyproperties.com/corporate_governance. You may also
obtain, without charge, a copy of each charter and the corporate governance guidelines by writing to us
at 60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, New York 11021, Attention: Secretary.

The table below provides membership and meeting information for each of the standing board
committees for 2011:

Nominating and
Name Audit Compensation  Corporate Governance

Joseph AL Amato . . ....... ... ...
Charles Biederman. . .. .......... ... ..

James J.Burns. .. ... ... Chair* 4 Chair
Joseph A.Deluca . ....... ... ... i 4

J. Robert Lovejoy . ......... . ... 4

Louis P Karol . ..... ... ... ... . I
Eugene I. Zuriff. . ... ... ... 4 Chair I
Number of Meetings . ............. ... .. 5 3 3

*  Audit committee financial expert



Audit Committee

This committee is responsible for assisting the board in overseeing, among other things, (i) the
integrity of our financial statements, (ii) our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
(iii) the independent registered public accounting firm’s qualifications and independence, (iv) the
performance of the independent registered public accounting firm, (v) the performance of the
accounting firm performing our internal control audit function, and (vi) the preparation of the audit
committee report required by the Securities and Exchange Commission for inclusion in this proxy
statement. The audit committee is also responsible for the selection and engagement of our
independent registered public accounting firm and for approving related party transactions.

Compensation Committee

This committee recommends the base salary and annual bonus to our full-time officers, fees to be
paid to our directors and recommends and/or determines awards under our equity based incentive
plans.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

This committee is responsible for, among other things, recommending a slate of directors for
election to the board of directors at the annual stockholders’ meeting, recommending committee
assignments to the board of directors, identifying and recommending candidates to fill vacancies on the
board of directors between annual stockholder meetings, recommending a slate of officers for election
by the board of directors at the annual directors’ meeting, proposing, monitoring and recommending
changes to our corporate governance guidelines and overseeing the evaluation of effectiveness of our
board of directors and the committees thereof.

Director Qualifications

The board believes that it should be comprised of directors with complementary backgrounds, and
that directors should, at a minimum, have experience which is relevant to our business or otherwise be
of assistance to the board in its deliberations. Our nominating and corporate governance committee
(the “nominating committee”) has not adopted a formal diversity policy in connection with the
consideration of director nominations or the selection of nominees. It considers the personal and
professional attributes and the experience of each director candidate to promote diversity of expertise
and experience among our directors. Additionally, directors should possess the highest personal and
professional ethics in order to perform their duties properly, and should be willing and able to devote
the required amount of time to our business.

When considering candidates for director, the nominating committee will take into account a
number of factors, including the following:

* Independence from management;
* Whether the candidate has relevant business experience;
e Judgment, skill, integrity and reputation;

* Financial and accounting background, to enable the nominating committee to determine whether
the candidate would be suitable for audit committee membership;

* Executive compensation background, to enable the nominating committee to determine whether
the candidate would be suitable for compensation committee membership; and

* The size and composition of the existing board.



The nominating committee will consider candidates for director suggested by stockholders applying
the criteria for candidates described above and considering the additional information referred to
below. Stockholders wishing to suggest a candidate for director should write to our Secretary and
include:

* A statement that the writer is a stockholder and is proposing a candidate for consideration by
the nominating committee;

¢ The name of and contact information of the candidate;

* A detailed statement of the candidate’s business and educational experience and an explanation
of the reasons why the stockholder believes the candidate is qualified for service on our board of
directors;

* Information regarding each of the factors listed above sufficient to enable the nominating
committee to evaluate the candidate;

* A statement detailing any relationship between the candidate and any of our competitors;

* Detailed information about any relationship or understanding between the proposing stockholder
and the candidate; and

* A statement that the candidate is willing to be considered and willing to serve as a director if
nominated and elected.

When seeking candidates for director, the nominating committee may solicit suggestions from
management, incumbent directors and others. The nominating committee or its chairman will interview
a candidate if it believes the candidate might be suitable to be a director. The nominating committee
may also ask the candidate to meet with management.

The nominating committee generally intends to recommend that the Board nominate incumbent
directors whom the committee believes will continue to make important contributions to us, inasmuch
as the committee believes that the continuing service of qualified incumbents promotes stability and
continuity, giving us the benefit of the familiarity and insight into our affairs that its directors have
accumulated during their tenure, while contributing to the Board’s ability to work as a collective body.

Independence of Directors

The board reviews director independence annually and bases its independence determinations
primarily on a review of the responses of the directors to questions regarding employment and
compensation history, affiliations, family and other relationships and discussions with the directors.

In determining whether our directors are independent, our board of directors employs the New
York Stock Exchange director independence standards. These standards provide:

* No director qualifies as “independent” unless the board affirmatively determines that the
director has no material relationship with us or any of our subsidiaries (either directly or as a
partner, sharcholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with us or any of our
subsidiaries);

* A director who is an employee, or whose immediate family member is an executive officer, of
ours or any of our subsidiaries is not independent until three years after the end of such
relationship;

* A director who received, or whose immediate family member received, during any twelve-month
period within the last three years, more than $120,000 in direct compensation from us or any of
our subsidiaries, other than director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred
compensation for prior services (provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on



continued service), is not independent until three years after he or she ceases to receive more
than $120,000 in any twelve-month period;

* A director who is, or who has an immediate family member who is, a current partner of our
internal or external auditor, a director who is a current employee of our internal or external
auditor, a director who has an immediate family member who is a current employee of our
internal or external auditor and who personally participates in our audit, or a director who was,
or whose immediate family member was, within the last three years, a partner or employee of
our internal or external auditor and personally worked on our audit within that time, cannot be
considered independent;

e A director who is employed, or whose immediate family member is employed, as an executive
officer of another company where any of our or any of our subsidiaries’ present executives serve
on that company’s compensation committee is not “independent” until three years after the end
of such service or the employment relationship; and

* A director who is a current employee, or whose immediate family member is a current executive
officer, of a company that has made payments to, or received payments from, us or any of our
subsidiaries for property or services in an amount which, in any single fiscal year, exceeds the
greater of $1 million, or 2% of such other company’s consolidated gross revenues, is not
“independent” until the commencement of the third fiscal year following the fiscal year in which
such payments fall below such threshold.

Our board has determined that each of Joseph A. Amato, James J. Burns, Charles Biederman,
Joseph A. Deluca, Louis P. Karol, J. Robert Lovejoy and Eugene 1. Zuriff are independent. In
evaluating Mr. Biederman’s independence, the board, at its March 19, 2012 meeting, took into account
a transaction in 2009 pursuant to which Fredric H. Gould, Chairman of the Board of Directors,
purchased from an institution for an amount equal to the unpaid principal balance, a mortgage loan
secured by a property owned personally by Mr. Biederman. Mr. Gould waived interest payments after
his acquisition of the loan. Mr. Biederman repaid the unpaid principal balance of the loan in
October 2010.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the compensation committee members were ever officers or employees of our company or
has had any relationship requiring disclosure by us under any paragraph of Item 404 (Transactions with
Related Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons) of Regulation S-K.

Communications with Directors

Stockholders, employees and other interested persons who want to communicate with the board,
any committee of the board, or any individual director can write to:

One Liberty Properties, Inc.
Suite 303

60 Cutter Mill Road

Great Neck, New York 11021
Attention: Secretary

The Secretary will:

¢ Forward the communication to the director or directors to whom it is addressed;



* Attempt to handle the inquiry directly; for example where it is a request for information about

the company or it is a stock-related matter; or

* Not forward the communication if it is primarily commercial in nature or if it relates to an

improper or irrelevant topic.

At each board meeting, the Secretary will present a summary of all communications received since
the last meeting that were not forwarded and make those communications available to the directors on

request.

In the event that a stockholder, employee or other interested person would like to communicate
with our non-management directors confidentially, they may do so by sending a letter to “Independent
Lead Director” at the address set forth above. Please note that the envelope must contain a clear

notation that it is confidential.

Compensation of Directors

Effective as of January 1, 2012, the compensation of our non-management directors consists of the

following elements:

e annual retainer of $25,000 for board service,

e annual retainer of $8,000, $3,000 and $3,000 for service on the audit, compensation and

nominating committees, respectively,

* annual retainer of $15,000, $4,000 and $4,000 for serving as chair of the audit, compensation and

nominating committees, respectively,

* $1,000 for each board and committee meeting attended,

 annual retainer of $15,000 for serving as independent lead director, and

e an award of restricted stock-the number of shares awarded varies from year to year.

Our directors received the following compensation for 2011:

Fees Earned or All Other

Paid in Cash Stock Awards  Compensation Total
Name(1) $ @) $G) QIC) $
Joseph A. Amato. . ....... ... ... ... ... 23,500 28,333 11,220 63,053
Charles Biederman ....................... 24,000 28,333 12,540 64,873
James J.Burns ............. ... ... ... ... . 54,500 28,333 12,540 95,373
Joseph A.Deluca . . ....... ... ... ... .... 34,000 28,333 12,540 74,873
Jeffrey A. Gould .. ....... ... ... ... .... — 84,188 122,933(5) 207,121
Matthew J. Gould .. ...................... 100,000 84,188 122,933(5) 307,121
J. Robert Lovejoy . .......... . ... ... ... 31,250 28,333 11,220 70,803
Louis P Karol ........................... 29,000 28,333 3,465 60,798
Eugene . Zuriff .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... 45,500 28,333 11,220 85,053

(1) The compensation received by Fredric H. Gould, chairman of the board and Patrick J. Callan, Jr.,
president, chief executive officer and a director, is set forth in the Summary Compensation Table
and is not included in this table. All of the directors in this table are non-management directors,

except for Jeffrey A. Gould and Matthew J. Gould.

(2) Includes all fees earned for services as a director, including annual retainer fees, committee and
committee chairman fees and meeting fees. Each non-management member of the board of
directors is entitled to reimbursement of travel and other expenses incurred in connection with
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©)

(4)

©)

attendance board and committee meetings. The reimbursement amounts are not included in this
table. The fees for Matthew J. Gould are paid for his service as vice chairman of the board.

Represents the aggregate grant date fair value completed in accordance with ASC Topic 718. Each
of these directors was awarded 1,750 shares of restricted stock other than Jeffrey A. Gould and
Matthew J. Gould who were each awarded 5,200 shares of restricted stock for services rendered
and to be rendered as our executive officers.

Represents dividends declared in 2011 on unvested restricted shares awarded under our 2003
Incentive Plan and 2009 Incentive Plan.

Includes compensation of $93,101 received in 2011 by each of Jeffrey A. Gould and Matthew J.
Gould, representing approximately 55% of the total compensation of $169,275 received by each of
them from Majestic Property Management Corp., an entity wholly owned by Fredric H. Gould,
which performs services on our behalf and which received 55% of its 2011 revenues from us. See
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

The table below shows the number of outstanding shares of our unvested restricted stock and

restricted stock units (“RSU’s”) held by each director at December 31, 2011:

Market Value
of Unvested
Unvested Restricted Stock and
Restricted Unvested Restricted Stock Units
Name(1) Stock (#) RSU’s (#)(2) $)@3)
Joseph A. Amato . ........ ... ... ... . .. 8,500 — 140,250
Charles Biederman .. ................... ... ..... 9,500 — 156,750
James J.Burns . ....... ... .. ... .. 9,500 — 156,750
Joseph A. DeLuca ........... ... ... ... ... .. 9,500 — 156,750
Jeffrey A. Gould . .. ... ... ... 22,600 14,286 608,619
Matthew J. Gould . . . ........ ... .. ... ... .. ..... 22,600 14,286 608,619
J.Robert Lovejoy .. ... 8,500 — 140,250
Louis P Karol.......... ... .. .. .. . .. .. . ... .. 2,625 — 43,313
Eugene I. Zuriff(3) .. ... ... ... 8,500 — 140,250
(1) The outstanding RSU’s and shares of restricted stock held by Fredric H. Gould and Patrick J.

(@)

©)

Callan, Jr., are set forth in the “Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year End” table and are not
included in the above table. All of the directors in this table are non-management directors, except
for Jeffrey A. Gould and Matthew J. Gould.

The RSU’s vest if and to the extent applicable performance or market conditions are met at
June 30, 2017. See “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End.”

The closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on December 30, 2011 for a share of our
common stock was $16.50.

11



STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The following table sets forth, as of the April 9, 2012, information concerning shares of our

common stock owned by (i) all persons known to own beneficially 5% or more of our outstanding
stock, (ii) all directors and nominees for election as directors, (iii) each executive officer named in the
Summary Compensation Table, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group:

Amount of
Beneficial Percent

Name Ownership(1) of Class
Joseph AL Amato . . ...t 17,852 *
Charles Biederman . ... ... ... i e 9,750 *
James J. Burns . .. ... .. e 20,694 *
Patrick J. Callan, Jr. . ... ... . e 68,563 *
Joseph A. DeLuca(2) ... ... 20,837 *
Fredric H. Gould(3)(4) . . . . o 2,090,542 14.1
Jeffrey A. Gould(S) . . . v v 233,282 1.6
Matthew J. Gould(3)(6) . . . . o 1,735,979 11.7
David W. Kalish(7) . ... 259,028 1.8
Louis P. Karol . . . ... . e 5,125 *

J. Robert Lovejoy(8) . . . v 43,574 *
Mark H. Lundy(9) . . . . .o 69,351 *
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. ... ... . e 54,871 *
Eugene . Zuriff . . ... e 14,657 *
Directors and officers as a group (21 individuals)(3) . .................... 3,253,738 22.0
Gould Investors L.P.(3)(10) .. ...t 1,499,968 10.1
Black Rock, Inc.(11) . . ..ot 828,428 5.6

*

()

(@)

®)

4)

Less than 1%

Securities are listed as beneficially owned by a person who directly or indirectly holds or shares the
power to vote or to dispose of the securities, whether or not the person has an economic interest
in the securities. In addition, a person is deemed a beneficial owner if he has the right to acquire
beneficial ownership of shares within 60 days of April 9, 2012. The percentage of beneficial
ownership is based on 14,787,152 shares of common stock outstanding on April 9, 2012.

Includes 20,837 shares of common stock, some of which are held directly and some of which are
held by a corporation of which Joseph A. DeLuca is the sole shareholder. Does not include 500
shares of common stock owned by his wife as to which he disclaims any beneficial ownership
interest.

Fredric H. Gould is sole stockholder, sole director and chairman of the board of the corporate
managing general partner of Gould Investors L.P. and sole member of a limited liability company
which is the other general partner of Gould Investors. Matthew J. Gould is president of the
corporate managing general partner of Gould Investors . Fredric H. Gould and Matthew J. Gould
have shared voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares owned by Gould Investors.
Accordingly, the shares owned by Gould Investors are included in the beneficial ownership of both
Fredric H. Gould and Matthew J. Gould in the above table, but are only included once in the
beneficial ownership set forth in the above table for the directors and officers as a group.

Includes 408,643 shares of common stock owned directly, 1,499,968 shares of common stock owned
by Gould Investors and 181,931 shares of common stock owned by entities, pension trusts and a
foundation over which he has sole or shared voting and dispositive power. Does not include 56,440
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©)

(6)

()

(8)

)

shares of common stock owned by his wife, as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial
ownership interest.

Includes 206,509 shares of common stock owned directly, 12,796 shares of common stock owned as
custodian for minor children (as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial ownership interest)
and 13,977 shares of common stock owned by a foundation over which he has shared voting and
dispositive power.

Includes 180,811 shares of common stock owned directly, 41,223 shares of common stock owned as
custodian for minor children (as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial ownership interest),
1,499,968 shares of common stock owned by Gould Investors and 13,977 shares of common stock
owned by a foundation over which he has shared voting and dispositive power.

Includes 82,611 shares of common stock owned directly, 3,167 shares of common stock owned by
his IRA and profit sharing trust, of which he is the sole beneficiary, and 173,250 shares of common
stock owned by pension trusts over which he has shared voting and dispositive power. Does not
include 500 shares of common stock owned by his wife, as to which shares he disclaims any
beneficial ownership interest.

Includes 43,464 shares of common stock owned directly and 110 shares of common stock owned as
custodian for a minor child (as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial ownership interest).
Does not include 4,052 shares of common stock owned by his wife, and an aggregate of 220 shares
owned by two other children as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial ownership interest.

Includes 68,085 shares of common stock owned directly and 1,266 shares of common stock owned
as custodian for minor child (as to which shares he disclaims any beneficial ownership interest).

(10) Address is 60 Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY 11021.

(11) As of December 31, 2011, based (other than with respect to percentage ownership) on information

set forth in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 13, 2012 by Black Rock, Inc. Black
Rock’s business address is 40 East 52" Street, New York, NY 10022.
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ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Proposal 1)

Pursuant to our by-laws, as amended, the number of directors was fixed at eleven by our board of
directors. The board is divided into three classes. Each class is elected to serve a three year term and is
to be as equal in size as is possible, The classes are elected on a staggered basis. The terms of
Joseph A. DeLuca, Fredric H. Gould and Eugene 1. Zuriff expire at the 2012 annual meeting. Each of
them has been recommended to the board of directors by the nominating committee for election at the
annual meeting. Eight other individuals serve as directors but are not standing for election because
their terms extend past the date of the annual meeting. Proxies will not be voted for a greater number
of persons than the number of nominees named in the proxy statement.

It is contemplated that all the nominees will stand for election. Should any nominee become
unavailable for election, all proxies (except proxies marked to the contrary) will be voted for the
election of a substitute nominee recommended by the board of directors.

If any director is unable to serve his full term, the board, by majority vote of the directors then in
office, may designate a substitute. Any director chosen by the board prior to the 2013 annual meeting
of stockholders will hold office for a term expiring at the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders and until
his successor is elected and qualifies.

Nominees for Election to serve until the 2015 Annual Meeting

The following table sets forth information certain information regarding the nominees for director
to hold office until the 2015 annual meeting of stockholders:

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships

Name and Age or Significant Affiliations
Joseph A. Deluca . ............. Director since June 2004; Principal and sole shareholder of
66 Years Joseph A. DelLuca, Inc., engaged in commercial and multi-

family real estate debt and equity investment advisory and
restructuring, since September 1998; Director of Capmark
Bank, a commercial and multi-family real estate lender since
February 2011; Member of Board of Managers of Wrightwood
Capital LLC, a private commercial real estate lender and
investment manager, since September 2010; Principal of MHD
Capital Partners, LLC from March 2006 to June 2009, an
equity oriented real estate investing entity; Director of Real
Estate Investments for Equitable Life Assurance Society of
America under a consulting contract from June 1999 to June
2002; Head of Real Estate Finance of Chemical Bank and its
successor, Chase Manhattan Bank, as Executive Vice
President / Group Head at Chemical Bank from September
1990 through the 1996 merger with the Chase Manhattan
Bank, and continuing as Managing Director / Group Head of
the Chase Real Estate Finance Group through April 1998.
After leaving the bank in 1998, Mr. DeLuca has been a
consultant on real estate matters to various public and private
entities. His years of experience in banking and the real estate
industry, particularly in real estate finance matters, provides
our board with a director who has exceptional knowledge and
understanding of real estate finance, credit issues from both
the lender’s and borrower’s perspectives, and property
acquisitions and dispositions.
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Name and Age

Fredric H. Gould . . .. ...........

76 Years

Eugene 1. Zuriff
72 Years

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships
or Significant Affiliations

Chairman of our board since June 1989, Chief Executive
Officer from December 1999 to December 2001 and from July
2005 to December 2007; Chairman of Georgetown

Partners, Inc., Managing General Partner of Gould

Investors L.P, a limited partnership engaged in real estate
ownership, since December 1997; Chairman of the board of
BRT Realty Trust, a New York Stock Exchange listed real
estate investment trust, since 1984 and President of REIT
Management Corp., adviser to BRT Realty Trust, since 1986;
Director of EastGroup Properties, Inc., a real estate
investment trust engaged in the acquisition, ownership and
development of industrial properties, since 1998. Fredric H.
Gould is the father of Jeffrey A. Gould and Matthew J.
Gould. Mr. Fredric H. Gould has been involved in the real
estate business for approximately 50 years, as an investor and
owner, and as the chief executive officer of publicly traded
real estate entities and real estate investment trusts. He has
also served as a director of four real estate investment trusts,
including serving as chairman of the board of our company,
and as a director and a member of the loan committee of two
savings and loan associations. His knowledge and experience
in business, finance, tax, accounting and legal matters and his
knowledge of our business and history makes him an
important member of our board of directors.

Director since December 2005; Consultant to the restaurant
industry since July 2010; Vice Chairman of PBS Real

Estate LLC, real estate brokers, from March 2008 through
July 2010; President of The Smith & Wollensky Restaurant
Group, Inc., developer, owner and operator of a diversified
portfolio of white tablecloth restaurants in the United States,
from May 2004 to October 2007; consultant to The Smith &
Wollensky Restaurant Group, Inc., from February 1997 to May
2004 and a Director of The Smith & Wollensky Restaurant
Group, Inc., from 1997 to October 2007; Director of Doral
Federal Savings Bank from 2001 to July 2007 and Chairman of
its audit committee from 2001 to July 2003. Mr. Zuriff’s
experience as president and a director of a publicly traded
entity, as a director and chairman of the audit committee of a
federal savings bank along with his experience in the real
estate brokerage industry provide him with knowledge and
experience that is important to our board in its deliberations.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF JOSEPH A.
DELUCA, FREDRIC H. GOULD AND EUGENE I. ZURIFF AS DIRECTORS.
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Directors to continue in office until the 2013 Annual Meeting:

Name and Age

Joseph A. Amato
76 Years

Jeffrey A. Gould
46 Years

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships
or Significant Affiliations

Director since June 1989; Real estate developer; Managing
partner of the Kent Companies, owner, manager and
developer of income producing real estate since 1970.

Mr. Amato has been principally engaged in real estate
development activities for more than 40 years, developing
residential and commercial properties. In addition he has for
many years owned and managed residential and commercial
real estate. His activities have involved, among other things,
land acquisition, infrastructure installation, building design,
construction supervision, zoning, budgeting, negotiations with
lending institutions and property sales. His broad experience
has encompassed many aspects of real estate development and
management and he brings his broad and varied experiences
to our board of directors.

Director since December 1999; Vice President of our company
from 1989 to December 1999 and a Senior Vice President
since December 1999; President and Chief Executive Officer
of BRT Realty Trust since January 2002; President and Chief
Operating Officer of BRT Realty Trust from March 1996 to
December 2001; Trustee of BRT Realty Trust since 1997,
Senior Vice President of Georgetown Partners, Inc., since
March 1996. Jeffrey A. Gould is the son of Fredric H. Gould
and brother of Matthew J. Gould. Mr. Gould has spent his
entire career in the real estate business. His principal activity
for more than the past fifteen years has been first as chief
operating officer and then as chief executive officer of BRT
Realty Trust, a real estate investment trust. In these capacities,
he has operated a public REIT, dealt with many areas in the
real estate field, including evaluation, management and sale of
real estate, and is highly qualified to serve as a member of our
board of directors.
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Name and Age

Matthew J. Gould
52 Years

J. Robert Lovejoy
67 Years

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships
or Significant Affiliations

Vice Chairman of our board since January 2011; Director
since December 1999; President and Chief Executive Officer
of our company from June 1989 to December 1999 and a
Senior Vice President from December 1999 through June
2011; President of Georgetown Partners, Inc. since 1996;
Senior Vice President of BRT Realty Trust since 1993 and
Trustee since June 2004 and from March 2001 to March 2004;
Vice President of REIT Management Corp. since 1986.
Matthew J. Gould is the son of Fredric H. Gould and brother
of Jeffrey A. Gould. Matthew J. Gould served as our president
and chief executive officer for ten years and has served as one
of our senior vice presidents since he relinquished the CEO
position in 1999 to become president of Georgetown

Partners, Inc., the managing general partner of Gould
Investors L.P. In addition to his general knowledge of real
estate matters, he devotes a significant amount of his business
time to the acquisition and sale of real property, and he brings
his knowledge and expertise in these areas to his board
activities. He also has experience in mortgage financing and
real estate management, activities in which he is frequently
involved. His experience as a real estate executive is a
valuable asset to our board of directors in its deliberations.

Director since June 2004; Since 2000, Director, since June
2011, Chairman and since July 2011, Interim Chief Executive
Officer of Orient-Express Hotels Ltd., a New York Stock
Exchange listed luxury lodging company and sophisticated
adventure travel operator. Founder and principal of J.R.
Lovejoy & Co. LLC, providing consulting and advisory
services regarding strategy and finance to corporate,
investment and financial clients; Partner, Chief Administrative
Officer and General Counsel of Coatue Management LLC, a
privately owned investment management company, from
December 2009 through December 2010; Managing Director
of Groton Partners, LLC, merchant bankers, from January
2006 to December 2009; Senior Managing Director of
Ripplewood Holdings, LLC, a private equity investment firm,
from January 2000 to December 2005; a Managing Director of
Lazard Freres & Co. LLC and a General Partner of Lazard’s
predecessor partnership for over 15 years prior to January
2000; Mr. Lovejoy, an attorney, has extensive experience in
investment and merchant banking and throughout his career
has been involved in raising capital in private and public
transactions, mergers and acquisitions, business law and
accounting issues. His exposure to these areas makes him a
valued member of our board of directors.
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Directors to continue in office until the 2014 Annual Meeting

Name and Age

Charles Biederman. . ............

78 Years

James J. Burns
72 Years

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships
or Significant Affiliations

Director since June 1989; Chairman from January 2008 to
June 2010 of Universal Development Company, a commercial
general contractor engaged in turnkey hotel, commercial and
residential projects; Principal of Sunstone Hotel

Investors, LLC, a company engaged in the management,
ownership and development of hotel properties, from
November 1994 to December 2007; Executive Vice President
of Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc., a real estate investment
trust engaged in the ownership of hotel properties, from
September 1994 to November 1998 and Vice Chairman of
Sunstone Hotel Investors from January 1998 to November
1999. Mr. Biederman, a professional architect, was involved
for many years in the development and construction of
residential communities. He subsequently became involved, as
an executive officer and a director, in the activities of a
publicly traded real estate investment trust engaged in the
ownership of hotel properties and developed, as an investor,
principal and partner, residential properties and hotels. In his
business activities he has been involved in all aspects of real
estate ownership and operation and in real estate
development, which includes financing and related financial
matters.

Director since June 2000; Consultant (with continued primary
responsibility for income tax reporting and compliance) since
April 2009, Vice Chairman from March 2006 to March 2009
and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Reis, Inc. and its predecessor, Wellsford Real Properties, Inc.,
from October 1999 to March 2006; Partner of Ernst &
Young LLP, certified public accountants, and a predecessor
firm from January 1977 to September 1999; Director and
chairman of the audit committee of Cedar Realty Trust
(formerly known as Cedar Shopping Centers, Inc.), a real
estate investment trust engaged in the ownership,
development, management and leasing of retail properties,
since 2001. Mr. Burns has been involved for more than

45 years in accounting and auditing issues, specializing since
1975 in the real estate industry. His experience as a certified
public accountant, wealth of knowledge in financial and
accounting matters and his involvement as an officer and
director of, and as adviser to, real estate investment trusts,
makes him valuable as the chairman of, and financial expert
to, our audit committee, and an important component of our
board of directors.
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Name and Age

Patrick J. Callan, Jr. . . ... ........

49 Years

Louis P. Karol
54 Years

Principal Occupation For The Past
Five Years and other Directorships
or Significant Affiliations

Director since June 2002; President of our company since
January 2006 and Chief Executive Officer since January 2008;
Senior Vice President of First Washington Realty, Inc. from
March 2004 to November 2005; Vice President of Real Estate
for Kimco Realty Corporation, a real estate investment trust,
from May 1998 to March 2004. Mr. Callan joined us in 2002,
as a director, with significant experience in commercial leasing
with a publicly traded real estate investment trust and
thereafter served as a senior executive officer of another real
estate investment trust. His knowledge of our business and our
industry made him an excellent choice to become our
president in 2006 and our chief executive officer in 2008.

Director since April 2010; Partner of Karol Hausman &
Sosnik, PC., attorneys at law, a firm he founded in 1993,
which focuses on estate and trust matters and tax planning.
He has also represented entities and individuals in the
acquisition and sale of real estate. Mr. Karol holds a masters
degree in taxation from New York University School of Law
and is admitted to practice in the United States Tax Court.
His education and experience are of benefit to our board in
its deliberations.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. 2012 INCENTIVE PLAN
(PROPOSAL 2)
General

Our board of directors has approved, subject to stockholder approval, the adoption of the One
Liberty Properties, Inc. 2012 Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan” or the “Plan”).

The board believes that granting equity based compensation is an important component of our
compensation structure. The purpose of the Plan is to motivate, retain and attract employees, officers
and directors of experience and ability and to further the financial success of our company by aligning
the interests of participants in the Plan, through the ownership of shares of common stock, with the
interests of our stockholders.

An aggregate of 408,510 shares of restricted stock and 200,000 RSU’s issued pursuant to our
equity incentive plans were outstanding on April 9, 2012. The shares of restricted stock have a five year
cliff-vesting requirement and accordingly, the outstanding restricted shares vest in approximately equal
annual amounts through 2017. The 200,000 RSU’s vest in 2017 only if and to the extent specified
performance or market conditions are met. See “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End.”
There are 73,640 shares available to be awarded pursuant to our 2009 Incentive Plan (the “2009 Plan”)
and we propose the adoption of the 2012 Plan pursuant to which up to 600,000 shares may be awarded.
If stockholders adopt the 2012 Plan, no further awards will be made under the 2009 Plan. As of
April 17, 2012, 14,787,152 shares of our common stock were outstanding. Generally, the awards granted
each year have represented less than 1% of our outstanding shares at the time of grant.

It is anticipated that awards will be granted under the Plan to: 14 full-time and part-time executive
officers; seven independent directors; and approximately 33 full-time and part-time non-executive
officers and employees. The following summary of major features of the Plan is qualified in its entirety
by reference to the actual text of the Plan, attached as Annex A.

Shares Subject to the Plan

The total number of shares available for grant under the Plan will not exceed 600,000 shares. The
Plan authorizes the discretionary grant of (i) incentive stock options intended to qualify under
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (ii) non-qualified stock options,
(iii) restricted stock, (iv) RSU’s, and (v) performance-based awards (collectively, the “Awards”). The
shares available for issuance under the Plan will be authorized but unissued shares of common stock.
Shares related to awards that are forfeited, cancelled, terminated or expire unexercised will be available
for grant under the Plan. Neither shares tendered by a participant to pay the exercise price of an
award, nor any shares withheld by us for taxes will be available for future grants under the Plan. In the
event of a stock dividend or stock split affecting our shares, the number of shares issuable and issued
under the Plan and the number of shares covered by and the exercise price and other terms of
outstanding awards will be adjusted to reflect such event to prevent dilution or diminution of awards.

Administration of the Plan

The Plan will be administered by our compensation committee which, to the extent deemed
necessary by the board, will consist of two or more persons who satisfy the requirements for a
“non-employee director” under Rule 16(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and/or the
requirements for an “outside director” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. The compensation committee has authority to administer and construe the Plan in
accordance with its provisions. The compensation committee’s authority also includes the power to
(a) determine persons eligible for awards, (b) prescribe the terms and conditions of awards granted
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under the Plan, (c) adopt rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan which
are consistent with the Plan and (d) establish, interpret, amend or revoke any such rules.

Options

Stock options entitle the holder to purchase a specified number of shares at a specified exercise
price subject to the terms and conditions of the option grant. The purchase price per share for each
incentive stock option is determined by the compensation committee, but must be at least 100% of the
fair market value per share on the date of grant. The aggregate fair market value of shares with respect
to which incentive stock options are exercisable for the first time by an individual during any calendar
year cannot exceed $100,000. To the extent that the fair market value of shares with respect to which
incentive stock options become exercisable for the first time during any calendar year exceeds $100,000,
the portion in excess of $100,000 will be treated as a non-qualified option. Options granted under the
Plan may be exercisable for a term up to ten years. If a participant owns more than 10% of the total
voting power of all classes of our shares at the time the participant is granted an incentive stock option,
the option price per share cannot be less than 110% of the fair market value per share on the date of
grant and the term of the option cannot exceed five years.

Non-qualified options may not be granted at an exercise price per share that is less than 100% of
the fair market value per share on the date of the grant. The maximum aggregate number of shares
underlying options that may be granted in one calendar year to an individual participant is 60,000.

The closing price for our shares on the New York Stock Exchange on April 13, 2012 was $18.27
per share. There are no options outstanding under our equity inventive plans.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock are shares that may not be sold, transferred, gifted, bequeathed, pledged, assigned
or otherwise disposed of until the end of a specified restriction period. Restricted stock units and
RSU’s represent the right, upon satisfaction of specified conditions, to receive shares and are subject to
the same restrictions on transferability applicable to restricted stock. RSU’s and shares of restricted
stock will be issued at the beginning of the restriction period and the compensation committee shall set
restrictions and other conditions applicable to the vesting of such award, including restrictions based on
the achievement of specific performance goals, time based restrictions or on any other basis determined
by the compensation committee.

Recipients of restricted stock have the right to vote such shares and to receive and retain cash
dividends and other distributions, if any, paid thereon, even if such restricted stock is forfeited in the
future. Recipients of RSU’s are not entitled to vote or receive dividends with respect to the underlying
shares until such shares have been issued. Recipients of restricted stock or RSU’s will not be entitled to
delivery of the stock certificate representing the shares until all the restrictions have been fulfilled.

Generally, it is anticipated that any restricted stock or RSU that does not vest on the vesting date,
or on a date prior to the vesting date if it is determined that it cannot vest (for example due to the
termination of employment prior to achievement of a time based restriction), will be forfeited to us and
the recipient will not thereafter have any rights (including rights to dividends and distributions) with
respect to these securities.

No more than 60,000 shares of each of restricted stock and RSU’s will be awarded to any
participant in any calendar year. We will not repurchase outstanding restricted stock or RSU’s in
exchange for cash. Except as otherwise provided in an award agreement, in the event of the death,
disability or retirement (as defined in the Plan) the restriction period shall not automatically terminate.
The compensation committee may grant restricted stock or RSU’s and set restrictions based upon
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performance goals so that such grant would qualify as “performance based compensation” under
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Performance Based Awards

Performance based awards will be made by the issuance of restricted stock, RSU’s or other
Awards, or a combination thereof, contingent upon the attainment of one or more performance goals
(described below) that our compensation committee establishes. The minimum period with respect to
which performance goals are measured is one year, but the compensation committee generally intends
to establish a performance cycle of not less than three years. The maximum number of shares with
respect to which a participant may be granted performance based awards in any calendar year is 60,000
shares.

The terms and conditions of a performance based award will provide for the vesting of the award
to be contingent upon the achievement of one or more specified performance goals that the
compensation committee establishes. For this purpose, “performance goals” means for a performance
cycle, the specific goals that the compensation committee establishes that may be based on one or more
of the following performance criteria:

* revenue,

* carnings,

* stock price,

e cash flows,

* costs,

* return on equity,

* stockholders’ equity (book value),
* total equity,

* asset growth,

* net operating income,

° average occupancy,

* year-end occupancy,

* funds from operations,

e adjusted funds from operations,

e cash available for distribution,

e total stockholder return,

* return on assets, or

* goals relating to acquisitions or divestitures.

The performance goals need not be the same with respect to all participants and may be
established for us as a whole, on a per share basis or may be based on our performance compared to
the performance of businesses specified by the compensation committee or compared to any prior
period.
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Amendment and Termination of the Plan

No awards may be made under the Plan on or after the tenth anniversary of the Plan’s effective
date. Our board of directors may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time for any reason.
However, no amendment shall permit the repricing, replacing or regranting of an option in connection
with the cancellation of the Option or by amending an Award Agreement to lower the exercise price of
an option or the cancellation of any award in exchange for cash without stockholder approval. In
addition, before the plan can be amended, modified or terminated, where such amendment,
modification or termination would adversely affect a participant who has already been granted an
award, such participant’s consent must be obtained.

Change in Control

Any awards granted under the Plan that are outstanding and not then exercisable or subject to
restrictions at the time of a change in control (as defined in the Plan) shall, except as otherwise
provided in the award agreement, become immediately exercisable and all restrictions shall be removed
effective as of such change in control. The Plan defines a change in control as follows:

(a) the acquisition in one or more transactions by any person (as defined in Section 13(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of the beneficial ownership (within the meaning of
Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of 25% or more of the outstanding shares
or the combined voting power of the then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors (provided that this provision is not applicable to acquisitions made individually, or as a
group, by Fredric H. Gould, Matthew J. Gould and Jeffrey A. Gould and their respective spouses,
lineal descendants and affiliates);

(b) individuals who, at the date of the award, constitute our board of directors cease for any
reason to constitute at least a majority of the board, provided an individual becoming a director
subsequent to the date of an award whose election or nomination for election was approved by a
vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the board shall be considered as though
such individuals were a member of the board, but excluding any individual whose initial
assumption of office occurs as a result either of an actual or threatened election contest or other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consent by and behalf of a person other than the
board;

(c) the closing of a sale or other conveyance of all or substantially all of our assets;

(d) the effective time of any merger or other business combination involving us if
immediately after such transactions persons who hold a majority of outstanding voting securities
entitled to vote are not persons who immediately prior to such transaction held our voting stock.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

The federal tax rules applicable to awards under the Plan under the tax code are summarized
below. This summary omits the tax laws of any municipality, state, or foreign country in which a
participant resides.

Stock option grants under the Plan may be intended to qualify as incentive stock options under
Section 422 of the tax code or may be non-qualified stock options governed by Section 83 of the tax
code. Generally, federal income tax is not due from a participant upon the grant of a stock option, and
a deduction is not taken by us. Under current tax laws, if a participant exercises a non-qualified stock
option, he or she will have taxable income equal to the difference between the market price of the
common stock on the exercise date and the stock option grant price. We are entitled to a
corresponding deduction on our income tax return. A participant will not have any taxable income
upon exercising an incentive stock option after the applicable holding periods have been satisfied
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(except that the alternative minimum tax may apply), and we will not receive a deduction when an
incentive stock option is exercised. The treatment for a participant of a disposition of shares acquired
through the exercise of a stock option depends on how long the shares were held and whether the
shares were acquired by exercising an incentive stock option or a non-qualified stock option. We may
be entitled to a deduction in the case of a disposition of shares acquired under an incentive stock
option before the applicable holding periods have been satisfied.

Generally, taxes are not due when a restricted stock (unless the participant makes election under
section 83(b) of the Code) or RSU award is initially made, but the award becomes taxable when it is
no longer subject to a “substantial risk of forfeiture” (it becomes vested or transferable), in the case of
restricted stock, or when shares are issuable in connection with vesting, in the case of an RSU. Income
tax is paid on the value of the stock or units at ordinary rates when the restrictions lapse, and then at
capital gain rates when the shares are sold.

Section 409A of the tax code affects taxation of awards to employees but does not affect our
ability to deduct deferred compensation. Section 409A applies to RSUs, performance units, and
performance shares. Such grants are taxed at vesting but will be subject to new limits on plan terms
governing when vesting may occur. If grants under such plans do not allow employees to elect further
deferral on vesting or on distribution, under the regulations, a negative impact should not attach to the
grants.

Section 409A of the tax code does not apply to incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options
(that are not discounted), and restricted stock, provided that there is no deferral of income beyond the
vesting date.

As described above, awards granted under the Plan may qualify as performance-based
compensation under Section 162(m) of the tax code. To qualify, stock options and other awards must
be granted under the Plan by a committee consisting solely of two or more outside directors (as
defined under Section 162 regulations) and satisfy the Plan’s limit on the total number of shares that
may be awarded to any one participant during any calendar year. In addition, for awards other than
stock options to qualify, the grant, issuance, vesting, or retention of the award must be contingent upon
satisfying one or more of the performance criteria set forth in the Plan, as established and certified by
a committee consisting solely of two or more outside directors.

New Plan Benefits Table

We have not determined the type, amount or recipients of awards under the Plan. Accordingly, we
provide the following table which reflects the awards granted in 2011 pursuant to the 2009 Incentive
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Plan to the persons and groups indicated. All of such awards were in the form of restricted stock that
vest on a “cliff-vesting” basis five years after grant.

Number of Dollar

Name and Position Shares(1) Value ($)(2)

Patrick J. Callan, Jr. .. ......... ... ... ... . ... ...... 8,400 135,996
President and Chief Executive Officer

David W.Kalish . ........... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 5,200 84,188
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Fredric H. Gould ............ .. ... ... ... ... ...... 5,200 84,188
Chairman

Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. . ......... ... ... ... ....... 7,000 113,330
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Mark H. Lundy .......... ... .. .. 5,200 84,188
Senior Vice President

Executive group (14 persons)(3) . . . ... oo 56,800 919,592

Non-executive director group (7 persons) . .............. 12,250 198,328

Non-executive officer and employee group (33 persons) . . . . . 4,990 80,788

(1) Represents shares of restricted stock that vest five years after the date of grant.

(2) The value has been computed based upon $16.19 per share, the closing price for our
shares of common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on January 15, 2011, the date
of grant.

(3) Includes the five executive officers named above.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE IN FAVOR OF
THE PROPOSAL TO ADOPT THE ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. 2012 INCENTIVE PLAN.
PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE
PROPOSAL UNLESS STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY OTHERWISE.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
(PROPOSAL 3)
General

The audit committee and the board of directors is seeking ratification of the appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2012. A representative of
Ernst & Young LLP is expected to be present at our annual meeting and will have the opportunity to
make a statement if he or she desires to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate
questions.

We are not required to have our stockholders ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm. We are doing so because we believe it is good corporate
practice. If the stockholders do not ratify the selection, the audit committee will reconsider whether or
not to retain Ernst & Young LLP, but may, in its discretion, decide to retain such independent
registered public accounting firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the audit committee, in its discretion,
may change the appointment at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be
in our and our stockholders’ interests.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2012.
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Audit and Other Fees

The following table presents the fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP for the services and years
indicated:

2011 2010
Audit fees(1) . ..ot $529,104  $590,608
Audit-related fees(2) . .. ... ..o — 45,000
Tax fees(3) . . v 10,250 19,848
All other fees . . ... .. i — —
Total fees . . ..ot $539,354  $655,456

(1) Includes fees for the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, for the review
of our consolidated financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q
and for services rendered in connection with our compliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(2) Audit-related fees include fees for audits performed for significant property acquisitions.
(3) Tax fees consist of fees for tax advice, tax compliance and tax planning.

The audit committee has concluded that the provision of non-audit services listed above is
compatible with maintaining the independence of Ernst & Young LLP.

Pre-Approval Policy for Audit and Non-Audit Services

The audit committee must pre-approve all audit and non-audit services involving our independent
registered public accounting firm.

In addition to the audit work necessary for us to file required reports under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (i.e., quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and annual reports on
Form 10-K), our independent registered public accounting firm may perform non-audit services, other
than those prohibited by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, provided they are approved in advance by the
audit committee. The audit committee approved all audit and non-audit services performed by our
independent registered public accounting firm in 2011 and 2010.

Approval Process

Annually, the audit committee reviews the audit scope for that year, including the proposed audit
fee associated with the audit services in connection with our compliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The audit committee may, at the time it reviews the proposed audit fees
or subsequently thereafter, approve the provision of tax and other non-audit related services and the
maximum expenditure which may be incurred for such services for such year. Any fees for the audit in
excess of those approved and any fees for non-audit related services in excess of the maximum
established by the audit committee must receive the approval of the audit committee.

Proposals for any other non-audit services to be performed by the independent registered public
accounting firm must be approved by the audit committee.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the board of directors is comprised of three independent directors and
operates under a written charter adopted by the board of directors. The audit committee reviews the
charter on an annual basis. The board of directors has reviewed Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the New York Stock Exchange listing standards definition of
independence for audit committee members and has determined that each member of the audit
committee was independent during his service on the committee.

The role of the audit committee is to select and engage our independent registered public
accounting firm and to oversee and monitor, among other things, our financial reporting process, the
independence and performance of the independent registered public accounting firm and the
functioning of our internal controls. It is the responsibility of management to prepare financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and of the independent
registered public accounting firm to perform an independent audit of the financial statements and to
express an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with generally accepted accounting
principles.

In performing its duties, the audit committee:

* met and held discussions with management, the independent registered public accounting firm
and the accounting firm performing the internal control audit function on our behalf;

* discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the overall scope and plan for
its activities and reviewed with the accounting firm performing the internal control function its
work plan and the scope of its activities;

* obtained representations from management to the effect that the year-end consolidated financial
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

* was advised by the independent registered public accounting firm that it would render an
unqualified opinion with respect to the year-end consolidated financial statements;

* reviewed and discussed the year end consolidated financial statements with management and the
independent registered public accounting firm;

e discussed our internal control procedures and their evaluation of the internal controls with
management, the independent registered public accounting firm and the accounting firm
performing the internal control audit function;

 reviewed with management the process used for the certifications under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 of our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission;

* reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial statements prior to filing each Form 10-Q with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and reviewed the scope of quarterly earnings press release;

¢ discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm matters required to be
discussed by the statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (Communication with
Audit Committee);

* discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm, the registered public
accounting firm’s independence from the Company and management, and received the written
disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by
Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit
Committees); and

 reviewed and approved the independent registered public accounting firm’s fees, both for
performing audit and non-audit services, and considered whether the provision of non-audit
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services by the independent registered public accounting firm was compatible with maintaining
the independent registered public accounting firm’s independence and concluded that it was
compatible.

The audit committee meets with the independent registered public accounting firm and the
accounting firm performing the internal control audit function, with and without management present,
to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of the internal controls, and the overall
quality of our financial reporting.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the audit committee recommended that
the audited financial statements for 2011 be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The audit committee approved the retention of Ernst & Young LLP as independent registered
public accounting firm for 2012 after reviewing the firm’s performance in 2011 and its independence
from us and management.

Respectfully submitted.

James J. Burns
Joseph A. DelLuca
Eugene 1. Zuriff
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Highlights

The following are highlights of our compensation practices; we encourage you to read the more
detailed information set forth herein:

the compensation we pay our full-time named executive officers is generally related (though,
with the exception of the RSU’s, not formulaically tied to) our performance. Among other
things,

- Messrs. Callan and Ricketts were awarded increases in base salaries effective as of January 1,
2011, reflecting, among other things, their efforts with respect to our acquisition of 14
properties for an aggregate of $72.3 million and the increase of more than 75% in our stock
price during 2010.

- Messrs. Callan and Ricketts were awarded bonuses of $65,000 and $45,000 for 2011, reflecting,
among other things, their efforts with respect to,

(i) increasing revenues, net income per share, funds from operations per share and
adjusted funds from operations per share from 2010 by more than $4.3 million, $0.15,
$0.03 and $0.03, respectively,

(ii) our public offering from which we received net proceeds of approximately
$40.7 million, and

(iii) the six properties we acquired in 2011 for an aggregate of approximately $28 million.

total compensation for our full-time named executive officers decreased slightly in 2011
from 2010;

all of our executive officers are employees at will—none of our officers have employment
agreements;

there are no severance or similar arrangements for our executive officers, other than the
accelerated vesting of shares of restricted stock and RSU’s upon the occurrence of specified
events (e.g. death, disability, retirement or a change of control);

there are no excise tax gross ups or similar arrangements for our executive officers;

the shares of restricted stock awarded to our executive officers vest (assuming continued service)
approximately five years after the grant date on a “cliff-vesting” basis;

the RSU’s awarded to our executive officers vest (assuming continued service) on a “cliff-
vesting” basis approximately seven years after the grant date and only if, and to the extent that,
performance metrics are satisfied—we believe that these conditions establish challenging hurdles
as only 50% of the awards would have vested as of December 31, 2011; and

though we do not have a formal policy requiring a minimum level of stock ownership, our
executive officers and directors own beneficially in the aggregate approximately 3.25 million
shares or 22% of our outstanding shares.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This compensation discussion and analysis describes our compensation objectives, policies and
decisions as applied to the compensation provided by us in 2011 to our named executive officers. This
discussion and analysis focuses on the information contained in the compensation tables that follow this
discussion and analysis, but also describes our historic compensation structure to enhance an
understanding of our executive compensation disclosure. Our compensation committee oversees our
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compensation program, recommends the compensation of the executive officers employed by us on a
full-time basis to our board of directors for its approval, recommends the annual fee paid by us to the
chairman and vice chairman of our board of directors, and recommends the annual fees paid by us
pursuant to a compensation and services agreement to Majestic Property Management Corp., an
affiliated entity (“Majestic”), which results in the payment by Majestic of compensation to our
part-time officers, including Fredric H. Gould, David W. Kalish and Mark H. Lundy, named executive
officers. Majestic is wholly-owned by Fredric H. Gould, the chairman of our board.

Background

We have two categories of officers: (i) officers who devote their full business time to our affairs;
and (ii) officers who devote their business time to us on a part-time basis. Our full-time officers and
employees are compensated directly and solely by us and our part-time officers and employees are
compensated by Majestic which provides to us, pursuant to the compensation and services agreement,
the services of other personnel (including executive, administrative and legal, accounting and clerical
personnel) performing services on our behalf. In consideration for providing services and the services of
such personnel, we paid Majestic a fee of $2,725,000 for 2011. Majestic may earn a profit from
payments made to it under the agreement. In addition, under this agreement, we paid the chairman of
our board $250,000 in 2011 and made an additional payment to Majestic of $175,000 in 2011 for our
share of all direct office expenses, including rent, telephone, computer services, internet usage and
supplies. The amount of annual payments to be made by us to Majestic under the compensation and
services agreement are negotiated annually by our audit committee and Majestic and at other times as
may be determined by our audit committee.

All of our full-time and part-time officers and other employees, including employees of affiliated
companies who perform services for us on a part-time basis, receive annual restricted stock awards
approved by the compensation committee and the board of directors.

Named Executive Officers

Our named executive officers are Patrick J. Callan, Jr., president and chief executive officer and
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr., executive vice president and chief operating officer, both of whom devote
their full time to our affairs, and Fredric H. Gould, chairman of our board, David W. Kalish, a senior
vice president and chief financial officer, and Mark H. Lundy, a senior vice president and secretary,
who devote time to our affairs on a part-time basis.

Say-on-Pay

In reviewing our compensation philosophy and practices and in approving base salaries for 2012
and bonuses paid for services rendered in 2011, the compensation committee was aware of the results
of our June 2011 “say-on-pay” vote in which approximately 83% of the shares actually voted on such
proposal voted to approve our executive compensation practices, and viewed such results as generally
supportive of our compensation philosophy, practices and determinations.

Objectives of our Compensation Program

A principal objective of our compensation program for full-time officers is to ensure that the total
compensation paid to such officers is fair and competitive. The compensation committee believes that
relying on this principle will permit us to retain and motivate these officers. With respect to our
part-time executive officers, the compensation committee must be satisfied that such officers provide us
with sufficient time and attention to fully meet our needs and fully perform their duties on our behalf.
The compensation committee is of the opinion that our part-time executive officers perform valuable
services on our behalf, devote sufficient time and attention to our business needs, are able to fully meet
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our needs and perform their duties effectively. The compensation committee is also of the opinion that
utilizing the services of various senior officers with diverse skills on a part-time basis enables us to
benefit from a greater degree of executive experience and competence than an organization of our size
could otherwise afford.

We have historically experienced an extremely low level of officer and employee turnover.
Fredric H. Gould, David W. Kalish and Mark H. Lundy each has been an officer with us for over
20 years and Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. has been employed by us for approximately thirteen years.
Patrick J. Callan, Jr. has been a member of our board of directors for eight years, our president for
over five years and our chief executive officer for over four years.

Compensation Setting Process
Full-time Officers

Our compensation committee refers to the compensation survey prepared for the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT) to understand the base salary, bonus,
long-term incentives and total compensation paid by other REITs to their officers to assist it in
providing a fair and competitive compensation package to our full-time officers. Although there are
many REITs engaged in the ownership and management of real estate, there are few equity REITs
which have a market capitalization comparable to ours. As a result, the NAREIT compensation survey,
although not directly applicable to us, does provide informative data for the compensation committee
to use in its deliberations. We determine compensation for our full-time named executive officers on a
case-by-case basis and our compensation decisions are subjective. Other than with respect to the RSU’s,
which are performance based awards issued in 2010, we do not use formal performance targets.

In determining compensation for 2011, the recommendations of Fredric H. Gould, chairman of our
board, played a significant role in the compensation setting process since, as chairman of the board, he
is aware of each officer’s duties and responsibilities and was most qualified to assess the level of each
officer’s performance. The chairman of our board, prior to making recommendations to the
compensation committee concerning each full-time officer’s compensation, consulted with other senior
executive officers, including our president and chief executive officer. During the process, our overall
performance for the immediately preceding fiscal year, including total revenues, funds from operations,
net income dividends paid to stockholders, performance of our common stock and acquisition and
financing activities were taken into consideration. None of these measures of performance was given
more weight than any other. The chairman of the board and other senior officers also assessed each
individual’s performance in such year, which assessment was highly subjective. During this process, the
chairman of our board proposed to the compensation committee with respect to each full-time named
executive officer, a base salary for 2011, a bonus applicable to the 2010 and payable in 2011 and the
number of shares of restricted stock to be awarded to each full-time named executive officer. At its
annual compensation committee meeting, the compensation committee reviewed these
recommendations. The compensation committee has discretion to accept, reject or modify the
recommendations. The final recommendations by the compensation committee on compensation
matters with respect to all officers was reported to the board of directors, which approved the
recommendations of the committee.

Part-time Officers

We believe that using part-time officers pursuant to the compensation and services agreement
enables us to benefit from access to, and the services of, a group of senior officers with experience and
knowledge in real estate ownership, operations and management and finance, legal, accounting and tax
matters that an organization our size could not otherwise afford. Our chairman, in consultation with
certain of our part-time senior officers, determines the base compensation, bonus, if any, and
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perquisites to be paid in the aggregate to our part-time officers by all entities which are provided
services by such officers.

Our part-time officers, including our chairman, also receive compensation from other business
entities, most of which are owned or controlled by our chairman, for services rendered to such entities.

Components of Executive Compensation
Full-time Officers
The principal elements of our compensation program for our full-time officers are:
* base salary;
e annual bonus;

* long-term equity in the form of restricted stock and long-term equity incentives in the form of
RSU’s; and

* special benefits and perquisites (e.g., contributions to our defined contribution plan, additional
disability insurance, an automobile allowance and automobile maintenance and repairs).

Base salary and annual bonus are cash-based, while long-term equity and long-term equity
incentives consists of restricted stock awards and RSU’s, respectively. In determining compensation, the
compensation committee does not have a specific allocation goal between cash and equity-based
compensation.

Part-time Officers

In 2011, except for the $250,000 annual compensation we paid to the chairman of our board and
the $100,000 paid to the vice chairman of our board, the only form of direct compensation we provided
to our part-time officers was the granting of long-term equity in the form of restricted stock awards.
For services rendered to us, our part-time officers are compensated by Majestic, which was paid a fee
of $2,725,000 (excluding $175,000 as reimbursement for our share of direct office expenses) in 2011
pursuant to the compensation and services agreement.

Base Salary

Base salary is the basic, least variable form of compensation for the job an officer performs and
provides each officer with a guaranteed monthly income.

Full-time Officers: Base salaries of full-time officers are targeted to be competitive with the
salaries paid to officers at other REITs with a market capitalization similar to ours. Any increase in
base salary is determined on a case by case basis, is not formula based and is based upon, among other
considerations (i) our performance in the preceding year, (ii) such officer’s current base salary,

(iii) amounts paid by other REITS for officers performing substantially similar functions, (iv) years of
service, (v) job responsibilities, (vi) the individual’s performance and (vii) the recommendation of the
chairman of the board and other senior executive officers.

Part-time Officers: The base salary of our part-time officers is paid by Majestic and its affiliates.
Since the annual fee paid to Majestic is approved by the audit and compensation committees and the
board of directors, the compensation committee is not involved in determining the base salaries of
these officers.
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Bonus

Full-time Officers: 'We provide the opportunity for our full-time officers to earn an annual cash
bonus. We provide this opportunity both to reward our personnel for past performance and to motivate
and retain them. We recognize that annual bonuses are almost universally provided by other companies
with which we might compete for talent. In view of the fact that only two of our named executive
officers devote their full-time to our affairs, annual cash bonuses for such named executive officers are
recommended on a case-by-case basis by the Chairman of the Board to compensation committee.
During the process, we consider our overall performance for the immediately preceding year, including
rental revenues, funds from operations, net income dividends paid to stockholders and the performance
of our common stock. None of these measures of performance is given more weight than any other and
they are used to provide an overall view of our performance for the preceding year. Once it has
determined the annual bonus to be paid to each named executive officer, the compensation committee
presents its recommendations to the board of directors for its approval.

Fart-time Officers: The annual bonus, if any, to be paid to any part-time officer is the
responsibility of Majestic pursuant to the compensation and services agreement. Since the annual fee
paid to Majestic is approved by the audit and compensation committees and the board of directors, the
compensation committee is not involved in determining the bonuses paid to part-time officers.

Long-term Equity and Long-term Equity Incentive Awards

We provide the opportunity for our full-time and part-time officers to receive long-term equity and
long-term equity incentive awards. These compensation programs are designed to recognize
responsibilities, reward performance, motivate future performance, align the interests of our officers
with those of our stockholders and retain our officers. The compensation committee makes
recommendations to our board of directors for the grant of equity awards for all our employees,
including part-time officers and employees. In determining the long-term equity and long-term equity
incentive compensation components, the compensation committee considers all factors it deems to be
relevant, including our performance and individual performance. Existing stock ownership levels are not
a factor in award determinations. All outstanding equity awards were granted under either our
stockholder approved 2003 Incentive Plan or 2009 Incentive Plan.

In 2010, we issued RSU’s for the first time. Each RSU entitles the recipient to one share of
common stock upon vesting. Assuming continued service, vesting occurs on June 30, 2017 if and to the
extent pre-established market (i.e. total average annual stockholder return) or performance (i.e.,
average annual return on capital) conditions are met. See “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year
End.” Further, at least 50% of the shares that are issued pursuant to vested RSU’s must be retained
until 2020 and the shares may be subject to a “clawback” in the event of a restatement of the financial
statements. We initiated the use of RSU’s as an element of our long-term equity compensation
program with the expectation that in light of the long vesting period and the need to satisfy market
and/or financial performance conditions, these awards would further align the interests of our executive
officers with our stockholders and reward long-term market and financial performance.

We do not have a formal policy with respect to whether equity compensation should be paid in the
form of stock options, restricted stock or RSU’s. We generally grant restricted stock awards which vest
after five years of service and in 2010, also granted RSU’s that vest after seven years of service if , and
to the extent, specified performance or market conditions are met. The compensation committee
generally believes that restricted stock awards and RSU’s are more effective than options in achieving
our compensation objectives. Restricted stock has a greater retention value than options because of its
five-year cliff vesting requirement and, because before vesting, cash dividends are paid on all
outstanding restricted stock as an additional element of compensation. RSU’s provide an additional
incentive component to equity based awards in that the units only vest if, and to the extent,
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performance or market conditions are satisfied. Restricted stock and RSU’s align the interests of our
officers with our stockholders and because fewer shares are normally awarded than in connection with
the grant of options, they are potentially less dilutive.

Generally, our equity compensation grants are made in January or February of each year. We do
not have a formal policy on timing these grants in connection with the release of material non-public
information and in view of the five-year and seven-year “cliff” vesting requirements with respect to
restricted stock awards and RSU’s, respectively, we do not believe such a formal policy is necessary.

Our compensation committee has reviewed our compensation policies and practices to ascertain if
the risks arising from such policies or practices are reasonably likely to have a materially adverse effect
on us. The compensation committee concluded that while our compensation program takes into
account our performance, the program does not encourage excessive or unnecessary risk-taking and our
policies and practices achieve a balance between annual performance and long-term growth.

Executive Benefits and Perquisites

Full-time Officers: We provide our full-time officers with a competitive benefits and perquisites
program. We recognize that similar benefits and perquisites are commonly provided at other companies
with which we might compete for talent. We review our benefits and perquisites program periodically to
ensure it remains fair to our officers and employees. For 2011, the benefits and perquisites we provided
to our officers were a small percentage of the compensation provided by us to them.

Fart-time Officers:  Our chairman of the board, in consultation with certain part-time senior
officers, determines the perquisites of our part-time officers. Since the annual fee we pay to Majestic is
approved by our audit and compensation committees and our board of directors, the compensation
committee does not approve the perquisites of our part-time officers.

Employment and Severance Agreements; Post Employment Benefits; Change of Control

None of our named executive officers have employment or severance agreements with us. They are
“at will” employees who serve at the pleasure of our board of directors.

We do not provide for any post-employment benefits to our named executive officers other than
(i) their right to the vested portion of the pension or other similar plan in which they participate and
(ii) the accelerated vesting of our restricted stock awards and RSU’s.

Generally, in the event of death, disability (i.e., the inability to engage in gainful activity due to a
life threatening or long lasting mental or physical impairment) or retirement (with respect to restricted
stock awarded pursuant to our 2009 Incentive Plan, having reached the age of 65 and worked for us for
at least ten consecutive years), such person’s shares of restricted stock vest fully and a pro-rata portion
(giving effect to, among other things, the amount of time between the grant and the triggering event)
of their RSU’s will vest if and to the extent the applicable performance or market conditions are met
as of June 30, 2017. In addition, upon a change of control, the (i) shares of restricted stock vest fully
and (ii) the RSU’s vest fully if such change occurs after June 30, 2015 and, if on or prior to June 30,
2015, a pro-rata portion (giving effect to, among other things, the amount of time between the grant
and such event) vests, in each case, without regard to satisfaction of market or performance conditions.
Subject to the specific terms and conditions of the applicable plan and award agreement, a change of
control is generally deemed to occur if, (i) any person becomes the “beneficial owner” of securities
representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of our then outstanding securities, (ii) the
completion of a business combination or sale of all or substantially all of our assets or (iii) there is a
change in the composition of a majority of our board of directors, other than changes approved by
incumbent directors.
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We provide for the partial vesting of RSU’s (subject to the satisfaction of performance or market
conditions at June 30, 2017) and full vesting of restricted stock awards upon death and disability,
because these events are completely outside of the control of our executives and in such circumstance,
we believe that it would be unfair for our executives to forfeit the compensation and benefits that to
which they otherwise would have been entitled. We provide for the partial vesting of RSU’s (subject to
the satisfaction of performance or market conditions at June 30, 2017) and full vesting of restricted
stock awards upon retirement as we believe it runs contrary to the retention and reward of long-term
equity and long term equity incentive awards to compel an executive to choose between retirement and
the loss of all unvested awards. We differentiate between RSU’s (i.e., partial vesting) and restricted
stock awards (i.e. full vesting) because of the additional incentive component of the RSU’s.

We provide for accelerated vesting upon a change in control (on a single trigger basis) because,
depending on the structure of the transaction, continuing such awards may unnecessarily complicate a
potentially beneficial transaction. Among other things, it may not be possible to replace these awards
with comparable awards of the acquiring company’s stock and it would not be fair to our executives to
lose the benefit of these awards. In addition, the acceleration of vesting aligns the interests of
executives in a potential change in control transaction with those of our stockholders, by motivating
them to work towards the completion of the transaction. Because in a change of control it may be
impossible to determine whether the market or performance vesting conditions applicable to RSU’s are
met as of June 30, 2017, we have instead applied a service based measure allowing for partial vesting if
the change of control occurs before July 1, 2015 and for full vesting if it occurs after such date.

Chairman of the Board’s Compensation

In 2011 we paid and in 2012 we intend to pay our chairman $250,000 for serving in such capacity.
Our chairman does not receive any additional direct compensation from us, other than any long-term
equity and long-term equity incentive awards granted to him by our board of directors based upon our
compensation committee’s recommendation. Our chairman may also receive compensation from
Majestic and its affiliates. Effective April 1, 2012, the compensation and services agreement was
amended to eliminate any obligation to compensate our chairman pursuant to such agreement. For
additional information regarding compensation of our chairman, see “Summary Compensation Table”.

Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, imposes a limitation on the
deductibility of certain compensation in excess of $1 million earned by each of the chief executive
officer and the four other most highly compensated officers of publicly held companies. In 2011, all
compensation paid to our full-time officers was deductible by us. The compensation committee intends
to preserve the deductibility of compensation payments and benefits to the extent reasonably
practicable. The compensation committee has not adopted a formal policy that requires all
compensation paid to the officers to be fully deductible.
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Analysis
Base Salary and Bonus

In accordance with the compensation setting process described above, the following base salaries
and bonuses were approved as follows for our full-time named executive officers in 2011 and 2010:

Percentage Percentage
(%) 2011 2010 (%)
2011 Base 2010 Base Salary Bonus Bonus Bonus
Name Salary ($)(1)  Salary ($)(1) Increase $Q2) $Q3) Increase
Patrick J. Callan, Jr.(4) .......... 635,000 607,000 4.6 65,000 45,000 44 4
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr ... ...... 280,000 252,000 11.1 45,000 35,000 28.6

(1) The compensation committee and board of directors determined 2011 base salary in December
2010 and 2010 base salary in December 2009. Messrs. Callan’s and Ricketts’ base salary for 2012,
which was determined in December 2011, is $660,000 and $320,000, respectively.

(2) Reflects the bonuses paid in 2012 for services rendered in 2011. These bonuses were recommended
by the compensation committee and approved by the board of directors in December 2011.

(3) Reflects the bonuses paid in 2011 for services rendered in 2010. These bonuses were recommended
by the compensation committee and approved by the board of directors in December 2010.

(4) The salary and bonus paid to Mr. Callan in 2010 have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation for 2011.

Based on the individual performance of Messrs. Callan and Ricketts in 2010 and in light of, among
other things, our acquisition of 14 properties for $72.3 million and the increase of more than 75% in
our stock price during 2010, the compensation committee concluded that an increase in base salary for
2011 was appropriate. In recommending bonuses for 2011 (which were paid in 2012 for services
rendered during 2011), the compensation committee viewed as positives the estimated increases from
the prior year of approximately $0.13 in net income per share, $0.03 per share in each of funds from
operations and adjusted funds from operations, the six properties acquired in 2011 for an aggregate of
approximately $28 million and the follow on public offering from which we received net proceeds of
approximately $40.7 million.

In 2011, the total compensation of Patrick J. Callan, Jr., our president and chief executive officer,
was 80.8% greater than the total compensation of Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr., our executive vice
president and chief operating officer. We have not adopted a policy with regard to the relationship of
compensation among our executive officers or other employees. Based upon their respective
responsibilities and experience, it was concluded that the differential was appropriate.

Long-term Equity and Equity Incentive Awards

We believe that our long-term equity and equity incentive compensation programs, using restricted
stock awards with five-year cliff vesting and RSU’s with seven-year cliff vesting, is an appropriate
incentive for our officers and is a beneficial retention tool. We are mindful of the potential dilution and
compensation cost associated with awarding shares of restricted stock and RSU’s and, therefore our
policy is to minimize dilution. In 2011, we awarded 74,040 shares of restricted stock with an aggregate
grant date fair value of $1,198,708—such shares represented 0.51% of our issued and outstanding
shares at December 31, 2011. In the five years ended December 31, 2011, we awarded an aggregate of
551,715 shares of common stock (including 200,000 RSU’s), representing an average of 0.82% per
annum of our outstanding shares of common stock as of the respective year ends. We believe the
cumulative effect of the awards is not overly dilutive and has created significant incentives for our
officers and employees.
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After reviewing the aggregate compensation received by our full-time named executive officers, our
performance in 2011, and the performance and responsibilities of each named executive officer, and
taking into account our policy of minimizing stockholder dilution, in 2012 we awarded 12,500 shares to
Patrick J. Callan, Jr., 10,000 shares of restricted stock to Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr., and 7,400 shares of
restricted stock to each of David W. Kalish, Fredric H. Gould and Mark H. Lundy. Generally, all of
such shares vest in full, assuming continued employment, in 2017.

We intend to continue to award restricted stock as we believe (i) restricted stock awards align
management’s interests and goals with stockholders’ interests and goals and (ii) officers and employees
are more desirous of participating in a restricted stock award program and, therefore, it is an excellent
motivator and employee retention tool. We have not made any determination as to whether we will
award any RSU’s or stock options in the future.

Perquisites

The perquisites we provide to our full-time officers represent a small percentage of the
compensation paid by us to these officers. We believe that such perquisites are competitive and
appropriate.

Employment and Severance Agreements

We do not enter into employment agreements or severance agreements with any of our officers or
employees as we believe such agreements are not beneficial to us, and that we can provide sufficient
motivation to officers by using other types of compensation.

Post-Employment Benefit Programs

The following table sets forth the value (based on our stock price of $16.50 per share as of
December 30, 2011) of equity awards that would vest upon the occurrence of the specified events as of
December 31, 2011:

Upon Death or Upon a Change of
Disability(1) Control
Restricted Restricted
Name Stock ($) RSU’s ($)(2) Stock ($) RSU’s ($)
Patrick J. Callan, Jr.(3) .. ...... ... 656,700 177,131 656,700 248,042
David W. Kalish . ......... ... .. ... ... ... . ... ... 372,900 50,606 372,900 70,866
Fredric H. Gould . ........ ... .. ... ... .. ... ..... 372,900 50,610 372,900 70,871
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr.(3) ........ ... ... ...... 544,500 141,705 544,500 198,434
Mark H. Lundy . ........ ... ... .. 372,900 50,610 372,900 70,871

(1) Of the named executive officers, only the restricted stock and RSU’s owned by Mr. Gould would
vest upon retirement as of December 31, 2011; the market value of his restricted stock awards and
RSU’s are reflected in the applicable column.

(2) Assumes that the maximum level of market and performance conditions would be achieved at
June 30, 2017. See “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End.”

(3) See “Summary Compensation Table” for information regarding the amount accumulated for this
individual pursuant to our tax qualified defined contribution plan.
Equity Ownership Policy

We do not have any policy regarding ownership requirements for officers or directors. In view of
the fact that our executive officers and directors as a group own approximately 3.25 million shares of
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common stock representing 22% of our outstanding shares, we do not believe there is a need to adopt
a policy regarding ownership of shares of our common stock by our officers and directors.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The compensation committee of the board of directors has reviewed the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis set forth herein, and discussed it with management, and based on such review and
discussions, recommends to the board of directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this Proxy Statement.

Respectfully submitted,

Eugene 1. Zuriff
J. Robert Lovejoy
James J. Burns
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
The following table lists the annual compensation for the periods indicated of our CEO, CFO, and

our three other named executive officers in 2011:

All Other
Stock Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus($)(4) Awards($)(1) $ Q) Total($)
Patrick J. Callan, Jr. .............. 2011 635,000 65,000 135,996 117,535(5) 953,531
President and Chief Executive 2010 607,000 45,000 217,450 108,098 977,548
Officer(3) 2009 591,000 25,000 145,596 84,993 846,589
David W. Kalish . . ................ 2011 — — 84,188 78,590(7) 162,778
Senior Vice President and 2010 — — 62,125 49,542 111,667
Chief Financial Officer(6) 2009 — — 84,448 59,141 143,589
FredricH. Gould ... .............. 2011 250,000 — 84,188 29,832(8) 364,020
Chairman of the Board(6) 2010 250,000 — 62,130 33,882 346,012
2009 250,000 — 84,448 54,003 388,451

Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. ........... 2011 280,000 45,000 113,330 89,071(9) 527,401
Executive Vice President and 2010 252,000 35,000 173,960 83,238 544,198
Chief Operating Officer(3) 2009 240,000 30,000 122,490 62,149 454,639
Mark H. Lundy . ................. 2011 — — 84,188 88,545(10) 172,733
Senior Vice President and 2010 — — 62,130 59,742 121,872
Secretary(6) 2009 — — 77,488 77,440 154,928

(1) Reflects, for 2010, the aggregate grant date fair value of the RSU’s, and for 2011 and 2009, the
grant date fair value of restricted stock awards, in each case calculated in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718—Stock Compensation, excluding the effect of
estimated forfeitures. These amounts reflect our accounting expense and do not correspond to the
actual value that will be realized by the named executives. Grant date fair value assumptions are
consistent with those disclosed in Note 10—Stock Based Compensation, in the consolidated
financial statements included in our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K. For 2010, the maximum
values of the portion of the RSU’s subject to issuance upon satisfaction of our average annual
return on capital criteria were $389,000 $111,137, $111,145, $311,120 and $111,145, for
Messrs. Callan, Kalish, F. Gould, Ricketts and Lundy, respectively. See “Outstanding Equity
Awards at Fiscal Year End.”

(2) Majestic Property Management Corp., an affiliate, provided services to us and to other affiliated
and non-affiliated entities. We accounted for approximately 55% of Majestic’s revenues in 2011.
We have included in the “All Other Compensation” column for Messrs. Kalish and Lundy, 55% of
the compensation each received from Majestic in 2011. See “Certain Relationship and Related
Transactions” for additional information.

(3) All compensation received by Patrick J. Callan, Jr. and Lawrence J. Ricketts, Jr. is paid solely and
directly by us. The salary and bonus amounts paid to Mr. Callan in 2010 and 2009 have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation for 2011.

(4) Reflects bonuses paid in 2012, 2011 and 2010 for services rendered in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

(5) Includes $36,750 of contributions to our defined contribution plan, dividends of $52,536 on

unvested restricted stock and perquisites aggregating $28,249, of which $22,324 represents an
automobile allowance and related insurance, maintenance and repairs and $5,925 represents the
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annual premium for additional disability insurance. Approximately $213,000 has been accumulated
for this individual pursuant to our defined contribution plan.

(6) We did not pay, nor were we allocated, any portion of such person’s base salary, bonus, defined
contribution plan payments or perquisites in 2011, 2010 or 2009. The services of these individuals
is provided to us pursuant to the compensation and services agreement with Majestic.

(7) Includes dividends of $29,832 on unvested restricted stock and compensation of $48,758 paid to
him by Majestic, which represents 55% of the total amount of $88,650 paid him by Majestic. See
footnote 2 above and “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

(8) Represents dividends of $29,832 on unvested restricted stock. See “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions.”

(9) Includes dividends of $43,560 on unvested restricted stock, our contribution of $36,750 to our
defined contribution plan, and perquisites of $8,761, representing an automobile allowance and
related expenses. Approximately $327,000 has been accumulated for this individual pursuant to our
defined contribution plan.

(10) Includes dividends of $29,832 on unvested restricted stock and compensation of $58,713 paid to
him by Majestic, which represents 55% of the total amount $106,750 paid him by Majestic. See
footnote 2 above and “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

GRANT OF PLAN BASED AWARDS DURING 2011

The following table summarizes information regarding restricted stock awards granted in 2011
pursuant to our 2009 Incentive Plan:

All Other Stock

Awards:
Number of Shares of

Stocks or Units Grant Date Fair Value
Name Grant Date #)(1) of Stock Awards($)(2)
Patrick J. Callan, Jr. . ...................... 1/15/2011 8,400 135,996
David W.Kalish . ......................... 1/15/2011 5,200 84,188
Fredric H. Gould ... ...................... 1/15/2011 5,200 84,188
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. . .................. 1/15/2011 7,000 113,330
Mark H. Lundy . ........ ... ... ... ..... 1/15/2011 5,200 84,188

(1) These shares generally vest five years from the grant date, subject to such persons continued
employment. Dividends are paid with respect to such shares, regardless of whether the shares vest.

(2) Based on the closing price of $16.19 per share on the grant date.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2011 about the outstanding equity

awards held by our named executive officers:

Stock Awards

Equity
Incentive
Equity Plan
Incentive Awards:
Plan Market or
Awards: Payout
Number of Value of
Market Unearned Unearned
Value of Shares, Shares,
Shares or Units or Units or
Number of Shares Units of Other Other

or Units of Stock  Stock That  Rights That  Rights That
That Have Not Have Not Have Not Have Not

Vested Vested Vested Vested

Name #) @) $Q@ #3)(7) $® @M ®)

Patrick J. Callan, Jr. .. ... ... ... ... ...... 39,800(4) 656,700 50,000 825,000

David W. Kalish .. ....................... 22,600(5) 372,900 14,285 235,703

Fredric H. Gould . ....................... 22,600(5) 372,900 14,286 235,719

Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. .. ................ 33,000(6) 544,500 40,000 660,000

Mark H. Lundy . ......... ... ........... 22,600(5) 372,900 14,286 235,719

(1) Reflects the number of shares of restricted stock that have not vested.

(2) The market value represents the product of the closing price of our common stock as of
December 30, 2011, which was $16.50, multiplied by the number of shares subject to or underlying
such award.

(3) Reflects the number of RSU’s that have not vested.

(4) With respect to this individual, 5,000 shares of restricted stock vest in February 2012, 6,000 shares
vest in February 2013, 12,000 shares vest in January 2014 and 8,400 shares vest in each of February
2015 and January 2016.

(5) With respect to this individual, 3,000 shares of restricted stock vest in each of February 2012 and
2013, 6,700 shares vest in January 2014, 4,700 shares vest in February 2015 and 5,200 shares vest in
January 2016.

(6) With respect to this individual, 4,000 shares of restricted stock vest in February 2012, 5,000 shares
vest in February 2013, 10,000 shares vest in January 2014, 7,000 shares vest in February 2015 and
7,000 shares vest in January 2016.

(7) Assumes that all of the RSU’s vest. The underlying shares vest on June 30, 2017 if, and to the

extent, the applicable market (i.e., average annual total stockholder return) or performance (i.e.,
average annual return on capital) conditions are satisfied. If the average annual total stockholder
return (including dividends) on our common stock from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2017 equals
or exceeds 13%, 50% of such award and the underlying shares subject to such award vest and if it
equals or is less than 10.25%, no shares vest. If the average annual stockholder return is more
than 10.25% and less than 13%, a pro rata portion of 50% of the underlying shares subject to such
award vest. If our average annual return on capital (as explained below) from July 1, 2010 through
June 30, 2017 exceeds 10%, 50% of the shares subject to such award vests and if it is equal to or
less than 8%, no shares vest. If our average annual return on capital exceeds 8% but is less than
10%, a pro rata portion of 50% of the underlying shares subject to such award vest. Return on
capital is based upon adjusted funds from operations (“AFFO”’). AFFO means funds from
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operations determined in accordance with the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts definition, adjusted for straight-line rent accruals and amortization of lease intangibles.
Capital is defined as stockholders’ equity, plus depreciation and amortization, adjusted for
intangibles.

(8) Assuming that the measurement and vesting dates were December 31, 2011 and giving effect to
related adjustments, 50% of the RSU’s (i.e., RSU’s that vest on the attainment at the highest level
of average annual total stockholder return) would have vested and the balance of the RSU’s would
have been forfeited.

None of the named executive officers hold any stock options and none were granted to any of the
named executive officers during the year.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table sets forth information regarding the shares of restricted stock that vested in
2011:

Stock Awards
Number of Shares Value Realized

Acquired on Vesting on Vesting
Name # 1) $) @)
Patrick J. Callan, Jr. . ......... ... ... ....... 5,000 76,300
Fredric H. Gould. .. ....... ... ... ... ... .... 3,000 45,780
David W. Kalish .......................... 3,000 45,780
Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr. ................... 4,000 61,040
Mark H. Lundy . . . ... ... i 3,000 45,780

(1) These restricted shares were awarded in 2006.

(2) This column represents the value realized on vesting as calculated by multiplying the
closing market price of our common stock of $15.26 on the vesting date by the number of
shares that vested.

None of the named executive officers had any stock options outstanding in 2011 nor did any of
their RSU’s vest.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Introduction

Fredric H. Gould, chairman of our board of directors, is chairman of the board of trustees of BRT
Realty Trust, a real estate investment trust listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He is also the
chairman of the board of directors and sole stockholder of the managing general partner of Gould
Investors L.P. and sole member of a limited liability company which is also a general partner of Gould
Investors. Gould Investors owns approximately 10.1% of our outstanding shares of common stock.
Matthew J. Gould, vice chairman of our board of directors, is a senior vice president of BRT Realty
Trust and president of the managing general partner of Gould Investors. Jeffrey A. Gould, a director
and officer of our company, is president and chief executive officer of BRT Realty Trust and a senior
vice president of the managing general partner of Gould Investors. Matthew J. Gould and Jeffrey A.
Gould are brothers and the sons of Fredric H. Gould. In addition, David W. Kalish, Mark H. Lundy,
Simeon Brinberg and Israel Rosenzweig, each of whom is an executive officer of our company, are
officers of BRT Realty Trust and of the managing general partner of Gould Investors. Mark H. Lundy
is Simeon Brinberg’s son-in-law.
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Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to the compensation and services agreement, we pay an annual fee to Majestic and
Majestic provides to us the services of all affiliated executive, administrative, legal, accounting and
clerical personnel, as well as property management services, property acquisition, sales and lease
consulting and brokerage services, consulting services in respect to mortgage financings and
construction supervisory services. In accordance with the compensation and services agreement, we paid
a fee of $2,725,000 to Majestic in 2011 for the provision of the referenced services. (This fee was
increased by $500,000 to $2,725,000 in 2011. In approving such increases, a “Compensation and Total
Cost Analysis” report prepared by an independent compensation consultant was used by our audit and
compensation committees). Majestic is wholly owned by the chairman of our board, and certain of our
part-time officers, including our part-time named executive officers, are officers of, and receive
compensation from, Majestic.

In 2011 we also paid, under the compensation and services agreement, compensation of $250,000
to our chairman and $175,000 to Majestic as reimbursement for our share of direct office expenses,
including rent, telephone, postage, computer services, internet usage and supplies. Our part-time
officers and employees occupy space in an office building owned by a subsidiary of Gould Investors.
The rent expense for this space is included in the $175,000 expenditure.

We also leased under a direct lease with the subsidiary of Gould Investors approximately 1,200
square feet of additional space in the same office building at an annual rent of $45,000. Effective
January 1, 2012, we entered into an amendment to such lease, effective through December 31, 2016,
pursuant to which we lease 3,132 square feet for an annual rent of $104,139 of which it is anticipated
that we will pay $40,000 and Majestic will pay the balance. We believe that this is a competitive rent
for comparable office space in the area in which the building is located..

The amount paid by us and our joint venture to Majestic in 2011 pursuant to the compensation
and services agreement represented approximately 55% of the revenues of Majestic in 2011. In 2011,
the following officers of ours (some of whom are also officers of Majestic and other affiliated
companies, which account for a portion of Majestic’s revenue) received the following compensation
from Majestic: Fredric H. Gould, $0; Matthew J. Gould, $169,275; David W. Kalish, $88,650; Jeffrey A.
Gould, $169,275; Simeon Brinberg, $12,000; Mark H. Lundy, $106,750; and Isracl Rosenzweig, $51,850.
A portion of the compensation received by these individuals from Majestic results from services
performed and fees earned by Majestic from entities (both affiliated and non-affiliated) other than us.
These individuals also received compensation in 2011 from our affiliates, including BRT Realty Trust,
and Gould Investors L.P, as well as other entities wholly owned by Fredric H. Gould, none of which
provided services to us in 2011.

During 2011, $603,000 of non-cash compensation expense (relating to the restricted stock and
RSU’s held by our part-time executive officers and employees who are also compensated by Majestic or
its affiliates), was charged to operations.

Policies and Procedures

Any transaction with affiliated entities raises the potential that we may not receive terms as
favorable as those that we would receive if the transactions were entered into with unaffiliated entities
or that our officers might otherwise seek benefits for affiliated entities at our expense. Our amended
and restated code of business conduct and ethics, in the “Conflicts of Interest” section, provides that
we may enter into a contract or transaction with an affiliated entity provided that any such transaction
is approved by our audit committee which is satisfied that the fees, charges and other payments made
to the affiliated entities are reasonable considering all circumstances.
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If a related party transaction is entered into, our audit committee is advised of such transaction
and reviews the facts of the transaction and either approves or disapproves the transaction. If a
transaction relates to a member of our audit committee, such member will not participate in the audit
committee’s deliberations. If our audit committee approves or ratifies a related party transaction, it will
present the facts of the transaction to our board of directors and recommend that our board of
directors approve or ratify such related party transaction. The effect of any such transaction on the
independence of any independent director must also be reviewed. Our board of directors then reviews
the transaction and a majority of our board of directors, including a majority of our independent
directors, must approve/ratify or disapprove such related party transaction. If a transaction relates to a
member of our board of directors, such member will not participate in the board’s deliberations.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires that our executive
officers and directors, and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our issued and outstanding
capital stock, file certain reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Executive officers,
directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners are required by the rules and regulations
promulgated by the SEC to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based on a review of information supplied to us by our executive officers and directors, and public
filings made by any 10% beneficial owners, we believe that all Section 16(a) filing requirements
applicable to our executive officers, directors and 10% beneficial owners with respect to 2011 were met
other than with respect to Eugene 1. Zuriff, who filed one report with respect to one transaction one
day late.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As of the date of this proxy statement, we do not know of any business that will be presented for
consideration at the meeting other than the items referred to in the Notice of the Meeting. If any other
matter is properly brought before the meeting for action by stockholders, the holders of the proxies will
vote and act with respect to the business in accordance with their best judgment. Discretionary
authority to do so is conferred by the enclosed proxy.

Great Neck, NY By order of the Board of Directors
April 17, 2012

Mark H. Lundy, Secretary
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.
2012 INCENTIVE PLAN

SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE DATE AND PURPOSE

1.1 Effective Date. This Plan shall become effective upon approval by the stockholders of the
Company (as defined).

1.2 Purpose of the Plan. The Plan is designed to motivate, retain and attract employees, officers
and directors of experience and ability and to further the financial success of the Company by aligning
the interests of Participants through the ownership of Shares with the interests of the Company’s
stockholders.

SECTION 2
DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the following meanings (whether used in the singular or plural)
unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context:

“1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Reference to a specific
section of the 1934 Act or a regulation thereunder shall include any regulation promulgated under such
section, and any comparable provision of any future legislation or regulation amending, supplementing
or superseding such section or regulation.

“Award” means, individually or collectively, a grant under the Plan of Nonqualified Stock Options,
Incentive Stock Options, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units and Performance Share Awards.

“Award Agreement” means either (1) the written agreement setting forth the terms and provisions
applicable to each Award granted under the Plan or (2) a statement (including an electronic
communication) issued by the Company to a Participant describing the terms and provisions of such
Award.

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the
regulations thereunder.

“Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board or the committee of the Board
appointed to administer the Plan.

“Company” means One Liberty Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation, and any successor
thereto.

“Disability” or “Disabled”” means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason
of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death
or which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months.

“Exercise Price” means the price at which a Share may be purchased by a Participant pursuant to
the exercise of an Option.

“Fair Market Value” means, as of any given date, (i) the closing sales price of the Shares on any
national securities exchange on which the Shares are listed; (ii) the closing sales price if the Shares are
listed on the OTCBB or other over the counter market; or (iii) if there is no regular public trading
market for such Shares, the fair market value of the Shares as determined by the Committee.

“Grant Date” means, with respect to an Award, the effective date that such Award is granted to a
Participant.
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“Incentive Stock Option” means an Option to purchase Shares which is designated as an Incentive
Stock Option and is intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code.

“Nongqualified Stock Option” means an Option to purchase Shares which is not an Incentive Stock
Option.

“Option” means an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option.

“Participant” means an officer, employee, director or consultant of the Company who has been
granted an Award under the Plan.

“Performance-Based Award” means any Restricted Stock Award, Restricted Stock Unit, Option or
Performance Share Award granted to a Participant that qualifies as “performance based compensation”
under Section 162(m) of the Code.

“Performance Criteria” shall mean any or a combination of the following: revenue, earnings, stock
price, cash flows, costs, return on equity, stockholders’ equity (book value), total equity, asset growth,
net operating income, average occupancy, year-end occupancy, funds from operations, adjusted funds
from operations, cash available for distribution, total shareholder return, return on assets, or goals
relating to acquisitions or divestitures. Performance Criteria need not be the same with respect to all
Participants and may be established separately for the Company as a whole, or on a per share basis,
and may be based on absolute performance or performance compared to performance by businesses
specified by the Committee, and may be based upon performance compared to periods determined by
the Committee. All calculations and financial accounting matters relevant to this Plan shall be
determined in accordance with GAAP, except as otherwise directed by the Committee.

“Performance Cycle” means one or more periods of time which may be of varying and overlapping
durations, as the Committee may select, over which the attainment of one or more Performance Goals
will be measured for the purpose of determining a Participants right to and the payment of a Restricted
Stock Award, Restricted Stock Unit, Option or Performance Share Award. Each such period shall not
be less than twelve months.

“Performance Goals” means for a Performance Cycle, the specific goals established by the
Committee for a Performance Cycle based upon the Performance Criteria.

“Period of Restriction” means the period during which an Award granted hereunder is subject to a
substantial risk of forfeiture. Such restrictions may be based on the passage of time, the achievement of
Performance Goals, the occurrence of other events as determined by the Committee or any one or
more of the foregoing.

“Plan” means the One Liberty Property’s 2012 Incentive Plan, as set forth herein and as after
amended from time to time.

“Restricted Stock” means an Award of Shares, the grant, issuance, retention and/or vesting of which
is subject to such conditions as are expressed in the Award Agreement and as contemplated herein.

“Restricted Stock Unit” or “RSU”” means an Award of a right to receive one Share, the grant,
issuance, retention and/or vesting of which is subject to such conditions as are expressed in the Award
Agreement and as contemplated herein.

“Retirement” means (i) a director who has attained the age of 65 years who resigns or retires from
the Board or does not stand for re-election to the Board and has served continuously as a Company of
the Company for not less than six consecutive years, and (ii) an officer or employee of the Company
who has attained the age of 65 years who resigns or retires from the Company or one of its
Subsidiaries and has served as an officer and/or employee of the Company or one of its Subsidiaries for
not less than ten consecutive years at the time of retirement or resignation, provided that such
Participant has not (A) become employed by, or serve as a consultant for, a competitor of the



Company, or (B) acted in a manner during the period of his relationship with the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries which has been harmful to the business or reputation of the Company. A determination
as to whether a “retiree” or “resignee” has behaved in a manner described in clauses (A) or (B) shall
be made by the Committee, whose determination shall be conclusive and binding in all respects on the
Participant and the Company.

“Shares” means the shares of common stock, $1.00 par value, of the Company.

“Subsidiary” means (i) a corporation, association or other business entity of which 50% or more of
the total combined voting power of all classes of capital stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by the
Company or by one or more Subsidiaries of the Company or by the Company and one or more
Subsidiaries of the Company, (ii) any partnership or limited liability company of which 50% or more of
the capital and profit interests is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company or by one or more
Subsidiaries of the Company or by the Company and one or more Subsidiaries of the Company, or
(iii) any other entity not described in clauses (i) or (ii) above of which 50% or more of the ownership
and the power, pursuant to a written contract or agreement, to direct the policies and management or
the financial and the other affairs thereof, are owned or controlled by the Company or by one or more
Subsidiaries of the Company or by the Company and one or more Subsidiaries of the Company.

SECTION 3
ELIGIBILITY

3.1 PFarticipants. Awards may be granted in the discretion of the Committee to officers,
employees, directors and consultants of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

3.2 Non-Uniformity. Awards granted hereunder need not be uniform among eligible Participants
and may reflect distinctions based on title, compensation, responsibility or any other factor the
Committee deems appropriate.

SECTION 4
ADMINISTRATION

4.1 The Committee. The Plan will be administered by the Committee, which, to the extent
deemed necessary by the Board, will consist of two or more persons who satisfy the requirements for a
“non-employee director” under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the 1934 Act and/or the requirements
for an “outside director” under section 162(m) of the Code. The members of the Committee shall be
appointed from time to time by, and shall serve at the pleasure of, the Board of Directors. In the
absence of such appointment, the Board of Directors shall serve as the Committee and shall have all of
the responsibilities, duties, and authority of the Committee set forth herein.

4.2 Authority of the Committee. The Committee shall have the exclusive authority to administer
and construe the Plan in accordance with its provisions. The Committee’s authority shall include,
without limitation, the power to (a) determine persons eligible for Awards, (b) prescribe the terms and
conditions of the Awards, (c) construe and interpret the Plan, the Awards and any Award Agreement,
(d) adopt rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan as are consistent
therewith and (e) establish, interpret, amend or revoke any such rules. With respect to any Award that
is intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of section 162(m) of
the Code, the Committee shall have no discretion to increase the amount of compensation that
otherwise would be due upon attainment of a Performance Goal, although the Committee may have
discretion to deny an Award or to adjust downward the compensation payable pursuant to an Award,
as the Committee determines in its sole judgment. The Committee, in its sole discretion and on such
terms and conditions as it may provide, may delegate all or any part of its authority and powers under
the Plan to one or more officers of the Company to the extent permitted by law.
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4.3 Decisions Binding. All determinations and decisions made by the Committee and any of its
delegates pursuant to Section 4.2 shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons, and shall be
given the maximum deference permitted by law.

SECTION 5
SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

5.1 Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 5.3, the total number of
Shares available for grant under the Plan shall not exceed 600,000 Shares. The Shares available for
issuance under the Plan shall be authorized but unissued Shares of the Company.

5.2 Lapsed Awards. Unless determined otherwise by the Committee, Shares related to Awards
that are forfeited, cancelled, terminated or expire unexercised, shall be available for grant under the
Plan. Shares that are tendered by a Participant to the Company in connection with the exercise of an
Award, withheld from issuance in connection with a Participant’s payment of tax withholding liability,
or settled in such other manner so that a portion or all of the Shares included in an Award are not
issued to a Participant shall not be available for grant under the Plan.

5.3  Adjustments in Awards and Authorized Shares. In the event of a stock dividend or stock split,
the number of Shares subject to the Plan, outstanding Awards and the numerical amounts set forth in
Sections 5.1, 6.1, 7.1 and 8.1 shall automatically be adjusted to prevent the dilution or diminution of
such Awards, except to the extent directed otherwise by the Committee. In the event of a merger,
reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization, separation, liquidation, combination or other similar
change in the structure of the Company affecting the Shares, the Committee shall adjust the number
and class of Shares which may be delivered under the Plan, the number, class and price of Shares
subject to outstanding Awards, and the numerical limits of Sections 5.1, 6.1, 7.1 and 8.1 in such manner
as the Committee shall determine to be advisable or appropriate to prevent the dilution or diminution
of such Awards. Any such numerical limitations shall be subject to adjustment under this Section only
to the extent such adjustment will not affect the status of any Award intended to qualify as
“performance-based compensation” under section 162(m) of the Code or the ability to grant or the
qualification of Incentive Stock Options under the Plan.

5.4 Restrictions on Transferability. The Committee may impose such restrictions on any Award,
Award of Shares or Shares acquired pursuant to an Award as it deems advisable or appropriate,
including, but not limited to, restrictions related to applicable Federal securities laws, the requirements
of any national securities exchange or system upon which Shares are then listed or traded, and any blue
sky or state securities laws.

SECTION 6
STOCK OPTIONS

6.1 Grant of Options. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Options may be granted
to Participants at any time and from time to time as determined by the Committee. The Committee
shall determine the number of Shares subject to each Option. The Committee may grant Incentive
Stock Options, Nonqualified Stock Options, or any combination thereof. The maximum aggregate
number of Shares underlying Options granted in any one calendar year to an individual Participant
shall be 60,000.

6.2 Award Agreement. Each Option shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify
the Exercise Price, the expiration date of the Option, the number of Shares to which the Option
pertains, whether the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock
Option, any conditions on exercise of the Option and such other terms and conditions as the
Committee shall determine, including terms regarding forfeiture of Awards or continued exercisability
of Awards in the event of termination of employment by the Participant.
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6.3 Exercise Price. The Exercise Price for each Option shall be determined by the Committee
and shall be provided in each Award Agreement; provided, however, the Exercise Price for each Option
may not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant
Date. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the Exercise Price shall be not less than one hundred
ten percent (110%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share if the Participant (together with persons whose
stock ownership is attributed to the Participant pursuant to section 424(d) of the Code) owns on the
Grant Date stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock
of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

6.4 Expiration of Options. Except as provided in Section 6.7(c) regarding Incentive Stock
Options, each Option shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the date(s) for termination of the
Option set forth in the Award Agreement or (ii) the expiration of ten (10) years from the Grant Date.
Subject to such limits, the Committee shall provide in each Award Agreement when each Option
expires and becomes unexercisable. The Committee may not, after an Option is granted, extend the
maximum term of the Option.

6.5 Exercisability of Options. Options granted under the Plan shall be exercisable, in whole or in
part, at such times and be subject to such restrictions and conditions as the Committee shall determine.
After an Option is granted, the Committee may accelerate or waive any condition constituting a
substantial risk of forfeiture applicable to the Option.

6.6 Payment. Options shall be exercised by a Participant’s delivery of a written notice of exercise
to the Secretary of the Company (or its designee), setting forth the number of Shares with respect to
which the Option is to be exercised, accompanied by full payment for the Shares. Upon the exercise of
an Option, the Exercise Price shall be payable to the Company in full in cash or its equivalent. The
Committee may permit exercise (a) by the Participant tendering previously acquired Shares having an
aggregate Fair Market Value at the time of exercise equal to the total Exercise Price, (b) the
Participant tendering a combination of cash and Shares equal to total Exercise Price (the Shares
tendered being valued at Fair Market Value at the time of exercise), or (c) by any other means which
the Committee determines to provide legal consideration for the Shares, and to be consistent with the
purposes of the Plan. As soon as practicable after receipt of a written notification of exercise and full
payment for the Shares purchased, the Company shall deliver to the Participant Share certificates
(which may be in book entry form) representing such Shares. Until the issuance of the stock
certificates, no right to vote or receive dividends or any other rights as a shareholder shall exist with
respect to the Shares as to which the Option has been exercised. No adjustment will be made for a
dividend or other rights for which a record date is established prior to the date the certificates are
issued.

6.7 Certain Additional Provisions for Incentive Stock Options.

(a) Exercisability. The aggregate Fair Market Value (determined on the Grant Date(s)) of
the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by any
Participant during any calendar year (under all plans of the Company, any parent and its
Subsidiaries) shall not exceed $100,000. The portion of the Option which is in excess of the
$100,000 limitation shall be treated as a Non-Qualified Option pursuant to Section 422(d)(1) of
the Code.

(b) Company and Subsidiaries Only. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to
Participants who are officers or employees of the Company or a Subsidiary on the Grant Date.

(c) Expiration. No Incentive Stock Option may be exercised after the expiration of ten
(10) years from the Grant Date. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option that is granted to a
Participant who (together with persons whose stock ownership is attributed to the Participant
pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) owns on the Grant Date stock possessing more than 10%
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of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, the term of such Incentive Stock Option shall be no more than five years from the
Grant Date.

6.8 Restriction on Transfer. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in
the Award Agreement, no Option may be transferred, gifted, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated
or hypothecated, voluntarily or involuntarily. Upon the death or Disability of a Participant, an Option
may be exercised by the duly appointed personal representative of the deceased Participant or in the
event of a Disability by the Participant or the duly appointed committee of the Disabled Participant to
the extent the Option was exercisable on the date of death or the date of Disability and shall be
exercisable for a period of six months from the date of death or the date of Disability. Upon
Retirement of a Participant an Option may be exercised to the extent it was exercisable on the effective
date of the Retirement and shall be exercisable for a period of six months from the effective date of
such Retirement.

6.9 Repricing of Options. Without shareholder approval, (i) the Company will not reprice,
replace or regrant an outstanding Option either in connection with the cancellation of such Option or
by amending an Award Agreement to lower the exercise price of such Option, and (ii) the Company
will not cancel outstanding Options in exchange for cash or other Awards.

6.10 Voting Rights. A Participant shall have no voting rights with respect to any Options granted
hereunder.

SECTION 7
RESTRICTED STOCK AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the terms and provisions of
the Plan, the Committee, at any time and from time to time, may grant Shares of Restricted Stock
and/or Restricted Stock Units to Participants in such amounts as the Committee shall determine. The
Committee shall determine the number of Shares and/or RSU’s to be granted to each Participant and
the time when each Award shall be granted. No more than 60,000 Shares of each of Restricted Stock
and Shares underlying Restricted Stock Units may be granted to any individual Participant in any one
calendar year.

7.2 Restricted Stock and RSU Agreements. Each Award of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock
Units shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the Period of Restriction, the
number of Shares of Restricted Stock granted, the number of Shares subject to a Restricted Stock Unit,
any applicable Performance Criteria, Performance Goal and Performance Cycle, and such other terms
and conditions as the Committee shall determine, including terms regarding forfeiture of Awards in the
event of termination of employment by the Participant or termination of the Participant’s relationship
with the Company as a director or consultant.

7.3 Transferability. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Award
Agreement, Shares of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units including Shares underlying RSU’s
may not be sold, transferred, gifted, bequeathed, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated, voluntarily or involuntarily, until the end of the applicable Period of Restriction and the
satisfaction, in whole or in part, of any applicable Performance Goals within the applicable
Performance Cycle. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Award
Agreement, in the event of the death, Disability or Retirement of a Participant, all unvested Restricted
Stock and unvested RSU’s shall not vest on the date of death or Disability or the effective date of
Retirement. Without shareholder approval, the Company will not, except as otherwise provided for in
the Plan, repurchase outstanding unvested Restricted Stock or unvested RSU’s in exchange for cash or
accelerate the vesting of outstanding unvested Shares of Restricted Stock or RSU’s. The Committee
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may include a legend on the certificates representing Restricted Stock or RSU’s to give appropriate
notice of such restrictions.

7.4  Other Restrictions. The Committee may impose such other restrictions on Shares of
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (including Shares underlying RSU’s) as it may deem
advisable or appropriate in accordance with this Section 7.4.

(a) General Restrictions. The Committee may set one or more restrictions based upon
(a) the achievement of specific Performance Goals, (b) applicable Federal or state securities laws,
(c) time-based restrictions, or (d) any other basis determined by the Committee.

(b) Section 162(m) Performance Restrictions. For purposes of qualifying grants of Restricted
Stock and/or RSU’s as “performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, the
Committee, in its sole discretion, may set restrictions based upon the achievement of Performance
Goals. The Performance Goals shall be set by the Committee on or before the latest date
permissible to enable the Restricted Stock and/or RSU’s to qualify as “performance-based
compensation” under section 162(m) of the Code. In granting Restricted Stock and/or RSU’s that
are intended to qualify under section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall follow any
procedures determined by it in its sole discretion from time to time to be necessary, advisable or
appropriate to ensure qualification of the Restricted Stock and/or RSU’s under section 162(m) of
the Code.

(c) Retention of Certificates. 'To the extent deemed appropriate by the Committee, the
Company shall retain the certificates representing Shares of Restricted Stock and/or RSU’s in the
Company’s possession until such time as all conditions and restrictions applicable to such Shares
have been satisfied or lapse.

7.5 Removal of Restrictions. After the end of the Period of Restriction, the Shares shall be freely
transferable by the Participant, subject to any other restrictions on transfer which may apply to such
Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee shall not act in a manner that would cause a
grant that is intended to be “performance-based compensation” under Code Section 162(m) to fail to
be performance-based.

7.6 Voting Rights. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Award
Agreement, Participants holding (a) Shares of Restricted Stock shall have voting rights during the
Period of Restriction and (b) Restricted Stock Units shall not have voting rights during the Period of
Restriction.

7.7 Dividends and Other Distributions. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee and set
forth in the Award Agreement, Participants holding (a) Shares of Restricted Stock shall be entitled to
receive all dividends and other distributions paid with respect to the Shares during the Period of
Restriction and (b) RSU’s shall not be entitled to receive any dividends or other distributions paid with
respect to the underlying Shares during the Period of Restriction.

SECTION 8
PERFORMANCE-BASED AWARDS

8.1 Performance-Based Awards. Participants selected by the Committee may be granted one or
more Performance Awards in the form of Options, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or
Performance Share Awards payable upon the attainment of Performance Goals that are established by
the Committee and related to one or more of the Performance Criteria, in each case on a specified
date or dates or over a Performance Cycle determined by the Committee. A Performance Cycle shall
be at least one year. The Committee in its sole discretion shall determine whether an Award is to
qualify as “performance based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code. The Committee in its
sole discretion shall determine Awards that are based on Performance Goals but are not intended to



quality as “performance based compensation” under Section 162(m). The Committee shall define the
manner of calculating the Performance Criteria it selects to use for any Performance Cycle. Depending
on the Performance Criteria used to establish such Performance Goals, the Performance Goals may be
expressed in terms of overall Company performance or the performance of an individual. The
Committee, in its discretion, may adjust or modify the calculation of Performance Goals for such
Performance Cycle in order to prevent the dilution or enlargement of the rights of an individual (i) in
the event of, or in anticipation of, any unusual or extraordinary corporate item, transaction, event or
development, (ii) in recognition of, or in anticipation of, any other unusual or nonrecurring events
affecting the Company, or the financial statements of the Company, or (iii) in response to, or in
anticipation of, changes in applicable laws, regulations, accounting principles, or business conditions;
provided however, that the Committee may not exercise such discretion in a manner that would increase
the Performance-Based Award granted to a Participant. Each Performance-Based Award shall comply
with the provisions set forth below. Performance Awards shall be paid in Shares.

(a) Grant of Performance-Based Awards. With respect to each Performance-Based Award
granted to a Participant, if intended by the Committee to qualify as “performance based
compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall select, within the first
90 days of a Performance Cycle the Performance Criteria for such grant, and the Performance
Goals with respect to each Performance Criterion (including a threshold level of performance
below which no amount will become payable with respect to such Award). Each Performance-
Based Award will specify the number of shares issuable, or the formula for determining the
number of shares issuable, upon achievement of the various applicable performance targets. The
Performance Criteria established by the Committee may be (but need not be) different for each
Performance Cycle and different Performance Goals may be applicable to Performance-Based
Awards to different Participants.

(b) Payment of Performance-Based Awards. Following the completion of a Performance
Cycle, the Committee shall meet to review and certify in writing whether, and to what extent, the
Performance Goals for the Performance Cycle have been achieved and, if so, to also calculate and
certify in writing the amount of the Performance-Based Awards earned for the Performance Cycle.
The Committee shall then determine the actual size of each Participant’s Performance-Based
Award, and, in doing so, may reduce or eliminate the amount of the Performance-Based Award for
a Participant if, in its sole judgment, such reduction or elimination is appropriate.

(¢) Maximum Award Payable. The maximum Performance-Based Award issuable to any one
Participant under the Plan for a Performance Cycle is 60,000 Shares (subject to adjustment as
provided in Section 5.3 hereof).

SECTION 9
AMENDMENT, TERMINATION, AND DURATION

9.1 Amendment, Suspension, or Termination. The Board, in its sole discretion, may amend,
suspend or terminate the Plan, or any part thereof, at any time and for any reason; provided, however,
that if and to the extent required by law or to maintain the Plan’s compliance with the Code, the rules
of any national securities exchange (if applicable), or any other applicable law, any such amendment
shall be subject to shareholder approval; and further provided, that without shareholder approval, no
amendment shall permit the repricing, replacing or regranting of an Option in connection with the
cancellation of such Option or by amending an Award Agreement to lower the exercise price of such
Option or the cancellation of any Award in exchange for cash. The amendment, suspension or
termination of the Plan shall not, without the consent of the Participant, alter or impair any rights or
obligations under any Award theretofore granted to such Participant. No Award may be granted during
any period of suspension or after termination of the Plan.
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9.2 Duration of the Plan. The Plan shall become effective in accordance with Section 1.1, and
subject to Section 9.1 shall remain in effect until the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the Plan.

SECTION 10
TAX WITHHOLDING

10.1 Withholding Requirements. Prior to the delivery of any Shares pursuant to an Award (or the
exercise thereof), the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold from any
amounts due to the Participant from the Company, or require a Participant to remit to the Company,
an amount sufficient to satisfy Federal, state and local taxes (including the Participant’s FICA
obligation) required to be withheld with respect to such Award (or the exercise or vesting thereof).

10.2  Withholding Arrangements. The Committee, pursuant to such procedures as it may specify
from time to time, may permit a Participant to satisfy such tax withholding obligation, in whole or in
part, by (a) electing to have the Company withhold otherwise deliverable Shares, or (b) delivering to
the Company Shares then owned by the Participant. The amount of the withholding requirement shall
be deemed to include any amount that the Committee agrees may be withheld at the time any such
election is made, not to exceed the amount determined by using the maximum federal, state or local
marginal income tax rates applicable to the Participant with respect to the Award on the date that the
amount of tax to be withheld is to be determined. The Fair Market Value of the Shares to be withheld
or delivered shall be determined as of the date that the taxes are required to be withheld.

SECTION 11
CHANGE IN CONTROL

11.1 Change in Control. For purposes of the Plan, a Change in Control means any of the
following:

(a) the acquisition (other than from the Company) in one or more transactions by any person
(as such term is used in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act) of the beneficial ownership (within the
meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of 25% or more of (i) the then outstanding Shares or
(ii) the combined voting power of the then outstanding securities of the Company entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (the “Company Voting Stock™), provided however the provision
of this Section 11.1(a) is not applicable to acquisitions made individually, or as a group by Fredric
H. Gould, Matthew J. Gould and Jeffrey A. Gould, and their respective spouses, lineal
descendants and affiliates;

(b) individuals who, as of the date of the Award, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent
Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that
any individual becoming a director subsequent to the date of such Award whose election, or
nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by a vote of at least a
majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considered as though such
individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such
individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of either an actual or threatened
election contest (as such terms are used in the Rules of Regulation 14A promulgated under the
Exchange Act) or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of
a Person other than the Board;

(c) the closing of a sale or other conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company; or

(d) the effective time of any merger, share exchange, consolidation, or other business
combination involving the Company if immediately after such transaction persons who hold a
majority of the outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors
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of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity) are not persons who,
immediately prior to such transaction, held the Company’s voting Shares.

11.2  Effect of Change of Control. On the effective date of any Change in Control, unless the
applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise: (i) in the case of an Option, each such outstanding
Option shall become exercisable in full in respect of the aggregate number of Shares covered thereby;
and (ii) in the case of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units and Performance Share Awards, the
Restriction Period applicable to each such Award shall be deemed to have expired. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, the Committee may, in its
discretion, determine that any or all outstanding Awards of any or all types granted pursuant to the
Plan will not become exercisable on an accelerated basis nor will the Restriction Period expire in
connection with a Change of Control if effective provision has been made for the taking of such action
which, in the opinion of the Committee, is equitable and appropriate to substitute a new Award for
such Award or for the assumption of such Award and to make such new or assumed Award, as nearly
as may be practicable, equivalent to the old Award (before giving effect to any acceleration of the
exercisability or the expiration of the Restriction Period), taking into account, to the extent applicable,
the kind and amount of securities, cash, or other assets into or for which the Shares may be changed,
converted, or exchanged in connection with such Change of Control.

SECTION 12
MISCELLANEOUS

12.1 Deferrals. 'To the extent consistent with the requirements of section 409A of the Code, the
Committee may provide in an Award Agreement or another document that a Participant is permitted
to defer receipt of the delivery of Shares that would otherwise be due to such Participant under an
Award. Any such deferral shall be subject to such rules and procedures as shall be determined by the
Committee.

12.2  Termination for Cause. 1f a Participant’s employment or relationship with the Company or a
Subsidiary (as a director or consultant) shall be terminated for cause by the Company or such
Subsidiary during the Restriction Period or prior to the exercise of any Option (for these purposes,
cause shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in any employment agreement to which such Participant
is a party or, in the absence thereof, shall include, but not be limited to, insubordination, dishonesty,
incompetence, moral turpitude, the refusal to perform his duties and responsibilities for any reason
(other than illness or incapacity) and other misconduct of any kind), then, (i) all Options shall
immediately terminate and (ii) such Participant’s rights to all Restricted Stock, RSU’s and Performance
Share Awards shall be forfeited immediately.

12.3  Section 162(m). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in an Award
Agreement, an Award that is intended to qualify as “performance based compensation” under
Section 162(m) of the Code, shall not vest in whole or in part in the event of the Participant’s
Retirement, involuntary termination or if the Participant terminates his or her relationship with the
Company, except to the extent (a) the Performance Goal’s shall be achieved within the Performance
Cycle or (b) otherwise permitted under Section 162(m) of the Code.

12.4  No Effect on Employment or Service. Nothing in the Plan or in any Award, and no action of
the Committee shall confer or be construed to confer on any Participant any right to continue in the
employ or service of the Company or any Subsidiary or shall interfere with or limit in any way the right
of the Company or any Subsidiary to terminate any Participant’s employment or service at any time,
with or without cause. Employment with the Company or any Subsidiary is on an at-will basis only,
unless otherwise provided by an applicable employment or service agreement between the Participant
and the Company or any Subsidiary, as the case may be.
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12.5 Successors. All obligations of the Company under the Plan, with respect to Awards granted
hereunder, shall be binding on any successor to the Company, whether the existence of such successor
is the result of a direct or indirect merger, consolidation or otherwise, or the purchase of all or
substantially all of the business or assets of the Company.

12.6  No Rights as Shareholder. Except to the limited extent provided in Sections 7.6 and 7.7, no
Participant (nor any beneficiary thereof) shall have any of the rights or privileges of a shareholder of
the Company with respect to any Shares issuable pursuant to an Award (or the exercise or vesting
thereof), unless and until certificates representing such Shares shall have been issued, recorded on the
records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered to the Participant (or his or
her beneficiary).

12.7  Uncertificated Shares. To the extent that the Plan provides for issuance of certificates to
reflect the issuance or transfer of Shares, the issuance or transfer of such Shares may be effected on a
noncertificated basis or book entry basis, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law or the rules of
any stock exchange.

12.8  Fractional Shares. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or
any Award. The Committee shall determine whether cash, or Awards, or other property shall be issued
or paid in lieu of fractional Shares or whether such fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall be
forfeited or otherwise eliminated.

12.9 Severability. In the event any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any
reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be
construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

12.10 Requirements of Law. The grant of Awards and the issuance of Shares under the Plan
shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental
agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required from time to time.

12.11  Securities Law Compliance. To the extent any provision of the Plan, Award Agreement or
action by the Committee fails to comply with any applicable federal or state securities law, it shall be
deemed null and void, to the extent permitted by law and deemed advisable or appropriate by the
Committee.

12.12  Governing Law. The Plan and all Award Agreements shall be construed in accordance
with and governed by the laws of the State of Maryland.

12.13  Captions. Captions are provided herein for convenience of reference only, and shall not
serve as a basis for interpretation or construction of the Plan.
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ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.

PROXY FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
JUNE 12, 2012

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned hereby appoints SIMEON BRINBERG, MARK H. LUNDY AND ASHER
GAFFNEY, as Proxies each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to
represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side, all the shares of Common Stock, $1.00 par
value per share, of One Liberty Properties, Inc. held of record by the undersigned on April 17, 2012 at
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 12, 2012 or any adjournments thereof.

(TO BE SIGNED ON REVERSE SIDE)
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ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF

ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.

June 12, 2012

NOTICE OF INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIAL:

The Notice of Meeting, proxy statement and proxy card
are available at http://onelibertyproperties.com//files/client_files/325/523/2012annualmeetingmaterials.pdf

Please sign, date and mail
your proxy card in the
envelope provided as soon
as possible.

+ Please detach along perforated line and mail in the envelope provided.+

I c0333000000000000000 &

0kl21e

PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE

1. Election of three Directors:

NOMINEES:
I:l FOR ALL NOMINEES O Joseph A. DeLuca
O Fredric H. Gould

wiTHHoLD auTHorTY O Eugene 1. Zuriff
FOR ALL NOMINEES

FOR ALL EXCEPT
(See instructions below)

INSTRUCTIONS: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), mark “FOR ALL EXCEPT”
and fill in the circle next to each nominee you wish to withhold, as shown here: @@

indicate your new address in the address space above. Please note that
changes to the registered name(s) on the account may not be submitted via
this method.

To change the address on your account, please check the box at right and I:I

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
2. To approve the 2012 Incentive Plan. D D D

3. Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent registered D D l:l
public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2012.

4. In their discretion, the Proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as
may properly come before the meeting.

This Proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed by
you. If no direction is made, this Proxy will be voted FOR all nominees and FOR
proposals 2 and 3. You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the
appropriate boxes, but you need not mark any boxes if you wish to vote in
accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendation. The Proxies
cannot vote your shares of common stock unless you sign and return this
card.

Date:

Signature of Stockholder

Signature of Stockholder ‘Date:

Note: Please sign exactly as your name or names appear on this Proxy. When shares are held jointly, each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give

full title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized person. -



ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF

ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.

June 12, 2012

PROXY VOTING INSTRUCTIONS

INTERNET - Access “www.voteproxy.com” and follow the on-screen
instructions. Have your proxy card available when you access the

web page.
TELEPHONE - Call toll-free 1-800-PROXIES (1-800-776-9437) in
the United States or 1-718-921-8500 from foreign countries from any COMPANY NUMBER

touch-tone telephone and follow the instructions. Have your proxy
card available when you call.

Vote online/phone until 11:59 PM EDT the day before the meeting. ACCOUNT NUMBER

MAIL - Sign, date and mail your proxy card in the envelope
provided as soon as possible.

IN PERSON - You may vote your shares in person by attending
the Annual Meeting.

NOTICE OF INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIAL: The Notice of Meeting, proxy statement and proxy
card are available at http://onelibertyproperties.com//files/client_files/325/523/2012annualmeetingmaterials.pdf

+ Please detach along perforated line and mail in the envelope provided IF you are not voting via telephone or the Internet. +

I c0333000000000000000 & 0kl21e

PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

1. Election of three Directors: 2. To approve the 2012 Incentive Plan. D D I:l
NOMINEES:
I:I FOR ALL NOMINEES O Joseph A. Deluca 3. Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent registered D D D
O Fredric H. Gould public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2012.

wiTHHoLD auTHorTYy O Eugene 1. Zuriff
FOR ALL NOMINEES

4. In their discretion, the Proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as

FOR ALL EXCEPT ;
(See instructions below) may properly come before the meeting.

This Proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed by
you. If no direction is made, this Proxy will be voted FOR all nominees and FOR
proposals 2 and 3. You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the
appropriate boxes, but you need not mark any boxes if you wish to vote in
accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendation. The Proxies
) ) o ) cannot vote your shares of common stock unless you sign and return this
INSTRUCTIONS: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), mark “FOR ALL EXCEPT” card.

and fill in the circle next to each nominee you wish to withhold, as shown here: @@

To change the address on your account, please check the box at right and
indicate your new address in the address space above. Please note that I:l
changes to the registered name(s) on the account may not be submitted via

this method.

Signature of Stockholder Date: Signature of Stockholder ‘Date:

Note: Please sign exactly as your name or names appear on this Proxy. When shares are held jointly, each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give
full title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized person.




